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HK$
us$
RMB
120.15 UFJ 2015 12
12 31
2010 11 26
Teeroy Limited
2013 10 23
Teeroy Limited
Campofrio Food Group,S.-A.
2006 27 BVI
China Shine Group Limited
CDH (CDH Shine
Limited)
2010 12 BVI
Chang Yun Holdings
Limited
2006

WH Group Limited

C
Holding Limited)

WH

(Shine C

(Shuanghui International Holdings Limited)

CDH
11 CDH
CDH
]

EU

Wanzhou Holdings Group Limited

CDH 11 CDH

v CDH
CDH

Gross Domestic Product
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2007 23 BVI

Heroic Zone Investments Limited
2013 BVI

High Zenith Limited

IFRS
2014
15 385,110,000
6.20
2014 2014 12 31
2013 BVI
(Rich Matrix Global Limited)
2007 BVI
Rise Grand Group
Limited
RMB
2006 28
100
Rotary Vortex
Limited
SFO 571 the Securities and
Futures Commission of Hong Kong
0.0001
B 2006 20 BVI
Shine B
Holding I Limited ( )
1998 10 15

Henan Shuanghui Investment & Development Co., Ltd.

1994 29
100

Henan Luohe Shuanghui Industry Group
Co., Ltd.
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Smithfield Foods, Inc.

Sure Pass Holdings Limited

2013 30
40
Bank of
China (Hong Kong) Limited
us the United States of America
Uss$
WH
(PRRS) PRRS
( )
cwt 100 ()
240 180
30
18
50
25 45 50
PEDV
20 24
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5.4kg
9.1kg

76 76028 -7604A
(Unit 7602B-7604A, Level 76, International Commerce Centre, 1 Austin Road West, Kowloon,
Hong Kong)
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2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
22,243 11,253 6,243 5,455 5,182
97.7 80.2 14.4 5.3 31.6
1,614 886 567 254 551
7.3 7.9 9.1 4.7 10.6
1,420 162 602 259 565
(448) (229) (134) 1) (129)
972 (67) 468 188 436
766 (263) 325 129 319
206 196 143 59 117
972 (67) 468 188 436
737 (289) 326 125 319
6.44 (2.62) 3.28 1.30 3.22
14,720 14,156 3,497 3,882 3,450
(8.670) (11,018) 947)  (1,749)  (1,571)
6,050 3,138 2,550 2,133 1,879
5,130 2,275 1,789 1,548 1,364
920 863 761 585 515
6,050 3,138 2,550 2,133 1,879
17,685 5,460 300 298 232
47,170 22,772 11,419 10,006 13,592
3,227 2,169 1,558 1,454 1,735
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3,227
109.1
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22,243
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972
766
737
956
2014
2013 2,169
2014 3,764
97.7
82.2
2014 972
2013 289
78
2,500

2014
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2013 ()
11,253 +97.7
886 +82.2
(67)
(263)
(289)
507 +88.6
48.8
2013
2014 22,243
2014 1,614
2013 67
31
132
2014
1,500
2013
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62 2013 25 32 2013
2014 30
2013
(1) 2014
1,205 2013 739 )
2013 507 2014 956
88.6
2014 2013 ()
( )
1,727 1,716 +0.6
1,290 404 +219.3
210 49 +328.6
3,227 2,169 +48.8
( )
4,039 4,074 -0.9
7,173 1,969 +264.3
664 169 +292.9
11,876 6,212 +91.2
( )
711 678 +4.9
450 79 +469.6
33 2 +1,550.0
1,194 759 +57.3
2013 2,169 48.8 2014 3,227

2014 0.6 2014
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2014

11,876
4,039
7,837

1,194
4.9

2013
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10
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2014
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2014
1,500 2013 453
5,500
2014 31
38
90
18
2013 6,212 91.2 2014
2014
2014
2013 2,138
2013 759 57.3 2014
678
483
2014 12 31
9.7
2014 2013 ()

15,010 13,310 +12.8
27,890 8,139 +242.7
4,270 1,323 +222.8

47,170 22,772 +107.1
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( )
1,499 1,300 +15.3
3,100 850 +264.7
603 140 +330.7
5,202 2,290 +127.2
( )
1,201 1,075 +11.7
2,239 620 +261.1
324 105 +208.6
3,764 1,800 +109.1
( )
3,172 3,010 +5.4
5,540 1,287 +330.5
656 246 +166.7
9,368 4,543 +106.2
« X )

135 113 +19.5
90 93 -3.2

a9 ®)
211 201 +5.0

2014 47,170 2013 22,772 107.1
13,310 12.8
2014 15,010
2014 14,722 2013 13,048
2014 32,160 2013 9,462
2014 12 31
27,890 14,724 52.8
13,166
2014 12 31 3,764
1,800 109.1

2014 1,201
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2013 1,075
2014
725
26
2014
64,000
2014 29
2013
9,368
5.4 2014 12 31
2014
1,533
2013 201
2014 12 31 135
76 2013 88
« )

EDINETOOOO

O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)

21

11.7
2,563
56,000
37
75
4,543 106.2
3,172
2014
6,196
5.0 2014
113
2014
2014 2013
311 311
14,724 4,459
2,650 690
17,685 5,460
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2014
17,374

2014

16

2013

31

( )
311
2013
2,650
2013 2.0
52.8
500
76
56.3
2014
175

223.9

5,149

2013 54.8
2,190

522
58
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337
71

412

2014

2014

2014

2014 12 31

2013
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16 -56.3
172 +203.5

3 +1,833.3
191 +207.3

7 -42.9
(1)

25 +184.0

©

17,685
14,724
19
2014 12 31
10
191 2014 587
2013 12 31
580
2014 412
2014 12
2014
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2013 16

2014 12 31
978 2013 875
2014 12 31 209 2013 151
12
35
2014 12 31 1.7 2013 1.8
EBITDA 2,158 2013 461
2014 12 31 1,560 2013 700

721

699

5,015

295
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4,652
2014 652 2013
4,411
191 2013 90
IPO
2,751 2013 4,505
2014 187 2013
96
2014 2014
2,284 1PO

2014 12 31 2014 24

1PO
2013
900 2013

26 7,962 2013 12

31 7,432

1PO 2014

2014 12 31 4,670
2,762
2014 30 12
2.02
2014 275

258

37/266



EDINETOOOO
O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)

ooOoooOoo
2014 12 31 4,670 2013 7,432
2014 2013
( ) ( )

2,418 2,441

2,227 4,912

5 3

4,650 7,356

20 76

( )

699 684

230 306

2,310 4,950

1,411 1,416

4,650 7,356

( )

2,652 2,914

1,489 3,932

459 421

50 89

4,650 7,356

4,670 3,097
2014 2013 12 31
2014 2013 12 31
Ba3

BB

2014 12 31 7,196 2013 6,244
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2013 12 31 236.8
2014 12 31 77.2 2013 12 31 209.0
2014 12 31 61.0 EBITDA 1.7
2013 120 2014 371
2014 12 31 4.8 2013
4.7
2014 2013

94 29 2014

30 2013 2014

2013 12 31 247 91
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2014 952 2013 331
2014 2013 ()
( )
651 261 +149.4
253 65 +289.2
48 5 +860.0
952 331 +187.6
2014
2014
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
(
( )
)
2.3 2.1 73.8 84.6 20.4 19.6 73.5 71.9
1.5 1.5 84.1 86.7 30.2 30.2 90.7 96.9
0.2 0.2 87.0 92.5 4.7 4.2 90.5 90.0
) 2013
2014 12 31 2013 12 31 11.5 2.7 10.7
1.1 11.8 2013
12 31 1,320 2014 12 31 1,234
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2014 2013
2014
17 47
26
2014 12 31
100,000
6.90

61.3

682

635

GCM

27

100

41/266

EDINETOOOO

O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)

37

23

92
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2014
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37
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37 2014 19

2014
33 415 2013
423

2014 12 31 62.3 2013 39.2 37.7 2013 60.8
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2015 19

50,000,000,000 14,648,421,111 35,351,578,889
2015 19
14,648,421,111 0.0001
0.0001
14,648,421,111
2014 12 31
2013 10 23 1,169,591,111 11,695,911,111 116,959.1111 1,169,591.1111
2014 11 2,952,510,000 14,648,421,111 295,251 1,464,842.1111
2013
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2014 12 31
3,181,820,000 21.721
CDH 1,745,452,290 11.916
CDH 11 968,530,000 6.612
5,895,802,290 40.249
2014 12 31
2014 12 31 3,000
2014
2014
7.09
3.75
10 11 12
7.09 6.76 6.44 5.33 4.64
6.20 6.17 4.95 4.47 3.75
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Wan Long

Wan Long 74
2013
2012
000895

Henan Luohe Meat Products Processing United Factory

2008 2013
Congress 2001

Husbandry and Economy
1999

Titles Adjudication Committee (Economic Disciplines )

2007 10 16
12 31
20

12
2011 12

40

1991

EDINETOOOO
O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)

ooooood
2010 11 26
2013 10
1968
1984
1998 2003

China’ s National People’ s
China Meat Association

Henan University of Animal

The Henan Business College
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Jiao Shuge
Jiao Shuge 49 2006 28 2010 11 26
2013 12 31 2012 20
000895
2006 27 2007 2009 27 2009 12 16 CDH CDH
CDH CDH
CDH
1989 1995 710 China Aerospace Science and
Technology Corporation 1995 12 2002
China International Capital Corporation Ltd.
China Mengniu Dairy Co., Ltd. 02319
2004 18 2012 12 2012 12
2005 13 2012
22 China Yurun Food Group Limited
01068 2005 11 30 2014 16
China Shanshui Cement Group Ltd. 00691
2007 12 35 Joyoung Company Limited
002242 1986 Shandong
University 1989 10 No.2 Research Institute of Ministry

of Aeronautics and Astronautics of China
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Guo Lijun

Guo Lijun 44 2013 12 31 2014

2013 10
20 1993 1996
Henan Luche Meat Products Processing United Factory
1996 2001
Luohe Chinachem Shanghui Packaging Industry Co., Ltd.
Luohe Chinachem Shuanghui Plastic Processing Co., Ltd. 2001
2012
2012 2013 10
000895
1994 Henan Radio and Television University
2004 12 Graduate School of Renmin
University 1994 10
PRC Ministry of Personnel
Yang Zhijun
Yang Zhijun 41 2007 10 16 2014 21
17 1996
12 ( ) Chinachem Shuanghui Industry (Group) Co., Ltd.
1997 2003 2004 2007
2007 2008
2010 12 2012
2013 2013 2013 10
2013 10 2014
1996 Sichuan University

2005 12 EMBA
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c 60 2013 12 31
2001 10
30
1999 2000
2001 2006
1975
Zhang Taixi
Zhang Taixi 42 2013 12 31
2012 25

Luohe Canned Foods Company Limited
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2006
2006 2013 2013
2008 10 24
CFG
1980 1999
2000 10 2001
1994
2014 17
000895
1996 2007

Shuanghui Development Meat Products Divison Factory

Ham Sausage Factory of Shuanghui

Development 2008 2008
Tangshan Shineway Food Co., Ltd. 2008 10 2011
Jiangsu Huai’ an Shuanghui Food Co., Ltd. 2011 2012
000895

1995
College
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Huang Ming
Huang Ming 51 2014 16
1996 1998
1998 2001 2001 2005
Cheung Kong Grauduate School of Business 2004 2005
2008 2010 2006
2009 Shuanghai University of Finance and Economics
2005 2010
China Europe International Business School
2008 Yingli
Green Energy Holding Company Limited YGE 2009
10
01777 2013 10
00867
2010 360 Qihoo 360 Technology Co. Ltd.
QIHU 2011 Guosen
Securities Co. Ltd. Tebon Securities Co., Ltd.
1985 1991
1996
Lee Conway Kong Wai
Lee Conway Kong Wai 60 2014 16
Merry Garden Holdings Limited
01237
Limited 00051 -Chaowel Powiar- Holdings 2010
0223 West China Cement Limited 2010
01117 2010 12
) o Gome Electrical Appliances 2011
Holdings Limited 00493
5100 ) Tibet 5100 Water 2011
Resources Holdings Ltd. 0_11_15
- 06030CITIC Selerlt!es Comprilny 2011 11
Limited 0222 NVC-L—lghtlng Hofdlng 2012 11
oldings Ltd. 012Y3aOShI|I International 2013 11
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2009 10 2013 China Taiping Insurance Holdings
Company Limited 00966 2009 10 2011 12
SVX
1980 2009
2008 1980
1988
Lau, Jin Tin Don
Lau, Jin Tin Don 58 2014 16
Spring Real Estate Investment Trust
1426
Spring Asset Management Limited 2013

Yuexiu Property Company Limited
0123 2005 2010
Yuexiu Real Estate Investment Trust

0405 Yuexiu REIT Asset Management Limited

SFO
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Qiao Haili
Qiao Haili 51 2014 11
000895
2012 2014 10 2009 2012
1986
1995 1995
1998 1998
2004 10 Luohe Shuanghui Canned Foods Company Limited
2001 11 2004 10 2004 11 2009
Shuanghui Development Meat Processing Division Factory
1986 Zhengzhou Junior College of Animal Husbandry and
Verterinary Medicine 2005 3
Graduate School of Renmin University 1998 12
Ma Xiangjie
Ma Xiangjie 43 2012
000895
17 2008 2010
2010 2012
2001 Shuanghui Development Ingredients
Factory 2003 Luohe Shineway Haiying Seasoning
Food Co., Ltd. 2004 Luohe Tianrui Biochemicals
Co., Ltd. 2012 10 23 Luohe Shuanghui Food
Sales Co., Ltd. 2013 22 Fuxin Shuanghui
Meat Processing Co., Ltd. 2013 22
Heilongjiang Baoquanling Shuanghui Beidahuang Food Co., Ltd. 2013 11
Shaanxi Shuanghui Food Co., Ltd. 1996
Henan Agricultural University 2005
Graduate School of Renmin University 2010
Northwest A&F University 2002 12
Wang Yufen
Wang Yufen 47 2012
000895 1998 15
25 1987 10
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Products Processing United Factory Meat Product Branch
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Henan Luohe Meat Products Processing United Factory Meat

Henan Luohe Meat

1992 1993

Henan Luohe Meat Products Processing United Factory Meat Product Branch

1993 1998 Henan Luohe Meat Products
Processing United Factory Food Institute 1997
Zhengzhou University of Light Industry 2002
Liu Songtao
Liu Songtao 38 2012
000895 2003
2012 2003
Shuanghui Development Luohe Slaughter Factory 2002 2003
Luohe Huayi Food Co., Ltd.
2000 Henan

University

You Mu

You Mu 47 2014 11

000895
2007 2014 11
2014 14 2002
2003 2003 2004
2004 2004 10
2004 10 2007 2007 11 2012
1991
2005 Graduate School of Renmin University

1994 10

of Personnel
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v
v
2015

1986

2005 2006
1977

1990
1995

100

1993

50
2010
61

2012
1996

60

2008
1978
1983
61

2013 10
2003
2015 30
2013 10
1975
1995
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2010
12

2015

1991
1994
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2015
2012
1998
2006
1996
1995
1996 2006
2006 2013
2011
1996
2006

Animex Sp. z.o.o.
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25 2006
1980 1986
Chau Ho
Chau Ho 49 2014 2011
2014 China Rongsheng Heavy Industries Group Holdings
Limited 01101 2010 2011
00845
20 1994 10 2010
1991 11 1992 11
2003 1994
2006 2008
2014
14
— —(i)

14
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10

2014 12 31 C

)

A.2.1

)

3.13
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ESG
2/2 N/A N/A 0/0 N/A 0/0 N/A N/A
2/2 N/A N/A N/A 0/0 N/A N/A N/A
2/2 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
C 2/2 N/A N/A N/A 0/0 0/0 N/A N/A
2/2 N/A N/A N/A 0/0 0/0 N/A N/A
2/2 N/A 0/0 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
2/2 2/2 0/0 0/0 N/A N/A N/A N/A
2/2 2/2 0/0 N/A N/A 0/0 N/A N/A
2/2 2/2 N/A 0/0 0/0 N/A N/A N/A

N/A

CPD

CPD
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55,000,000 55,500,000 1
76,500,000 77,000,000 1
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100,000,000 1
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12 31
2014 2013

22,243 22,243 11,253 11,253
(18,297) (682) (18,979) (9,457) (23) (9,480)

3,946 (682) 3,264 1,79 (23) 1,773
(1,511) (1,511) (539) (539)
(758) (758) (335) (335)

635 635 17 17

92 92 47 47

102 102 84 84

14 14 19 19
(110) (110) 787) @787)
@371) @371 (120) (120)

18 18 6 6
45 45 ) 3)

1,375 45 1,420 121 4 162
(432) (16) (448) (214) (15) (229)
943 29 972 (93) 26 (67)
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6 2,672,496 2,672,496 1,352,048 1,352,048
(2,198,385) (81,942)  (2,280,327) (1,136,259) (2,763) (1,139,022)

474,112 (81,942) 392,170 215,789 (2,763) 213,026
(181,547) (181,547) (64,761) (64,761)
(91,074) (91,074) (40,250) (40, 250)

76,295 76,295 2,043 2,043

11,054 11,054 5,647 5,647

7 12,255 12,255 10,093 10,093

8 1,682 1,682 2,283 2,283
9 (13,217) (13,217) (94,558) (94,558)
10 (44,576) (44,576) (14,418) (14,418)

2,163 2,163 721 721
5,407 5,407 (360) (360)

1 165,206 5,407 170,613 14,538 4,926 19,464
13 (51,905) (1,922) (53,827) (25,712) (1,802) (27,514)
113,301 3,484 116,786 (11,174) 3,124 (8,050)
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12 31
2014 2013
52
(118) 18
(118) 70
(231) 91
29 5)
(202) 86
(320) 156
652 89
766 (263)
206 196
972 (67)
470 (143)
182 232
652 89
6.44 (2.62)
6.11
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46

6,248

(14,178) 2,163

(14,178) 8,411

(27,755) 10,934

3,484 (601)

(24,270) 10,333

(38,448) 18,743

78,338 10,693
92,035 (31,599)

24,751 23,549
116,786 (8,050)
56,471 (17,181)

21,867 27,875

78,338 10,693

15
7.74 (3.15)
7.34
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12 31
2014 2013

16 4,582 550,527 4,132 496,460
17 228 27,394 208 24,991
18 220 26,433 204 24,511
19 1,815 218,072 1,835 220,475
20 1,746 209,782 1,780 213,867
21 392 47,099 415 49,862
22 147 17,662 121 14,538
25 40 4,806 123 14,778
28 9 1,081 9 1,081
33 88 10,573 42 5,046
79 9,492 120 14,418

9,346 1,122,922 8,989 1,080,028

18 1,014 121,832 1,116 134,087
23 1,900 228,285 1,808 217,231
24 845 101,527 870 104,531
25 263 31,599 242 29,076
17 5 601 5 601
65 7,810 37 4,446

26 209 25,111 151 18,143
27 73 8,771 6 721
28 22 2,643 57 6,849
28 978 117,507 875 105,131
5,374 645,686 5,167 620,815

29 850 102,128 851 102,248
30 1,457 175,059 1,146 137,692
44 5,287 44 5,287

27 52 6,248 21 2,523
32 699 83,985 684 82,183
32 20 2,403 76 9,131
3,122 375,108 2,822 339,063

2,252 270,578 2,345 281,752

11,598 1,393,500 11,334 1,361,780

32 3,951 474,713 6,672 801,641
30 140 16,821 150 18,023
31 24 2,884 25 3,004
33 838 100,686 824 99,004
34 6 721 9 1,081
35 589 70,768 516 61,997
5,548 666,592 8,196 984,749

6,050 726,908 3,138 377,031

36 1 120 1 120
5,129 616,249 2,274 273,221

5,130 616,370 2,275 273,341

920 110,538 863 103,689

6,050 726,908 3,138 377,031

68 169 2015 3 25

Mr. Wang Long Mr. Guo Lijun
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C @) C@®  C©
2013 1 1 1 581 (55) 151 32 152 927 1,789 761 2,550
(263) (263) 196 (67)
33 33 19 52
74 74 17 91
18 18 18
® ®) ®)
107 13 (263) (143) 232 89
+ + +
(136) (136)
(©) ()]
629 629 10 639
18 (18)
+ 629 18 (18) 629 (130) 499
2013 12 31 1 581 (55) 258 674 170 646 2,275 863 3,138
766 766 206 972
(207) (207) (24) (231)
(118) (118) (118)
29 29 29
(207) (89) 766 470 182 652
+ 2,361 2,361 2,361
(40) (40) (40)
(145) (145)
6 6
64 64 14 78
30 (30)
+ 2,321 64 30 (30) 2,385 (125) 2,260
2014 12 31 1 2,902 (55) 51 649 200 1,382 5,130 920 6,050
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C @) Cm
120 69,807  (6,608) 18,143 3,845 18,263 111,379 214,948 91,434 306,383
(31,599) (31,599) 23,549  (8,050)
3,965 3,965 2,283 6,248
8,891 8,891 2,043 10,934
2,163 2,163 2,163
(601) (601) (601)
12,856 1,562 (31,599) (17,181) 27,875 10,693
+ + +
(16,340)  (16,340)
(481) (481)
75,574 75,574 1,202 76,776
2,163 (2,163)
+ 75,574 2,163 (2,163) 75,574 (15,620) 59,955
120 69,807  (6,608) 30,999 80,981 20,426 77,617 273,341 103,689 377,031
92,035 92,035 24,751 116,786
(24,871) (24,871)  (2,884) (27,755)
(14,178) (14,178) (14,178)
3,484 3,484 3,484
(24,871)  (10,693) 92,035 56,471 21,867 78,338
+ 283,674 283,674 283,674
(4,806) (4,806) (4,806)
(17,422) (17,422)
721 721
7,690 7,690 1,682 9,372
3,605 (3,605)
+ 278,868 7,690 3,605 (3,605) 286,558  (15,019) 271,539
120 348,675  (6,608) 6,128 77,977 24,030 166,047 616,370 110,538 726,908
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®
12 31

2014 2013
1,420 170,613 162 19,464
(18)  (2.163) (13) (1,562)
371 44,576 120 14,418
(18)  (2.163) (6) (721)
@5)  (5.407) 3 360
353 42,413 173 20,786
5 601 2 240
6 721 1 120
4)  (2.884) (14) (1,682)
8 961 5 601
3 360 3 360
(92)  (11,054) ) (5.647)
2 240 1 120
4 481 3 360
78 9,372 639 76,776
2,053 246,668 1,032 123,995
161 19,344 130 15,620
(141)  (16,941) (146)  (17,542)
79 9,492 (201)  (24,150)
128 15,379 169 20,305
2,280 273,942 984 118,228
(398)  (47,820) (209)  (25,111)
(322)  (38,688) (75) (9,011)
1,560 187,434 700 84,105
11 1,322 11 1,322
3 360 5 601
(699)  (83,985) (295)  (35,444)
11 1,322 17 2,043
(34)  (4,085) (14) (1,682)
38 1)  (1.322)  (4.652)  (558,938)
@ (481)
(2,304) (276,826)  (3.677)  (441,792)
2,266 272,260 3,646 438,067
(30)  (3.605) (60) (7.209)
66 7,930 8 961
(721)  (86,628)  (5,015)  (602,552)
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12 31
2014 2013
(191)  (22,949) (90)  (10,814)
2,284 274,423 + +
2,689 323,083 5,997 720,540

(5.440) (653,616)  (1,492)  (179,264)

® (481)
6 721

(652)  (78,338) 4,411 529,982
187 22,468 96 11,534
(28)  (3.364) 29 3,484
799 96,000 674 80,981
958 115,104 799 96,000
978 117,507 875 105,131
(20)  (2,403) (76) (9,131)
958 115,104 799 96,000

75/266



®

WH

2014 12 31

2014

IFRS
IFRS
IFRS
IFRS
1AS
1AS
1AS
1AS
1AS

IFRS 10
IFRS 10
IAS 28

IFRS
IFRS

14
15
11

16
16
19
27

2013

38

IAS 38
IAS 41

IAS 28

IFRS 12

2014

2014 12 31

48

26

(

IFRS
IFRS

IFRS )

IFRS

2010-2012
2011-2013
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12018
2 2016
3 2017
4 2014
5 2016
6 2014

IFRS

2009 IFRS

2010

2013
IFRS

IFRS

IAS 39

FVTOCI

IFRS

IFRS

IFRS

IFRS

2012-2014

IAS 39
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IFRS

2014
b)
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IFRS

IFRS 15
2014

IFRS 15 IFRS 15

IFRS 15

IFRS 15

IFRS 15

IFRS 15

IAS 19
IAS 19

IAS 19

IFRS 2012-2014
IFRS 2012-2014

IFRS (
IFRS

IFRS

(2011 12
IFRS

IAS 18

IFRS

2013
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1AS IAS 36
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MPF
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12
2014
12 31 1,234 2013 1,320 18
olell
olell
olell
2014 12 31 1,815 2013 1,835

19
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CGU
CGU
CGU
2014 12 31 1,746 2013 1,780 20
2014 12 31
1,900 2013 1,808 23
2014 12 31
845 2013 870 24
2014 12 31 118

2013 18 35
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2014 2013

209 151
73 6

69 120
351 277
901 1,007
31 66
978 875
1,910 1,948
1,496 1,199
4,650 7,356
20 76
6,166 8,631
52 21
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2014 2013
2
1 +
21 *
17 6
380 413
16 *
2 4
2013
2013
2013
2014 2013
14 14
26
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2014 12 31 2,003 2013 1,164

-12 - -
2014 12 31

844 6 850 850

646 646 646

0.30 ¥ 1 1 3 20 25 25

5.60 20 20 20

5.50 2 3 485 1,105 1,498 3,093 2,899

3.09 70 224 273 1,313 1,880 1,751

1,582 234 759 2,421 1,518 6,514 6,191

— 52 ¥ ¥ ¥ 52 52
2013 12 31

851 851 851

348 ¥ 348 348

0.30 * 1 1 3 21 26 26

5.60 76 76 76

5.90 299 114 12 1,190 1,884 3,499 2,887

3.97 80 328 445 4,245 5,098 4,469

1,654 443 458 5,438 1,905 9,898 8,657

— 21 ¥ ¥ ¥ 21 21
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2013 12 31

2014
69 4 73
209 209
16 53 69
85 266 351
30 22 52

2013
6 6
151 151
54 66 120
54 223 277
15 6 21
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2014 2013
11,876 6,212
9,368 4,543
587 191
412 307
22,243 11,253

Q) (i) (i) @iv)

(i)
(i)
(iv)

2014 12 31
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4,039 3,913 72 410 8,434
(741) (65) (233) (1,039)
4,039 3,172 7 177 7,395
711 135 4 ) 773
7,173 8,202 3,385 18,760
(2,662) (2,863) (5,525)
7,173 5,540 522 13,235
450 90 337 (129) 748
705 1,042 561 307 2,615
(41) (386) (503) (72) (1,002)
664 656 58 235 1,613
33 (14) 71 3 93
11,917 13,157 4,018 717 29,809
(41) (3,789) (3,431) (305) (7,566)
11,876 9,368 587 412 22,243
1,194 211 412 (203) 1,614
102
(33)
45
(371)
18
45
1,420
4,074 3,644 82 526 8,326
(634) (66) (219) (919)
4,074 3,010 16 307 7,407
678 113 7 (36) 762
1,969 1,949 889 4,807
(662) (717) (1,379)
1,969 1,287 172 3,428
79 93 (41) 7 104
180 384 156 720
1) (138) (153) (302)
169 246 3 418
2 ) 25 @) 20
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6,223 5,977 1,127 526 13,853
(€5D) (1,434) (936) (219) (2,600)
6,212 4,543 191 307 11,253
759 201 ) (65) 886
84
(732)
41
(120)
6
(©)]
162
10
2014 2013
2,850 2,449
5,254 5,226
1,036 1,020
9,140 8,695
2014 2013
55 51
18 13
15 16
4 +
10 4
102 84
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Yang Zhijun

10

11
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2014 2013
24 14
®) @
® 7
3
14 19
2014 2013
(78) (639)
(132)
@D (©)
' ®)
@ ®)
(110) (787)
Wan Long
597
2014 2013
(72) ™
(135) (V)
(165) (70)
1 1
(371 (120)
2014 2013
4 3
2 +
353 173
6 1
2 1
8 5
3 3
4 3
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76 60
75 36
2,939 1,192
12.
Wan Long Yang Zhijun Guo Lijun C. Larry
Pope Zhang Taixi 2014 12 31 2013
12 31 Cao Junsheng Chou Tse Young David Guo
Lijun C. Larry Pope Zhang Taixi
2014 Lee Kong Wai Conway Huang Ming Lau
Jin Ting Don Jiao Shuge
2014
()
Wan Long 2 9 11
Guo Lijun * 5 5
Jiao Shuge * * *
Yang Zhijun + 2 + 3
C. Larry Pope 4 9 1 3 6 23
Zhang Taixi * 6 * 6
* 7 9 1 25 6 48
Lee Conway Kong Wai * * *
Huang Ming * * *
Lau Jin Tin Don * * ¥
2014 12 31 * 7 9 1 25 6 48
2013
()
Wan Long * * 418 418
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Guo Lijun
Jiao Shuge * +
Yang Zhijun 182 ¥ 182
C. Larry Pope
Zhang Taixi
Cao Junshen * *
Chou Tse Young David * *
2013 12 31 600 * 600
N
)
( ) 2014 12 31 2013 12 31
( ) 2014 12 31 2013 12 31 Wan Long
2014 12 31 2013
2013
2014 2013
- 3 +
- + 6
- 9 +
23 9
2014 2013
20,500,001 21,000,000 1
25,000,001 25,500,000 1
30,000,001 30,500,000
31,000,001 31,500,000 1
51,000,001 51,500,000 1
55,000,001 55,500,000 1
76,500,001 77,000,000 1
13
2014 2013
(183) (180)
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(G EIT
EIT

(i EIT

Giii

(iv  EIT

EIT

10
10

9.

EIT

15

EIT

2010

8

27

EIT
86

2012 58
2009 203
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2008

OooooOodd
(154) ©)
(26) (40)
(85) )
(448) (229)
EIT
2008 149 EIT
EIT
15
15
2008
91
2008 12 31 2009 12 31
35
2014 2013
1,420 162
(429) (30.2) (41) (25.0)
5 0.3 2 1.2
12 0.8 @ (0.6)
37 2.6 1 0.6
(41) (2.9) (181) (111.8)
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2013 12 31

14

2013 12 31

15

Holdings Limited

2. 2013 12 31

2014 12 31

37(a)
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ooooOoog
® (0.2) (©) 1.9)
3 0.2
35 2.5 38 23.5
7 0.5 3 1.9
) (0.1 ©) (2.6)
(22) (1.6) (21) (13.0)
5 3.0
(@) (0.1) 27 (16.7)
(42) 3.0
(©) (0-4)
(448) (31.6) (229) (141.4)
33
2014 2013
766 (263)
11,904.31 10,051.75
631.58
0.01
12,535.90 10,051.75
Chang Yun

High Zenith Limited

37(b)
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16

2013

2013 12 31

2014 12 31

2013

2013 12 31

2014 12 31

2014 12 31
2013 12 31

2014 12 31

2014 12 31

2014 12 31
25
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37(¢)

812 72 772 62 1,718
2 38 34 3 80
16 132 160 317
38 497 830 66 997 140 2,530
104 72 (176)
(&) (10) ® (24) (40)
497 1,790 146 1,983 189 4,605
® (48) (©) (42) ®) (107
40 5 186 687 918
1 4 3 8
280 3 341 (624)
(©) (15) (©) (20) (41)
486 2,051 148 2,451 247 5,383
112 28 167 307
5 1 7 13
49 17 107 173
* * 1 1
) 3) (15) (21)
163 43 267 473
@ 1 @ @
92 18 243 353
2 2
(13) 3) ) (25)
243 59 499 801
486 1,808 89 1,952 247 4,582
497 1,627 103 1,716 189 4,132
1,007 2013 792
273 2013 240
2013 26
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17

12 31

12 31

12 31

18

14

50

114
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2013

2014 2013
236 213
©) 9
34 14
264 236
23 17

8

31 23
233 213
5 5
228 208
233 213

2014 2013
1,484 1,336
2,132 2,010
7,086 7,057
10,702 10,403
1,061 1,047
11,763 11,450
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50
14 20 260
(i
(i
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
1,116 16 204 7 1,320 23
(15) 5 @ + an 5
7,807 1,290 209 35 8,016 1,325
38 1,184 196 1,380
70 39 22 8 92 47
(7,752)  (1,362) (182) (32)  (7,934)  (1,394)
(©)) @ (©) @
(212) (56) (28) ®) (240) (64)
12 31 1,014 1,116 220 204 1,234 1,320
.
2014 2013
1,014 1,116
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220 204
1,234 1,320
2014 12 31
- 1,014 1,014
- 220 220
1,234 1,234
2013 12 31
- 1,116 1,116
- 204 204
1,320 1,320
2014 2013

o 2,141 2,357

@ 67 69

® 1,328 1,564

@

42 50

o 206 225

W 109 139

@ 30 34

® 173 182

0]
5.9 6.5
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19
2014 2013

1,835 205
an 8
38 5 1,622

38(a) ®
12 31 1,815 1,835

12 31
12 31 1,815 1,835
CGU
CGU
2014 2013

53 55
153 158

31

1,504

74
1,815 213
1,622
1,815 1,835
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2013 12 31
cecu
2014 12 31 2013 12 31 oely]
ccu

2014 2013
13.20-32.01 13.49-40.93 0.1-0.7
2 2 2
9 10 9

2014 2013
8.64-21.39 12.66-13.06 0.8-4.4
2 2 2
9 10 9
2.1-4.4
3
10

CGU
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2014

2013

2013

2014

2014
2013

12

12

12

12

12
12

31

31

31

31

31
31
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356 5 362
13 13
38 1,305 55 40 3 1,403
4 4
1,678 5 55 40 3 1,782
@7 €Y (28)
1,651 5 54 40 3 1,754
1
.
1 * * 1
1 * * 2
4 2 ¥ 6
5 2 * 8
1,651 5 49 38 3 1,746
1,678 5 54 40 3 1,780
10 20
CGU
CGU
2014 2013
53 54
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OooooOodd
315 323
235
965
88
1,656 377
1,306
1,656 1,683
2013 12 31
CGU Cceu
2014 12 31 2013 12 31 CGU
2014 2013 2014
i 13.20-32.01 13.49-40.93 0.1-0.7
i 2 2 2
il 12 13 11
2014 2013 2014
i 8.60-21.39 12.66-13.06 0.80-12.90
il 2 2 2
iii 12 13 11
2014
i 5.8-5.9
il 3
il 11
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21
2014 2013
347
367 60
367 407
25 8
392 415
2014 12 31 2013 12 31
2014 2013
WH
40 40
Dupont Shineway Luohe Protein Co., Ltd
43 43
Nantong SKT New Material Co., Ltd
48 48
Dupont Shineway Luohe Food Co., Ltd.
37 37
Campofrio Food Group, S.A.
WH 37

Sigma & WH Food Europe, S.L.
WH

2014

IFRS
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WH
2014 2013
913 967
2,046 2,140
(1,047) (1,164)
(1,022) (1,120)
WH
2014 2013
2,561 683
30 1
2 (€))
12 +
WH
2014 2013
890 823
37 37
330 305
42
330 347
62
2014
WH WH
2014 12 31 WH 98
WH
2014 2013
7 6
8 6
62 68

WH
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22
2014 2013
111 124
36 3)
147 121
2014 12 31 2013 12 31
50
Granjas Carroll de Mexico S. de R.L. de C.V.
Norson Holding, S. de R.L. de C.V.
Carolina Cold Storage Limited Partnership
23
2014 2013
695 595
76 89
1,129 1,124
1,900 1,808
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-30
31 90
91 180
2014 12 31
72 2013 92
2014 12 31
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2014 2013
848 864
0) [©)
841 861
4 9
845 870
30
2014 2013
773 778
64 79
8 13
845 870
90

68 2013 71
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2014 2013

€) '

1 * (6]

12 31 @) (3)

25

2014 2013

55 134

29 30

54 48

80 78

36 36

* 4

1 3

48 32

303 365

263 242

40 123

303 365
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2014
4.6

27

12 31
5.8

2014 12 31

2013 12 31

2014

2014

2014
2013

12 31

12 31

12 31

2013

6.25

2013 12 31

EDINETOOOO
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2014 2013
209 151
2014 2013

+ 2 +
5 23 13
60 * 1 1
65 25 3 14

450,000 9,195,000 2016 12

6,230,000 2014

2013
24 19
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oOoOooodn
2014 12 31
42,575,000 99,580,000 2015 12
346,500 827,300 2015 12
103,280,000 1,847,680,000 2015
10,966,921 34,363,900 2015
2013 12 31
42,575,000 52,575,000 2014
346,500 405,350 2014 12
81,600,000 733,160,000 2014
23,615,262 34,543,408 2014
2014 12 31 29 2013
2014 2013
1 + +
1 8 *
6 9 * 7
10 3 *
8 27 3 7
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2014 12 31
600,000 414,600,000 2016
490,000 24,640,000 2016 12
18,500 2016
75,000 3,545,000 2016 11
85,000 2015
8,030,000 11,040,000 BTU 2016 12
6,888,000 2016 12
6,272,810 85,251,053 2015
2013 12 31
1,560,000 403,840,000 2014 12
25,000 1,825,000 2015
25,000 2014
1,820,000 2015
9,680,000 12,380,000 BTU 2016
1,260,000 2,016,000 2014
8,072,402 55,143,799 2014
28
2014 12 31 0.06 4.34 2013 0.05 4.13
0.01 3.60 2013 4.75
2014 12 31
21 2013 62
2013
29
30
2014 2013
850 851
+
850 851
-
2014 2013
0-30 646 756
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OooooOodd
31 90 170 87
91 180 28 8
181 365 6
850 851
30
2014 2013
378 342
297 78
156 196
140 105
114 109
70 65
50 48
41 35
37 40
35 41
34 +
34 36
31 25
35 27 26
43(b) 9 8
34 2 5
31 1 1
46
141 90
1,597 1,296
1,457 1,146
140 150
1,597 1,296
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31

2014 12 31 26 2013 27
2014 12 31 0.3 2013
0.3

2014 2013 2014 2013
1 1 1 1
1 1 1 1
3 3 3 3
20 21 20 21
25 26 25 26
25 26
30
@ €))
24 25
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Ogoooood
32
2014 2013
2022 6.625 1,014 1,021
2017 7.750 520 539
2018 5.250 492 490
2021 5.875 392 391
2,418 2,441
83 4,300
2,144 612
1 1
4 2
4,650 7,356
20 76
699 684
230 306
2,310 4,950
1,411 1,416
4,650 7,356
(699) (684)
3,951 6,672
2,899 2,887
1,751 4,469
4,650 7,356
4,536 7,259
60 6
4 4
4
46 87
4,650 7,356
(i) 2014 12 31 1.6 5.5 2013  1.48 6
LIBOR 2.5 LIBOR 4 2013  1.38 WIBOR 2.5
(ii) 2014 12 31 0.6 0.9 2013 0.6 0.9
(iii) 2014 12 31 5.6 2013 5.6
(iv)
2013 12 31 4,000
2013 LIBOR 3.5 4.5
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OooooOodd
1,500
LIBOR 2.48 3.08
2014 12 31 2013 12 31
41
2014 2013

88 42

(838) (824)

(750) (782)
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2013 12 31

2014 12 31

+

2013 1 1

2013 12 31

2014 12 31

+
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ooOooooo
+ 3 3 + 14 3 2 25
+ + + + + 1 1
38 11) 43 222 10 264
+ 1 26 + 22 (23) 9 35
(11) 2 )
+ 4 18 + 79 191 24 316
* * * @ + (€)) (©))
38 1 1
* @ (10) * 41 (19) 12) @
+ 75 © 66
+ 3 9 + 119 247 378
* 12) 117) (129)
* * ®) ®)
38 (521) (401) (922)
(19) (8) 2 (15) (2) (42)
(540) (20) (521) (15) () (1,098)
+ + 5 9 14
38 48 48
9 2 (19) (16) (60) (84)
* (8) (8)
(531) (18) (487) (31) (61) (1,128)
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2014 12 31

314

- 2014
- 2015
- 2016
- 2017
- 2018
- 2018

1,390

34

35

2029

2013

30

754

333
74

2013 11
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407 2013
2013 242
2013 72
2014 12 31
2014 2029
2014 2013
5
8 5
6 20
9 2
6 9
24 20
53 61
2014 2013
2 5
6 9
8 14
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65 40 45
2014 12 31
12 31
2014 2013

4.30 5.25

4 4
1,214 2013 1,126
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30

46
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2014 2013
49 10
24 7
73 17
2014 2013
61 38
(254) 9)
(193) 29
75 11)
(118) 18
2014 2013
1,816 1,653
(1,214) (1,126)
602 527
27 26
575 501
602 527
2014 2013
1,653
1,652
49 10
84 21
(224) (39)
254 9
1,816 1,653
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2014 2013
1,126
1,081
60 14
191 32
(224) (39)
61 38
12 31 1,214 1,126
2014 12 31
12 31
2014 2013
97 53
3
31 28
44 33
36 40
9 15
75 43
26 21
5 10
128 139
75 96
26 34
14 18
17 16
23 23
297 343
204 112
60 56
36 38
1 1
1,207 1,119
7 7
1,214 1,126
2014 12 31
455 715 37 2013 382 698

10
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50 113
113
2014 12 31
2014 12 31 2013 12 31
102 0-4 63 0-4
459 30-50 456 30-50
555 33-55 512 33-55
98 5-20 95 5-20
1,214 1,126
27 2013 33
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MPF MPF
MPF

2014 31 25,000 2014 30,000

401(K)

2014 12 31 65 2013 39
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36
0.0001
2013 2013 12 31 2014 12 31 50,000 5
2013 10,526.32 1
1,169.59 *
2013 12 31 11,695.91 1
a 2,567.40 +
b 385.11 +
2014 12 31 14,648.42 1
(@) 2014 0.0001
2,567,400,000 6.20
15,368 1,983
©) 2014 385,110,000 6.20
2,336 301
2013 2016 30 LIBOR 3.5
2,500
37
(a) 2010 2010 11 26
2013 12 26
2010
631,580,000
2010 Tricor Services Limited
2010
Teeroy Limited
2010 2010
2010

2010
2010
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2010
2010 2012
2012
631,580,000
12 26
2014
(b) 2013 10
2013
2013
2013
2013 10 23 2013
2013
2013 10 23
Limited
573,099,645 245,614,133

597
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oooooog
2010
2015
128
2013
3.0
2013
2013
2013
2013
0.0001 350,877,333
Wan Long Yang Zhijun
Sure Pass Holdings Limited
Rich Matrix Global
0.0001



(c) IPO
2014 21
2014
2014 1PO
243
2014 12 31

Yang Zhijun
2013 639

6.20

1PO

1PO

I1PO
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1PO

oOoOooodn

584,795,555

1,883
2014
6.66
6.20

10

42

2.06
Wan Long
78
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38
(a 2013 26 2013 28
34 49
2013 31 2018 500
5.25 2021 400 5.875
729 132
597 2013 12 31

2,530
196
1,403
371
124
1,184
1,322
765
211
144
251
(535)
(547)
(2,748)
(161)
(658)
(571)
3,281

4,903
(3,281)
1,622
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2013 12 31
58
2013
86
2014 12 31
(b) 2014 15

39

50

40
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OooooOodd
(4,903)
251
(4,652)
3,894
10,002
2013
2013 12 31
11
2014 2013
44 43
96 87
35 33
175 163
2014 2013
147 127

367 266
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41
2014 2013
25 66
2013
2014 2013
2014 12 31 2013 12 31
2016
SPV
SPV SPV
SPV SPV
2014 12 31 SPV 661 2013
539 2013 105
42
2014 10
515 25
2015 23 25
26 541

13 74 26
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(a

¢

(c

44

12

26
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2014 2013
8 11
47 47
21
2014 2013
12 31
2014 2013
5,000 4,355
234 102
20 42
254 144
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OooooOodd
5 9
197 229
202 238
52 (94)
5,052 4,261
1,292 3,703
3,760 558
1 1
2,902 581
61 61
759
37 (85)
3,760 558
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46

2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Henan Shuanghui Investment &
Development Co., Ltd.
26.74 26.74% 204 202 806 742
2 (6) 114 121
206 196 920 863
12 31

2014 2013
2,168 1,782
1,375 1,480
(897) (773)
® (10)
2,498 2,370
140 109
666 633
806 742

12 31

2014 2013
7,415 7,308
(6,730) (6,647)
685 661
481 459
28 34
176 168
685 661
2 59
851 629
(600) (323)
(395) (352)
(144) (46)
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2014 2013
52
(193) 29
75 (1)
(118) 70
(231) 91
46 @)
an 2
(202) 86
(320) 156
47
2015 275
2015 2015 2015
2015 275 258
2015 12
48
2014 12 31 2013 12 31
2014 2013
- 100.00 100.00
Rotary Vortex Limited 16,515,000,000
- 73.26 73.26
2,200,578,448
100.00 100.00
Smithfield Foods, Inc.
2013 26
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Fr tiwe s asnnchenc) Dicnier 312014

2014 2003
Resultz Resuits
baloa before
biglegsaal Binlagies| Diclcgocal Bicdcusical
fam valua tair value B vakue Bir value
adjestments  adjusiments Total adpusiments adustments Toz

Motes  USEmilios  US&'million US&million  USEmilion  USPmilion  USEmilian

Turtiomet & 22243 - 22243 11,253 - 11,253
Gt of s2les (18,297} (Ba {18,978 (2457 123 (9,450
Gross proft 1848 (B@z) 3364 1796 123 1773
Distnitustion and selling expenses {1,300} = {1311} 1535 - (535
Admenisirative supenses {758} - 158} {335 - 1335
Gain andng Fom agricuiual

produce ot fair walue less cosls

1o sl 3t the point of harvest - B35 85 . 17 i7

Gzn aidng Fom chengesin
fair value bt Costs bo sl of

becdogical asiets - @ ) - 4 47
Ofher iIncome 7 102 - o2 B4 - B4
Ofhir gains and lodsis 8 1% - % 9 - 19
Other expences 9 e = L (7B - -
Firancs costs 10 (i)} - am (120 = (120
Srare of profts of ssociztes 18 - 18 3 . 6
Srawe of profts dosses) of

junt veriures 45 - 45 {3 - 1]
Proft before taation 1 1,375 45 1,420 121 41 162
Tazetion 13 {430} (18 (%43} {214 {151 {229}
Proft foss) for the year w3 9 @ 93 25 (671
(sher com prehensive {pensel

Encome for the year: 46
{evns fhat will not be reclasaified

subsequenty b profit o bes:

- enchinge differences arisng

on iranslation bo presertation
ciTency - )
— remeasurement on defined
beneit pension plans {118} I
(118} 7o

B8 WH GROUP LIMITED 2014 Annual Report
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income {Eprﬂinm{ﬂ

oo ity e gackacd D mber 3_1., e

2014
Resuhy
betore
biglogicsl  Biclogical
Tair value fair value
adjustmests  adjustments Tolal adusments adusments Total
Noles USEmillion USEmillioe WSS million USE milion
Herns thaf may be recizssifed
surbsarunan Sy B profTof foss:
= emchange differences amsing
on transkifon of ke
operalion: 2an al
= fir value change in cash flow
hedge i) {5
{202y 3
ther comprahensive (expen el
Income for the yead, net of tax [kl f] 1585
Total comprehensice income
for dhwe year 652 5
Prodit (loss) for the year
atiributakte to
= gwners of the Company TE8 (2630
- mon-cortroling inferedds 208 196
a7z (&7
Tetal comprehenshie Income
lor The yesar alfribedabe to
= owners of the Company 470 {143
- ran-conbroling inferesds 182 232
652 5
Earnings (foss) per share 15
- Bagie (USS cents) G4 {262]
= Dilutesd {LESF cantsh Bl o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

M Decemter 31, 2014

2004 2013
Moles USEmillion LEEFmillion
Han-currenl assats
Froperty, plant and equipment 16 4,582 4,132
Prepaid lease payments 17 428 208
Biokogical assets 12 220 2
Goadwill 19 1815 1,835
Intangible assats b 1,748 1,780
Interests in associates 21 382 415
Intemsts in joint ventures 22 147 121
Other recaivables 25 40 123
Pladged bank deposits b 8 o
Deferred lax assels k<] Ba 42
Cther non-current assets T8 120
9348 8089
Cument assals

Bechogical assals 18 1,014 1,116
Inventories b 1,800 1,808
Trade and bills receivables 24 845 70
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables &5 283 242
Prepaid leaze payments v 5 5

Taxation recoverable &5 37

Available-for-sale investments 6 209 151
Derhvatives fingncial assels 27 73 1
Pledged bank deposits 5 iz 57
Bank balsnces and cash 28 478 a75
5374 5,167

Cument liabilities
Trace and bills payables 2 B50 851
Aconeed expenses and other payables £ 1,457 1,146
Taxation payabhke Er 44
Darivatives financtal abilities 27 52 2l
Botrowings 32 689 584
Bank ovardrafts 32 20 3
3. 122 2R22
Nt cumrent assels 2,252 2345
Total assets less current abdities 11588 11,334

J0 - WHGROUPLIMITED 2008 Annual Repart

148/266



EDINETOOOO
O0OO00O000000000000n0dnoOonod(e3osss)

Oooooooa

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
A December 31, 2014

2014 2013
Maoles USS'millson LEEE millson

Mon-current liabilities
Borrowings 32 3951 €672
Oither payables 30 140 150
Obligations under fmance leases 31 b 25
Diaferred tax liabilites 33 838 224
Desberrad ravenus 34 B 9
Persion liability and othes retirement benefits 35 589 Sl
5,248 81596
Met assets 6,050 3,138

Capital and reserves

Share capital 35 i 1
Resarves 5124 2,274
Exquity attributable to owners of the Company 5,130 2275
Men-contralling mterests o930 63
Total equity 6,050 3,138

The consolidated financial statements on pages &3 to 169 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors an March 25, 2015 and are signed on s behalf by

Mr. Wan Long Mr. Gua Lijun
Chialrman and Chisf Executive Officer Vice President and Chief Financizl Officer

WH GROUP LIMITED 2014 Annual fepore T1
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Fir tiwe s asnnchend) Dacniner 312014

Kbty M vy of ot oy
e Koa
e S Ciphl  Tahin B by R Tfrabey
apl  prenn L] IBmE EHE nesE i Y menh Tid
idmiien  Uwilse  [Swle  feles ol Svbe  (Gelm Snle el Gk
(ke (3 Rl Mokl

8 Ry 1, 2003 1 1 i) 141 b 18 m LRI M1 158

) ol it By - - - - - [>T I )
g oo ied b on laeciaia b

pemnbiin comuy - a . i} . - - i 1] L1}
g St g on aeskitos of

R iy, 1 H i 1l

R sl o6 s it puarin plas . . ‘ : i . . I8 i u

Fis o gy I cich o b . . [12] [l : il

Tkl enengohien s e or Bae it - - : y ] [N (148 n k]

e o ooy s d 1 . . : . J B _.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)
oo thely e gk Dcmber 3_1_, 14

Tcke.

a Capetsl meseres
Capitsl resanen regeements the ol ® betaren the by by which Hrer non-corirolieng nerests are sushed for the chanpe i the Gaoup's
ey ship indenesty in esiding subtdkanes ard e lair sabee of the consideration poid o receied

=} Crthwsr petenes

Aot Dacember 31 2004, other recseres edudexd e fier vl of Bha Shuire waitln, nemaaturenvent defuc] of the Gefinsd Dereld panion ciang and
i vl Pl d3eNil) i carh Miow Priackpds atinbartabls 0 B Gacups of LISS725 millon, UET100 sl and LS millon magectiely (2013
UEEEE] milon, purphus of DES1E milkon snd defict of USES mdlon mespectvely) (oo Mobes 37, 38 mnd 27 repectviy)

< (rira siotulory resene
Portusan b the elescant Chirss regubsbont and bhe rbcles of Rsmociation of the companies within the Gooup, sach of thém i reduinsd o bramnsier

1% ol ity profit, a cebarmingd wnder t China accouning regulbions, 1o the stilutory Surpliss rsene untd the resene aggregaies to 50% of B
registened capdal The tmnsier bo Hus regervd mus be msde before dignboton of dadends i shaehoiders

The: stabufory murpius resene shall only be weed to make gond prevous yeor's o sees of o ncrease the: redeant company's cpdsl. Upon approval
Ly e Pty o shareticers’ paral isaling, aach of B sevant SOMpIeed. Mdy dofvart AT dalubiey Jurfius fedanes irlo Cial, provadsd the
tetance ol Hhe resenie after such ivoue is not kees than 2% of the mgatersd capéal
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Fir tiwe s asnnchend) Dacniner 312014

2004 2013
Mok USEmillion LEEFmillion
Operating activities
Profit before taxation 1420 182
Adjustmeants for:
I mtarest inedme {18} {13}
Finance costs EFR 120
Share of profits of asseciates (18} (&)
Share of (profits) losses of joint ventures {45} 3
Depeecation of propey, plant and equiprsnt 353 173
Loss an disposal of property, plant and equipment 5 2
Amoriisation of infangible assets G 1
Gain on maturity of available-for-sake imestments (24} (14}
Releass of prepaid lease payments -] 5
Wirite-down of irventomes 3 3
Gain arising from changes in fair vatue less costs fo
sell of Biological assats (92} {an
Imipaisment koss on property, plant and equipment 2 !
Allowances on trade and othes recelvables 4 3
Share-bassd payments T8 639
Operating cash flows belore movements in working capital 2053 1052
Decrease In bological assels 161 130
Inenéase in inveniones (141} {14E)
Decrease {increase) intrade, biés and other recetvables 18 201}
Incredse in trade, bills and other payables 128 168
Cash from operations 2280 G2
Tamation pald {308} {2050
Interest paid (322 (75)
Net cash from operating activities 1,580 o0
Investing activities
Intefest receved 11 11
Dividends receied from associates 3 5
Purchase of propery, plant and equipment {699} {295}
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 11 17
Prepaid lease paymenls made {24) {14}
Met cash outfiow cn acquisition of subsidianesbusiness 33 LR b (4,652}
Payments far Intanglble assets - 1]
Purchage of available-for-sale ivestiments 12,304) (3,677}
Procesds from maturity of available-for-sale investments 2,286 3645
Placement of pledged bank deposis (300 ()
Withdrawal of pledged bank depaosits 56 ]
Met cash used in investing activities Tz {5,015
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
For tht v gewked Decamber 31, 2014

2084 2013
hote USS'millson LEEE millson
Financing activities
Dividands paid to ron-controlling intemests (18n (50}
Proceads from (sswe of shares, nat of transachon costs 208 =*
Proceeds from borowings, nel of iransaction costs 2,688 55897
Repaymant of bomowings {5.440) (1492}
Cash cutflow on acquisition of additional interests in subsidianes - ()
Capital contribution by non-controlling interests 8 .
Met cash (used in} from linancing activities (652) 4,411
Met increase in cash and cash equivalents a7 =
Effect of foretzn exchange rate changes (28) X
Cash and cash equivalonts at lanuary 1 Tas 674
Cash and cash equivalents 3t December 31 58 799
Analysiz of the balances of cash and cash eqguivalents
Bank balancss and cash g78 &8T5
Bank overdrafts {20} (7}
a58 79

Ltz than USE] midion
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fr tiwe s asnnchend) Dcrier 312014

1.  General
Wir Group Lirited (the "Cormpany®) was incorporated and registerad as an exempled company with limited liability
in the Cayman lslands under the Companies Law of the Cayman isiands. Its immediate hoiding company is Heroic
Jone Investrments Limiled (* Henoie Zome®) which i incorporated in the British Virgin Istands while s ullimate
hoking compary 5 Rise Grand Group Limited, akeo incoe porated in the British Virgn islands. The Company's
shares were listed on the Main Board of The $tock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (1he "Stock Exchange”} on

Aupgust B, 2014,

The address of the registered office of the Company and the address of its principal place of business are disclosed
in the =action headed "Corporate Information” in the annuad report.

The Company acts asan investment holding company. The consolidated financial statements of the Company
for the year ended Decamber 31, 2014 comprise the Compary and its subsidiares (ecofiectively referred 1o as the
"Group®) and the Group's interests in amsociates and interests in joint ventures. The Group is primarily invohed
in hog pradection, production and sakes of packaged meats and fresh pork. The prncipal activibes of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in Motz 42,

The furchional currency of the Company was Renminki ("RME"), a5 the main oparation of the Group it iasated in
Mainland Ching {"China®) before the goquisition of Smithfield Food, Inc, ("Smithfield”) on September 26, 2013
{the "Acquisition®) (see Mote 38) while the presentation cumency of the Group & Unided States Dallar ("LSE"),
33 the directors of the Company consider UST, belng an internationatly well-recognssad currency, can provide
mome maaningful information to the Company's investors. Given the significance of the acquisition of Smithfield to
the Group, the directors of the Company had resssessad the functional currency of the Company and decided 1o
change the functional cumency of the Campany and certain subsidiaries from RME to USS after the Acquisition
2% the rmajority of the Group's revenue i generaled in US3, which & the curmency of the primary economic
envirgnment in which the Group’s majr operating subsidianies and the relevant subsidiaries operate after the
acquisition of Srathfiald.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statéments {ﬁnn_tim_md]
Foor thts yasr eachacd Do sy 3_1_,.3514

2. Application of New and Revised International Financial Reporting Standard (“IFRSs")
Fer the purpose of prepanng and presenting the consafidated financial statements of the Group for the year andad
December 31, 2014, the Group has consstently adopled the accounting policies which confiorm with IFRSs that
are aMective for the iinancial pariod baginning on fanuary 1, 2014 throughout the vear and the-amandments to 1AS
36 Recoverable Amounts [sclosures for Mon-Financlal Assets in advance of its efleciive dale of January 1, 2014,

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised IFRSs that have been issved but are nat yet

flactive:
IFRSS Financial [nstruments!
IFRS 14 Fegulatory Deferral Accounts
IFRS 15 Revenus from Contracts with Customars®
Amendments to IFRS 11 hecounding for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations®
Amendments o 185 1 Desdlosure Initiative®
Amendments 1o 145 16 and 145 38 Glanfeaton of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amaortsation®
Amendments fo A5 16 and 1A3 4] Agriculture: Bearer plants
Arwrdmenls o 1AS 19 Defined Benefit Plang: Employes Contibuthons®
Amendments ko las 27 Equity Mathod in Separate Financial Statements®
Amendments to IFRS 10 and 143 25 Sake or Contribution of Assats between an Investar and
its Associate of Joint Venture®

Amendments 1o IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and Irvestment Entities: Applying the Comsalidation Excaption®

14528
Amendments o IFR3s Annual |mprovements lo IFRSs 2010-2012 Cyclet
Amendments to IFRSs Annugl Improvements to IFR35 2011-2012 Cycle?
Amendments to IFR3s Anmual Improverments 1o IFRSs 201 2-2014 Cyole®

h E Mo try o Bt periods begnning on of after Jancary 1, 2035, with eebor s ppicaton pam fhed

1 Effectne for Tt annusl IFRE francnl statements begmng on of afer lanmsny 1, 3016, wth s sppdcation permfesd
. Effetive for mnenaa] poriods begnning on of afler January 1, 2017, with earker appicaton parm fed

4 Effective for amnusl péncds begnning on or afler July 1, 3314, vth eadier apphcation pemited.

b Efhc e or s peariceds Laginning on of aller tenuary 1, 2006, with earier o ppdcabon parm fted

o Effectiw: for annuad pencds beginning on or after July 1, 2014 with imied excephons Exder appdcaton it permitied
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fiir e ot reded Depcommser 31, 2044

2, Application of New and Revised International Financial Reporting Standard (“IFRSs™) (Cortinued)

IFRS 2 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 issued in 2009 Introduced new requirements for the classification and measurement of financial assals
IFRS 9@ was subssquantly amended in 2010 to include requinements for the clhassfication and measurement
of financial liabilities and for derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to include the new requirements for
ganeral hadge accounting. Ancther revised version of IFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly to include a} impairment
requirements for financial assets and b) limited amendmenis to the classification and measurement requiraments
by inttoducing @ “fair value through other comprehensive incoms® (FYTOCI measurement: calegory Tor certain
simple debt instrumends.

Key requirements of IFRS S are described balow:

* All recognisad financial assets that are within the soope of 145 3% Flrancial Insfruments; Recognifion and
Measuremant are subseguently measurad at amortised cost o fair value. Spacifically, dabt investmenis
that are held within a business modal whose objective is o collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contraciual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal cutstanding are
penerally resured ab armonised cost at the end of subseqeent sccounbing periods. Debt Instrurments that
ara hefd within a business model whoss obiective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial asgets, and that have contractuzl terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates
10 cash flows that are solely payments of principal and inferest on the principal amount cutstanding, are
measured al FVTOCH, All other debt investrrents and equity investments are measured a1 their fair value
at the end of subsequent accounting periods. (n addition, under IFRS 9, entities may make an irevocable
alection ba present subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity Investment {thal ks not held for trad ing)
in other comprehensive incoms, with only dividend incoms generally recognisad in profit or ks

L With regard to the measwrement of financial labdites designated ag at fair valye through profit or less, IFRS
3 mquires thal the amoun! of change in the fair value of the firancial lability that @5 altribotable 1o changes
in thie credit risk of that liability s presented i cther comprehenshe income, unkess the recognition of the
effects of changes in the liabiliy's credit risk in other comprehenshve income wioulkd create o enlarge an
acoounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value of financial liabilities atiributable to changes in
the fimancial abdiees’ cradit fick are nol subssquently reclassified to profit ar loss. Under 145 39, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of the financiad kabidity designated as fair vatue through profit or loss
was presented in poofit of loss

. In refation to the impairment of financial assers, IFRS @ requires an axpected cradlt koss model, a5 coposed
10 an incurred credd koss moded under 145 33, The expected credil ss model reguires an entity 1o acoount
tor expected cred® losses and changes in Lhose expected credit lotses at each repoding date o reflect
changes in cradit risk since initial recognition. In cther words, it is no konger necessary for a cradit event to
hawe oocurred before credil osses ame recognisad.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statéments {ﬁnn_tim_md]
Foor thts yasr eachacd Do sy 3_1_,.3514

2. Application of New and Revised International Financial Reporting Standard (“IFRSs") (Continusd)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

. The new general hedge accounting requinements ratain he thres types of hedge accounting. However,
greater fiexhility: has been intraduced o the ypes of transactions eligible for hedge atcounting, specifically
broadening the types of instruments that qualify tor hedging Instruments and the types of risk componenis
of non-feancial items that are eligible for hadge accounting. In addition, the elfectivensss test has been
owerhauled and replaced with the prnciple of an "economic refationship’. Relrospective assessment of
hedge etfectivenass is alsp no longer required. Enhanced disclogure requirements about an entity's risk
managament aclvities have also bean introduced.

The directors of the Campany anticipate hat the application of IFRS S in the fulure may have a matergal
impact on amounis reported in respect of the Group's financial assats and financial liabilities. Regarding the
Growg's financial assats and tinancial Eabilites, it is not practicable 1o provide a reascnable estimate of that
effect until a detailed review has been complated

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Im Juby 2014, [FRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting
for revenya ariging from contracts with customerss, IFRS 15 will suparsade the cursent revenue recognition gusdance
including 1AS 18 Revenue, (A3 11 Consfruction Contracts and the related Interpretations when it becomes effective
The core principte of IFRS 15 s that an entiy: should fecognisa revenue to depect the transter of promised goods
ar semvices to cuslomers in an amount that reflects the consideration o which the entity expects fo be entitled

in exchange for Ihose goods of services. Spaciically, the Standard Inbraduces a S-step appraach 1o revenue
recogrilion

. Step 1: [dentily the conlraciis) with a custormis

. Step 2! [dentily the parfarmance obigabons i the contiact

. Step 3 Determine the transaction price

L] Stepd: Allocate the transacton price to the performance obligations in the contract

. Step & Recognion myvenus when (o as) the entity satisfies & perfarmanoe ohiigation

Uinder IFRS 15, an entily recognises revenue when (o a5} 2 perdormance obiigation & satistied, Le. when “conirol’
of the goods o services underlying the particular performance obligation s transferrad to the customer. Far
mare prescriptive guidance has been added In IFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermare, exfensive

disclosures are réquired by IFRS 15

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of IFRS 15 in the future will have a materia|
impact on the amounts reportad and disclosures made in the Group's conschdated financial statemants.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fiir e ot reded Depcommser 31, 2044

2. Application of New and Revised International Financial Reporting Standard (“IFRSs™) (Continusd)
Amendments to 185 19 Defined Benefit Flans: Employee Contributions
The amendments to 1AS 19 clardy how an entily should account for confributions made by employess or third
parties b defined benafil phans, based on whather thass conbributions are dependent on the number of years of
sevice provicded by the employes,

For contributions that are independent of the number of years of sarvice, the entily may edther recognise the
contributions 2% a reducton i the sanice cost in the period in which the related serice & rendared, of to-attribute
them to the emphyees’ periods of senvice using the proected undl credit method; whereas for confributions that are
dependent on the number of years of sarvice, the entity is required to aitribuie thern to the employees’ periods of
Service,

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of these amendments o 145 19 will have a
significant impact on the Group's consolidated financial statermants.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
The Arnial Improvarents b IFRS: 2012-2014 Cyels include a nummber of amendments 1o vanous IFRSE which
A surmmarisad balow,

Thie amendments to IFRS 5§ introduce speclic guidance i IFRS 5 far when an entity reclassifies an assat (or
disposal group) from held for sake 10 held for distribution 1o owners (o vice versa), of when hebdfor-dstribution
accounting 15 discontineed. The amendments apply prospaciively

The amendments to IFRS 7 provide additional guidanca to clarify whether 2 sarvicing contract is continuing
imvelverment in & trarsfermed azset for the purpose of the disclosures requined in redation to transferred assets and
clarify that the offsetting disclosures Tintroduced in the amendments to IFRS ¥ Disclpsure = Offefting Financial
Atzets and Financal Labitties issued in Decambar 2011 and effective for perncds beginneng on of alter January
1 2013) are not explicitly required for-all interim periods. However, the disclosures may nesd o be included in
condansed interim Tmancal statements o comply with 185 34 irferim Fmancil Reporfing,

The amendrments to (A5 19 claridy that the high quality corperate bonds used o astiate the dissount rate for
post-employment benefits showld be sued in the same currency as the benefits (o be pasd, These amendments
would result in the depth of the market for high quality corpofate bonds being assessed at currency level. The
amendments apply from the beginning of the earliest comparative pericd presented in the financial statements in
which the amendments ane first applied, Any initial adjustroent arising should be recognised in retained eamings at
the baginning of that peried,

The amendments o A5 34 clary the requirements rlating b information required by 145 34 that is presantad
edzewhere within the intesm financial repont but outside the intenm financial staterments. The amendments réquine
that such infarmation be incorporated by way of a cross-reference from the inlerim financial statemenis to the other
part of the imlerim firgncial repodt thiat is availabla 1o users on the sime eirs and al the-same tirme as the interim
fimgncial statements.

The direciors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of these will have 2 material effect on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

The directers of the Cormpany anticipate that the application of other new and reversed IFRSs will have no material
impact on the results-and thie financial position of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fior e v grckad D ism b 3_1:,.351-1

3.  Significant Accounting Policies
The consolidated financial staterients have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs. IFRSs were also fullly
comverged by Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certifred Public
Acoountanis |n addition, the consclidated financial stalemants include appScable disclosures raquirad by the
Rules Governing the Lsting of Secunities on the Stock Exchangeand by the Hong Kong Commpanies Ordinance.

The consclidated financial stalements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for biological assals
and financial mstrumems which are rmegsumed 81 fair value kees costs tosell and certain firancial insliuments which
are measurad at falr valug, as explained in the accounting policies set out below,

Historical cost iz genarally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and senvices.

Fair value is the price thal would be received to 3=l an assat or paid to fransfer a llabllity inan orderly trarsaction
between markst participants at the measwrement dale, regardiess of whather that prica is directly observable or
estimated ysing another valuation technigue. [n estirmating the fair value of an esset or a hability, the Group takes
ing account the characterstics of the agset or lizbility if market participants would take those characlerstics intg
Beoounl whin pricing this assel of abdity an the maasuremenl date. Fair value for measurement andiar dietlosin
purpases in these consolidated financial statements are determined on such 3 basis, except for share-based
payments transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 2 Share-based Paymen!, keasing transactions that are
within the scope of 145 17 Lesses, and measuremeants that have some similanities tofair value but are not fair value,
such ag net reglisabile value in 1AS 2 Inveniores of valee In use in 1AS 36 Impairment of Assefs,

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, faw value messurements are categorsed inlo Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree towhich the inputs o the fair value measurerments are obsenvabée and the significance of the nputs to
the fair value measurament indls entirety, which are described as folkows:

. Laval 1 inputs are quoted prices (uradjusted) in ackive markats for identical assets or labilities that the
entity can acoess at the measunemenl dale;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, cther than quated prices included wilkin Level 1, that are cbeenvable for the asse!
or lkability, eathes dingetly o indirectly; and

. Level 3 Inputs are unabserable inputs tor the assets or lability.

The principal sccounting policies are sat oul below

Basis of consolidation

The consclidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and enfities (inciuding
sfructurad entities) contralled by the Company and its subsidianies, Conirod is acheeved when the Carrpany:

. b poar ovar the imestie:

. Iz exposed, or has rights, 1o variable returis from its invabemant with the investes; and

. has the ahility o use its power (0 alfect its returns
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fiir e ot reded Depcommser 31, 2044

3.,  Significant Accounting Policies (Continusd)
Basis of consolidation { Cantnued)
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes o one o more of the (hiee slaments of control Estad above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the I?.raup obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses conlrol of the subsidiary, Specially, mcome and expenses of a subsidiary 2oquired or disposad of
dunng the year ane included in the consolidated statement of prodit or 1058 and other compdehansive income from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive incoma are attributed o the owners of the Company
and to the non-controliing interests, Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries s atfributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controfling interests even If this resulls in the non-conircling mberests having a deficit
balanca.

Where necessary, adjustments are made 1o the financial stalemenis of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policis in e with he Group's scosunling polcies:

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminaled in Tull on comscdidation
Mon-controlling interasts in subsidiaries are presentad separately from the Group's equity theren.

Changes inthe Group's ownarship interests in existing subsidiarles

Changes in the Group's ownership Interests in existing subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing contro
over the subsidiaries are accounted lor as equity transactions. The carmying amounts of the Group's inlerests
and the non-controlling inferests are adjustad to reflect the changes in their relatane interests in the subsidiares:
Airy differance between the amount by which the non-contralling inerests ams adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or recedred & recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company

When the Group koses control of 3 subsidiary, the profi or Ioss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
{i) the apgrepate of the fair vales of the consideration recenad and the fair valee of any retained interest and (i) the
previous camying amount of the assets (including goodwilll, and liabilities of the subsidiary 2nd any non-controlling
Interests. Where certain assels of the subsidiary are measured al revalued amounts or fair values and the retated
cumulstive gain or loss has been recognised In other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, the
SMOUnts previausty recognised in ofher comprebensive income and accurmulated in equity ame accounted for as if
the Comparry had directly dispossd of the related assets (e reclassilied to profit or kes or ransfered directly fo
retained earnings). The faif value of any investment retained in the former subsidiany at the date when conbral is lost
is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under 1AS 39 Financl! instruments:
Recognition and Messurement of, when applicabie, the cost on initial recognition of an awestment in an associate
o 3 joint venture,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fior e v grckad D ism b 3_1:,.351-1

3.  Significant Accounting Policies (Continuad)
Business combinations
Acquisifions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method, The consideration transferred I3
business combanateon is measured at fair value, which is cakiulated as the sum of the scquisition-date fair values of
the assets ransfermed by the Group, liabilties incumed by the Group to the Tormer owners of the acquires and the
equity interests isseed by the Group In exchangs fod control of the acquires. Acquesitionelated costs are genefrally
recognised in profit of kss &% incurned,

AL thi aoquisiton date, the identifiable sssats scquirsd and the labilites assumed anme recogniced at their fair vaiue,
excent that:

. deferred tax assats or liabilities and Babdities or azsets related to employes benefit arangements are
recognised and measured In accordance with 1AS 12 Income Taxes and |AS 19 Employes Benelids
respecively;

. liabalities of equity instrurments rélated to share-based payment arangaments of the acquires or sham-
bazed payemant arangerments of the Group énered into 1o fepiace share-bated payrmenl arangements of
{h acquines ane messured in accordance with (FRS 2 Shars-based Payrnard at the aoquisiton date; and

. assels (or disposal groupe) that are classiind a5 hald for sals inaccordance with IFRS & Non-current Assats
Held for Sale and DiEcontinued Cperabions are measured in accordance with that Standard,

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the swm of the consideration transfered, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the aoquires, and the fair value of the acquirer's previcusly heid equity interest in the acquiree {if any)
over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. I, after
re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assats acquired and liabilities assemead
exceeds the sum of the consideration transfermed, the amount of any non-contridling interests in the acquires and
the fair value of the scguirer's previously held interest in the acquires (F any), the excess 5 recognisad immediately
in profit or loss a5 a bargain purchasa gain

Mon-controfiing interests that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders 1o 3 proportionate share
of the entity's net assets in the event of liquidaton may be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree's identifiable net assets, The
choice of measurement basis i made on 2 transacton-by-transaction basis.

When the considesation fransferred by the Group In a business combination includes assats or liabilities resuliing
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration i measured at its acquisition-date fair
valug and included as part of the considesation translerred in a busingss combination, Changes in the fair value
of the comtingent consideration that quatify a5 measuremsent period adjustments ane adjusted relrcapectively, with
the corresponding adjustments againsl goodwill. Measurement pencd adjustments are adjusiments that aise
from additional inlormation obtained during the 'measurement perod® fwhich cannot excesd ome year from the
acquisition dated about facks and circumetances hat existed 3t the acquisition date.

The subsaquent accounting for changes in the fair valuve of the contingent consideration that do not qualify
as measurement period adjustments depands on how the contingent consideration is classitied. Contingent
conskderation that is clissified as equity Is not remeasured at subsequent reparting dates and its subsequent
settlernenl i accounted for within equity. Contingent conslderation that s classified a5 an assel or a Eability |s
refeasuned al subsequent reporting dates in sccordance with 145 39, of IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Labdties -
and Contirgent Assets, as appropeiate, with the comresponding gain o loss baing recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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3.,  Significant Accounting Policies (Continusd)
Goodwill
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of 3 business is carried at cost less any accumulated impairment ksses and s
presanted separately in the consolidated statament of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment lesting, goodwill amsing from an acquistion s allocated 0 each of the relevant
cash-generating units ("CGELE"), which are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated i tested for impairment annually, or mone frequently when there is
indizabion that the unli ray be impained. For goodwill arisng on an acquisition in the rpoding perod, the CEU to
which goodwill has bean allocated s tested for impaimmsant before the end of that financial penod. If the reciverable
amount of the CGL 15 kess than the camying amount of the urd, the impairment koss is allocated first to reduce the
canying armcunt of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then bo the olher assets of the unit pro Rl on the bass
of the carrying amount of each asset in the unil. Any impairmeant loes for gocdwill is recognisad directly in profit or
o5, An impairment loss for goodwill s nol reversed in subsequent perods.

Whien the inital allocaton of poodwill acquired in a Business combination i Aol cornphated balore Uk end of the
annual penod in which the business combination is effected, that mitial allocation & to be completed befone the
end of the first annual penod beginning after the acquisition date. When goodwill relates fo a cash-genarating unit
bui has not bean allocaled o that wnit, the unit shall be tested for impairment, whenever thare is an indication that
the unil may be impaired, by comparing the unit's carsyng amount, excluding any goodwill, with its recoverable
amount.

On digposal of the relevant CGL, the attributable amount of goodwill s included in the determénation of the amount
of profit or koss on drsposal,

Investments in subsidianes
Imresstmiants in subsidearsss are included in the Compamny’s staterment of financial position al cosl less any identified
impairment ks

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate 15 an entify over which the Group has significant influsnce. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and opeating palicy decisions of the mvestes bul i not control or joint contrel over thoss
policies

A joint venlure 5 a pint arangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arangement have righls
by the ret assals of the joint amangement, Joint contrdd is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an

arrangernent, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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3.  Significant Accounting Policies (Continuad)

Imvestments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

The resulls and assets and lisbilities of associates and joint ventures are incorparated in the consolidated financial
staterments using he equity mathad of accounting. The financial statements of associates o joinl ventures wsad
for equity mathod accounting purposes are prepared usng uniorm accounting policies a5 those of the Group for
Hioa trarsactions and events in simélar circumstances. Under the equity method, Invesiments in associates or pant
ventures are mitally recognised in the consoldated stalernent of financil position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recogniee {he Growp's share of the peafit or bes and other comprehansss incoeme of the assnciales or joint venlEes
When the Group's share of losses of an associate or joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in that associate o
jeirt venture {whach includes any long-term infarests that, in substance, form pan of the Group's net imestment in
the associate of joint ventuse), the Group discontinues recognising ils shane of further losses: Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has mcurred legal or constructive obiigations or made payments on
behalt of that assoclate o joint venlure

Any excess of the costol acquizition over the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assels, Eabies
and contingent liabdities of an associate o joint venlure recognised at the date of acquisition is recognized as
goodwill, which is included within the canying amount of the invesiment

Any excess of the Growp's share of the net fair value of the dentifiable assets, kabilities and confingent lRbisties
et tha cosl of acquisition, after reassessment, s recognised immediately in profd or loss.

The requirements of 145 39 are applied o detarmine whather it &5 necessary o recognise any impairment loss with
respect (o the Group's investrent in an assocsate of joinl venture. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of
the imvestrment {incleding goodwill} s tested for impairment in accordance with WAS 36 Impeirmeant of Assefs 2
3 single assat by comparing ils recoverabie amount (higher of value m use and fair walue kess costs of dsspasal)
with itz carmying amount, any Impaimment loss recognised forms part of the camrying amount of the imestment. Amy
reversal of thal impaiiment loss & recognised in accordance with 1AS 36 1o the extant thal the fesoverable smount
of the imestment subsequeantly increases.

When a group entity ansacts with an associate or joint venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
IFansactions with the associate of pint venture are recognised in the consolidated inancial statements only 1o the
extent of inferests in the associate that are not refated to the Group.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fai value of the considetion receivad or receivable and represénts amounts

recehabie for goods soid and services provided i the mormal course of business, net of discounts and sales related
tanes,
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3.  Sipnificant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Canhinued)
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are delivered and titles have passed, 2t which all the
following canditions are satisfiad:

L] the Gn:uup has transterred 1o the buyer the signficant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

. the Group retaing neither continuing managerial imvolvement 1o the degree usually. associated with
ownarship nor effective contnal over the goods sold;

. the amount of revenue can be meagured refiably,

* it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transection will flow fo the Group; and
* the costs incurned of o be incureed in respect of the transaction can be measured relably,
SErvicE INSOMme = techanishd whan Servees ant provided

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the ceners’ fights 1o recelve payment have been established
{provided that it i probable that economic banefits will fiow to the Company and the amount of revenue can be
reasured reliably),

Intarest incorne from a (nancal assel is recognised when it is probable that the econcmic bensfis will flow (o the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
tirm: e, by radesance to the principal outstanding and at the effective intenest rate applicable, which is the: rate
that exaclly discounts estmated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial aszet to thal assel’s
el camying amount on milial recagnition.

Rental income & recognsed in accordance with the Group's gccounting policy for operating leases (see the
accounting policy below)

Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the kease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of cwnership bo the kssae. All other leases are classified as operating leases

The Group as lessor
Rental income from dperating leases is recognised in profit of loss on a shraight-ine basis over the térm of the

redevant lease. Initial direct costs incurrad in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carying
amount of the leased assat and recognised on 3 Sraight-Ene bass over the leass term.

The Group as lasses
Aszets held under finance kases are recogmsed 25 assets of the Group at their fair vadue at the inception of the

lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum hkease payments. The cocrespanding Eability 1o the lessor is
Included in the corsalidated siatermant of finarcial position a5 & finance kase obligaton
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3.  Significant Accounting Policies (Contimusad)
Leases (Conlinusd)
The Group as lessee (Continued)
Lease payments are apportioned batween finance expanses and reduction of the leste abligation =0 a5 o achiave
3 constant rate of interest on the remaining batance of the lability, Finanoe expenses are recognised immediataly
In profit o loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, In which case they are capitaksed in
accordance with fhe Group's general policy on barnpwing costs [see the scoounting palcy below].

Orperating lease payments are recognized @3 an expenseon a stratght-fing basis over the lease term, excep! whee
another systermatic basis is mane representalive of the time pattern in which economic banefils from the leasad assel
arg consumed

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in the preduction or supply of goods or services, or
for administrative. purposes ather than constructon 35 described below are stated m the consolidated statemen
of financial position at cost less in progress subsequent accumulated depreciation and submequent accumulated
irrpairmnent eses, If sy

Depreciation is recognised 5o as bo wiite off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment other than propesties
under construction less their residual values over their estimated uselul lves, using the draight-line mathod, The
estimated wseful ves, residusl values and depreciation method 3me reviewesd 2t the end of éach repoeting period,
with the etfect o any changes in estimate accounted for on the follwing bass:

Buildings 100k 40 years
Plants, machinery and squipment 5 bo 25 years
Mutor vehicles 3 bo 10 years

Construchion in progress for production, supply or administrative purposes are camed al cost, less any recognisad
impairment loss. Costs Include professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
acoordance with the Group's accounting policy. Such properties are classsfied 1o the appropriste categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready fior intended usa. Depreciation of these assels, on the
sarvee basis as other property asSels, COmmanmes when the assets are ready for thesr intendad use

Aseats held under finance leases ane depraciated over their expectad useful Ives on the same basis as owned asssls
An item of property, plant and equipmend i derecognisad upon disposal or when na future econcmic benelits ane
expecled 1o arisa from the continued use of the aasel, Amy gain of ks ansing an the disposal o retisement of an

emn of properly, plant and equipment determingd a5 the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the assel s recognised in profit or loss
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3.,  Significant Accounting Policies (Continusd)
Bomowing costs
Borrowing costs directly atributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualying assets, which are
assets thal nacessarily take 3 substantial period of time B0 gat ready for their interded use o sate, are added o the
cost of those assets until such tome a5 the assets are substantially ready for their intanded use or sake. Investment
income eamed on the temporary imeestment of specilic barrowings pending their expanditure on qualitying assels s
deductad from the bomoweng costs eligible for capitalization.

Al other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred,

Biological assets

Binlogical assets represent lve hogs, which fall into four categories: suckling hogs, nursery hogs, finisher bogs and
breeding stock are measured on inflial recognition and 3t each end of the reporling peviod at their fair value less
coste to sall. A gain or loss arising on initial recognition of bickogical asset at fair vakee s costs o sall and from a
change in fair value less costs o sell of 3 bickogical asset s included in profit or koes for the penod inwhich it arses.

The agricultural produce (L6, caicass) hanested frorm the Blological asels ane rdsited 3t thedr fair value e
costs 10 el af the pointof hanses], Such measurament & the oost at that date when-apphang 145 2 Inventores. &
gain or koss arising from agricullual produce at the point of harvest at fair value less costs (o sell & ingluded in profit
of boss for the pariod in which i amses.

Intangible assets

Intangible assels acquinad separately

Intangible assets with finite wseful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cogt less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairmen [osses. Amartisaton for intangible assets wilh finite usaful Ives &
recognised on @ siraight-line basgis over their estimated usety lves The estimated useful Me and amonlisation
method are reviewad at the and of each repaiting persod, with the affect of any changes in estimate beng
accounted for on 2 prospective bass,

Internally-generated intangible assels — Research and development expendium e
Expendilure on resaarch activities i recognised 3% an expanse in the paricd inwhich i & ncued,

An internally-generated intangible assel arising from development (o {rom the developrment phass of an internal
projectl is recognised if, and only  all of the folliowing have bean demonstrated:

. the technical feasibility of completing the intangible assel 5o that itwill be available for use or sals;
“ the intention 1o complate the intangible asset and wse or sell il

* the ability bo use or sefl the intangible asset;

# how the intangible assed will generate probable future economic benefits;

. the availability of adequate techinical, fingncial and other resources o comphate the development and to use
or 58l the intangible assat; and

* the ability bo measure refably the expenditure attribltable to the intangible assat during #s development.
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3.  Significant Accounting Policies (Continuad)
Imtangible assets (Continued)
Internally-generaied intangible assels - Ressarch and development expenditure (Continuad)
Tha amaunt initally recognised for internaliy-generated intangible assels is the sum of the axpanditure ncurred
from the date when the intangible assat first meels the recognition critena listed above. Whene no internally-
generated intangible assat can be recogniteed, development expenditure is recagnised in profit or loss in the pariod
Inwhich it is incurred.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangibke assets acquired in a business combinalion and recognised separately from goodwill are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date {which & regarded as thedir oost),

Subsequent o initsal recognition, Intangible assets with finite wseful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amartisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization for intangible assels with finite useful lhves is
recognized on @ straghtdine bass over thaw estimated wselul lives Altematively, inftangible assets with indefmite
usaful fves that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulsted impairment losses

Deracognition of inangible assats

An intangible asset is derscognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use o
dispasal. Gains and beses arsing from derecognition of an intangible assel, measured as the difference between
the et dispoedl proceads and the carrying amount of the aeset, are recopnsed in profit or koss when the gssel is
derecognised,

Inventaories
Irventones an slated at the lower of cost o e deamed cost for agriculiune produce hanvested from bickagical assels
and net realizabie value Cost s calculated using the weighted-average method

Impairment losses on angible and intangible assets other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above)

At the end of each reporting pericd, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of s langible and infangible azeis
wiith finite weeful Ives o determine whethes there = any indication (hal those #eeets have suffered an irrgai mest
loss. It any such indication exists, the recoverabie amount of the asset is estimated in onder 1o determine the extent
of the impairment loss,  any. When i s not possble o estimate the recovarable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs. When 3 reasonable and congistent
basis of alkocaticn can be dentified, corparate assats are alss allocaled 1o ndwvidual CELE, o otheryise they ane
allgcated tothe smaliest group of CGLIS for which a regsonable and consistent allocation besis can be identifiad.

Intangible assels with indefinite useful lves are tested for impairment at least annually, and whenever thera is an
indication that they may be impaired,

Recoverabil amount & the higher of fair value bes costs of disposal and value in use. [0 assessing value in usa, the
estimated future cash tlows are discounted to thesr present value using 2 pre-tax decount rate that reflects cument

rmarkat assessments of the tirme value of money and the risks specific 1o the asset for which the estimates of futune
cash flows have rot been adjustad
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3.  Sipnificant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above) (Continusd)
If the recoverabla amount of an asset (or a CGU) i ectimated to be less than its carrying armount, the carrying
amoaunt of the asset (or the CGUY s reduced to its recoverable amount. &n impairment oS3 |s recognised
immediately in profit o loss.

Whiste an impairment loss subsagquently reverses, the cattying amount of the assed {or OGLY) s increased o the
revised estimate of its recoverable amgunt, but so that the increased carrying amount does not excesd the canmying
amount that would have been determinad had no impairmend loss been recognised for the assed [or 2 CGLY in priar
years. A reversal of an impairment e is recognised as inpoeme immeadiately,

Financial instruments
Financial assats and financial liabilities are recognized when a group entity becames a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrurment

Fingncial assats and financial labilities are inilizlly measofed &1 fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
Miributable 1o the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financal liabilites (other than fnancial assats o
fingncial labilities at fair value through profit or koss) are added 10 o deducted from the fair vales of the financial
assats of financial llabiltes, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
aoquisition of fimancial assats of financial labilitkes: at fair value through profit o loss are recognisad immediately in
profit o loss.

Financial assels

The Group's financial assets ae chssled into one of the three categones, including financial asssts at fair value
through profit or loss ("FVTPL®), available-for-sale financial assels and loans and receivables, The classification
dapands an the nalune and purpose of the financal assats and s determined at the Ume of initkal recognition. All
regutar way purchases or sales of financial assets are recogniced and derecognisad on a trade date basis Regular
way purchases of s2les are purchases or sales of financal assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or comention in the markeipiace,

Effective interest method

The effective interest method s a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debl Irstrument 2nd of aliacating
interest income during the year. The effective interest rale is the rate that exactly discounts estmated future cash
receipts (incloding afl fees paid o recanad that form an integral pan of the effective intarest rate, fransaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected lite of the financial gsset, or, where appropriate, 3 shorter
period to the net carying amount on initial reoognibon

Interest income & recognised on an eflechve interest basis for debl instruments oiher than thase financial assets
classified a5 at FVTPL, of which interest income is include in cther income, expenses, gains or losses.
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3.  Significant Accounting Policies (Continuad)
Financial instruments ( Continued)
Financial azsets (Continuad)
Financil asset at FVTPL
Firancial assefs at FVTPL represented financial assets held for trading.

A financial asset is clissified 2s held for trading i
* It has been acquired principally for the punpose of selling in the near term; of

. itis-a part of @ portfolio of identified financiad instruments that the Group manages together and has 2 recent
attual pattesn of shod-darm profit-taking; o

. it i=-a dermalive that i not designated and eifective as 2 hadging instrurment.

Financial agsets at FVTPL are messured at fair vales, with changes in fair valug arising from remeasurement
reccgnised dirsttly in prolit oF ket in the padeod @ which Uiy anss. The iel galn o koss recagnised n peofil of loss
incudes ary dividend of interest sarned on the financial assets and is included in the other gains and losses ling
item in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,

Avalable-for-sals fnancial agsels
Available-foe-sale financial assals are non-darivatves that ane sither desgnated o not classified as financial assats
2t FYTPL and koans and recelvables. The unlisted equity securilies are classtied a5 avaiable-for-sale financial assets

Equity and debl sacurites hedd by the Group that are classified as AFS fmancial assets and am traded in an acive
market are mezsured at fair value at the end of sach reporting period, Changes Inthe carrying amount of AFS
monelary financal astels relating 1o inlerest moome calculated using the aelfectve inteiest mathod and dradends
on AFS edquity mvestmsnts are recognised in profit or loss.

Dividends on AFS equity invesiments are recognised in profit or koss when the Group’s right to receive the dividend is
establishad.

Loans and receivables

Loans and recehables are non-gervative financisl sssets with fued o determénabla payments that are not quoted
inan actve markat Subsequent to inital recognillion, kans and recenvables (mcluding trade and bills mecevables,
lpans and cthar receivables, pledped bank deposis and cash and bank balances) are measured at amodtised
cost wsing e eflectae inlerest method, bass any |dentified impairment {(see the accounting policy in respect of
impairment oss on financial assels balow).

Impairment of financial assels

Finarcil asssts othar than those at FUTPL, ane assessad for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting
period. Financial assets are considerad (o be impaired where there 5 objective evidence that, a5 a result o on2 or
miare evenls thal oocwrred after the initial recognition aof the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assats heve been affected.
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3.  Sipnificant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financ ial assats (Continued)
Imnpairmend of financial assels (Continued)
Faor all other financial assets, obeciive evidence of impairment could include:

. sgnificant financial difficulty of the issier or counterparty, o

. breach of contracts, such as default or definquency in interest or principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the bormower will enter bankruptey o financial re-ofganisation; of

. the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categores of financal assat, such a5 frade and biis recenables and other recesabies that are assessed
nat to be impaired individually are subsequantly assessad for impairment on a collectie basis. Objective evidence
of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could Include the Group's past experience o collecting paymenls, an
increase in the numbes of detayed payments in the pomiosio past the average credit period of 30 days, s well 2
observable changes in national of local econamic conditions that comrelate with default on receivables.

Far financial assets carried at amartised cost, the amount of impairment bees is the difference between the assel’s
carrying amount and tie present value of the estimated future cash fiows, discounted at the financial assel's
ofiginal efieciive interest rate.

The carrying amaount of the financial sssl = reduced by the snpairment loss dirgctly Tor 2l fnancial assets with the
exgeption of trade and cther receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the wse of an allwance
account. Whan a trade recevable o ather meevable i consdered uncollectible, It = witten off against the
aowance account Subsaquant recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against 1o the allowancs
account. Changes i the carmying amount of the allowance acoount are recognised in profit of loss.

When-an aeailable-for-zate financial asset is considered 10 ba impaited, cumulative g3ns o losses previoushy
recognisad in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period in which the impairment
takes place

For financial assets measured at amartised cost, if, in 2 subsequent pariod, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectrvely 10 an event accurming after the impairment keses was
recognised, the pravicusly récognised impaimment loss is revarsed through prafit or loss to the extant that the
camying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not excesd what the amortisad ocost would
have been had the impairment not been recog nised
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3.  Significant Accounting Policies (Contimusad)
Financial instruments ( Continued)
Firancial liabilities and equity instrumems
Firancial liabilities 2nd squity instruments isswed by 3 group entity are ciissifisd 45 aither financial labifties or as
equity in acoordance with the substance of the contraciual arangements and the defintions of a financial labikity
and an equity instrument.

An equity Imstoumant is any contrect that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group alter deducting all
of ks labilties.

Equiy insfrumenis
Equity instruments ssued by the Company ane recorded at the procesds recaived, nef of direct issue costs.

Repurchass of the Cormpany’s awn equily mstrumeant is recognised and deducted directly in equity. Mo gainor loss is
recognised in peodit of koss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancallation of the Company’'s own equity instruments,

Effactve inberest method

The effective interest meathod is-a mathod of calcuiating the amarbised oot of 3 financial lability and of alocating
interest expense during the year, The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and paints paid or received that fem an integral part of the effective interest rate,
tramsaction costs and other pramiums of discoents) through the expacted life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorfer penod 1o the net camying amount on initial recognition, Interest expense is reccgnised on an
eflecthe interest basis

Financel @biifies
Financial iabditizs, including borowings, bank owerdralts, trade and ciher payables, are subsequently measured a1t
amorised cosl, using the effective intansst malhod,

Hedge accaunting
The Group designate cerain derivatives as hedges against our expasure in refation 1o changes in prices and rates of
eommadites {cash flow hedges),

At the incepton of a hedging relationship, the Group documents the relationship between the hedging instrument
and the hedged itemn, along with its managemsnt objectives and its strategy for undertaking varius hedge
transactions. Furthermane, at the mception of the hedge and on an ongoing bases, the Group document whather the
hedging instrument thet & used in & hedging reiatonship is highly effective In ofisatting changes in fair values or
cash fiows of the hadged itam.
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3.  Sipnificant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments [ Continued)
Cash flow hadge
The effective porticn of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges
ane recognised inother comprehensive income and accumulated in hedging resanve. The gain or byss relating to
the ineffective portion & recognised immediately in profit o koss and is included in the ‘cther gains or losses’ ling
i Amounts praviously recognisad in ather comprehensiva income and accumulated o equity (other reserve)
are reclassified to profit or loss In the periods when the hedged item is recognised in profit or koss, in the same
ling &% the recognizad hedged item. Howeser, when the hedged forecast transaction results in the recognition of a
nan-financial assat or a non-financial lizbility, the gains and loeses previously recognized in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in eguity ame frangterred from equsty and included in the inilal measurement of the cost
of the non-financial ass2t or non-financial Habiliby,

Hedge accounting s decontinued when the Group revokes the hedging relationship, the hedging mstrument
expires or Is sold, terminated, or exercised, or when it no konger qualifies for hedge accounting. Any gain or loss
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulsted in equily at that time remains in equity and i
recognissd when the fonscast transaction is ultimately recognimed in profit of 05t When a Tomces! rancaction is no
longer expected o ooy, the gain or loss accumulated in eguity & recognised immediately In profit of loss.

Derecagnition

The Group derecognisess a financial asset only when the confraciual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
of when it transfers tne financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
anther antity. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of 2 ransterred financial asset,
the Group conlinues to moognize the linancial asset and ako conlinue b récognise the relevant liabilites:

On derecagnitien of a financal assst in its entirely, the dfference batwesn the assel's cairying amount and the
sumof (he consideration recaked and receivable and the cumulative gain of loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensivg income and accumulated in equity IS recognise in profit or loss.

Fimancial libilites are derecognised when, and only when, the Group's obligations are dechanged, cancalied of
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the financizl liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable i recognised in peofit o loss,

Provisions

Prowisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (kegal or constructive) a5 a result of 3 past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required o =eltle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amaunt of the obligation. Provisions, are measured at the best estimate of the consideration feguired to saltle the
presant obligation at the end of the repacting periad, taking inte acoount the rsks and untetaintes sorrounding the
chligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated fo setthe the presant obligation, its carrying
amaunt is the presant vakes of hose cash flows (wheds the effect of tha time value of money 5 reberial),

When some or all.of the economic beneits required to seltle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third
party, 3 recehiable i recophized 85 an asset if it ks virteally certain that reirmbursernent will be received and the
amaunt of the recesable can be meaasuned reliably.
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3.  Significant Accounting Policies (Continuad)
Share-based payments arangements
The awarded shares granled are provided by the Company, The Group receives sevices but has no obligation o
setlle the share-based paymenls transaction. The Group recognised he expenss in complizncs with IFRS 2.

Far grants of shares that are conditional upon satislying specified vesting condifions, the fair value of services
received i delarmined by redersnce lo the fair value of shares granled at the date of grant and is expensed on a
siraight-line basis over the vesting period, with 8 comesponding increase in equily (odher fesernve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises lis estirmates of the number of granted shares that are
expected o ultemately vest The impact of the revisson of The oniginal estimates, ¥ any, & recognised in pofit or loss
such that the cumulative expense rellects the revised estimate, with a cormesponding adjustmeant to olher resanve.

For grants of shares thal vest immedixtaly at the date of grant, the fair value of the awarded shares is recognisad
irrerwediately o prok it or s

Taxation
Imcarme ta expertss represents the sum of the fax currently payabbe and defes red ta

The tax currently payable is based on taxable prafit for the year. Taxable peolit d#fers from prolit as reparted in
the consolidated statemant of profit or loss and other comprehenshve income Decause it excludas items of Incoms
ar expense that are faxable or daductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never Exable or
deductibée. The Group's (lability for current 1ax s calculated using tax rates that have been enacted of substantively
enacled by the end of tha reporting pariod.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabiklies in
the conscidated financial statemants and the commesponding tax Bass used in the computation of taxabie profit
Defecrad tax labilties are gensrally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferied tax assets are
recognised 1o the extent that it 5 probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised, Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the imtal recognition (cther than in a business combination) of other assels and labilities in 3
transaction that affects neiher the toable profit nor the accounting profit

Diaferred o Babdities are recognized for taxable termporany differences associated with investments: in subsidiaties,
azsociates and joint ventune, socept where fhe Group is able to contral the reversal of the termporary difference and
it iz probable that the temporary difference will nol reverse In the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assels adising
from deductible lemporary differences associated with such investments and interests afe only recognised 1o
the extent that i is probabde that thera will be sufficient taxable profits against which fo ulifise the benefils of the
temporary differences and they are expected 1o reverse in the foresseable fufure.

Thie carmarg amount of dofermed tax assets s reviswed at the end of each reparting peniod and reduced i the

extent that it is no longer probabde that sufficent taxable profits will be avalabée b allow all or part of the asset o be
recoverad,
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3.,  Significant Accounting Policies (Continusd)
Taxation {Corntinued)
Deferred tx assets and kabdibes are measured at the 1ax rates that are expected to apply in the pericd in which the
liability is satted or the assed = realisad, basad on b rate {and ta laws) that have bean anacted or substanlively
enacted by the end of the reponting period.

The measurement of deferrad tax liabilities and assats reflects the iax consaquences fhal would follow from the
rranmal in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting pemcd, to recover of Salthe the carnying amount of
Itz assats and labilites.

Current or deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates 1o items thetl are recognisad in
oier comprehensive income o directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is alsy recognmed in other
comprehensie income or directly In equity respactively.

Foreign cumencies

In preparing the financial statements of each inderidual group entity, transactions in curmencles other than the
functonal curtency of Ut enlity (lorsign cumencles) ane recorded in the respective functonal curmendy (La. the
currency of the pamary sconomic anviranment in wiich the entity operates) al the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting peniod, monetary itlerms denomenated in foreign cumencies
afe retranslated ai the rates peevailing at that date. Mon-monatary itemns that are measured in ferms of historical
o3l in 3 forelgn eurrency are not retranstated,

Exchange differences arising on the setlement of monetary ltems, and on the ransiation of monetary lems ane
recognised in profit or loss in the paricd in which they ansa.

Faor the purposes of presenting these consdlidated financial statemnents, the forgign cumencies denpminated assels
and labilties of the Group & tanstated inlo the presantation curtenty of the Ghoup (LISH) using dochangs rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and expences items are franslated at the average exchange
rates for the year, Exchange differences ansing, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under [he heading of translation reserve.

The change of functionad currency 5 applied prospectivedy from the date of change in acoordance with 1AS 21 The
Effect of Changss in Foregn Exchange Rales. Al the date of the change, all iterms were transiated into the new
fenctional currency using the prevailing exchange rate at that date and the resulting ransiated amounts for noa-
monstany itemrs ane treated as historical cost

Advertizsing expenses
Advertising expenses on-supply of goods are recognised as and included in distribation and salling expanses in the
peofil of loss inwhich the Growp has a night o acoess those goods

Adverlising expenses on supply of services 3 recognizad a2t and included in diglribution 2nd salling expenses in
the profit or koss inwhich the Group receives the services.
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3.  Significant Accounting Policies (Contimusad)
Government grants
Government grants are not recognised uniil there is reasonable assurance thal the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be recaned.

Gowernment granis are recognised in profd or Bss on @ gystermatic bass over the periods in which the Gn:up
recognises a5 expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended o compensate. Specifically, govesnment
grants whoss primady condition is that the Group should purchass, constiuct of clberwise acquire non-Culment asets
are recggnised as deferred revenue in the consolidated statement of financial posstion and transiermad to profi or
less on a systernatic and rational basis over the uselul ives of the refated assats

Gewernment grants that ane ecevable as compensation for expenses or lossas alveady incumed or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no fulure related costs are recognised in prodit or ks in the
periad in which they become receivabla

Retirement benefit costs

Fee defined beraht retiremment Benefit plars, the cost of providing benefits i determined wsing the progached una
credit method, with actuanial valuations bang carred cul at the end of the reporting periad. Remeasurerment,
comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asses calling {if applicablel and the return on
plan assets (excluding interest), is reflectad immediately in the staterment of financial position with a charge or cradi
recognized in affer comprehansive income in the pencd In which they ooeur, Remegsuremen! recignised in other
comprehensive ncome 5 reflected immediately in other resene and will not be reclassitied 1o profit or kss. Past
service cost |5 recognisad in pralit or loss in the period of 2 plan armendment. Net interest is calculated by applying
the discount rate at the beginning of the panod to the net defined benefit Rability or asset. Defined benefit costs are
categorsed a5 follews:

. safvice cost fincluding current Senice cost, past sarvice oost, a5 well as gains and Wssés on curtadments
and seltlemanish

. nat inferest expensea or income; and

* remegswemant,

The Group presents tha first two components of defined banefit costs in profit o loss a5 employes benelits expense.
The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the consolidated staternent of financial pesition represents the
actual deficit or surplus in the Group's defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulling from this calculation is Breted b5
tha present value of any economic banefits avatiabis in the foom of refunds and reductions in future contributions to
the: plan,

The empioyeses of the Group in China and Hong Kong are mambers of state-rmanaged mbirermant banafil schemes
and members of the Mandatory Frovident Fund Scheme ("MPF™) respectvely, the obligations of the Group under
which ane equivalent to those atising in a defined contribution retirement benefit plan. Cantributions o state-
managed retirerment benefit schemes and MPF are recognissd 25 an expanse when employess hove rendered
sanvica enlifling tham o the contributions.

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an etpense when employees have
rendered sarvice entitiing them ta the contributions.
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4,  Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
The following ane the kiy assumplicns concerning the future, 2nd other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporiing period, that have 3 significant risk of causing 3 malerial adjusiment to the canying amounts of
assets and IRbilities within the next twelwe months from the end of each reporting periad.

Biological assels

The Group's managerment delermines the fair values less costs 1o s2ll of biological assals at the end of each
reparting pencd with reference 1o the markel-determined prices, speckes, growing condilions, oosl incurred and
the professional valuation. This determination imvoled the use of significant judgemeant. If the achual results differ
with the original estimates rmade by the managemant, such differences from the origina! estinates will impact the
fair value change recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the estimates change and in fulure pericds. The
canying amount of biclogecal assets is LIS$1, 234 millon as at December 31, 2014 (A013: US$1,320 millian) {see
Mate 18,

Boodwill

Determining whether goodwill i impaired requires an estimation of the recoverable amount of the CGLIZ 1o which
goadwll has been allocated, The recoverable amount of OGLE at the end of Bach reporing penod & based on
the higher of the fair value bess cost of disposal and the valus in use. The value in use caculation requine thi
manggement of the Group to estimate the fulure cash flows expected o arise from the CGUs and 2 suitable
discount rate in order o caloulate the presant value. Whene the actual future cash flows are less than expeciad, a
rratesisl irmpairment loss may anse.

The carrying ameount of goodwill is USE1,215 million a5 at Decernber 31, 2014 (2013: 531,835 million). Details of
the recoverabhe amount calculation are disclosed in MNote 19,

Intangible assets

In accounting for intangible assets, mranagement of the Group considers the potentzal impairment based on the
recoverable amount. The intangible assats with finite useful lves am reviewsd for impairment when events or
circurmstances indicate the camying value may not be recoverable; the intangible asset with an indefinite useful
lifer are rewiewed for impairment annually, irrespective of whether there is any indication that it may be impaired.
Facters that would indacate potential impaitment may include, but are nol limited fo, the siznificant change in
technology, and operating or cash flow losses associated with the intangible assats.

Detarmining whether intzngible assets iz impaired requires an estimation of the recoverable amount of the CGLE o
which intangible assets has been allocated, The recoverable amount of CGls at the end of each repanting period
i5 based on the higher of the fadr value less cost of disposal and value In use, The value In wse calculation requires
the managament of the Group b estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the CGlis and a suitable
discount rate in order o calculale the presant value, Whese the actual future cash Tlows are less than expected, 2
rraterial impairment loss may amse. Mo impairment of intengble assets has been made dusing the year,

The cairying amaunt of mtangible asels i UST] 746 millon as at Decermber 31, 2014 (2013: USEL 720 millioa)
{see Mote 200
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4.  Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continesd)
Inventories
Imventories are stated at the lower of cost or the deemead cost for agriculiure produce harvesied from biclogical assels
and ret realisabls value. MNet realisable value is the estimated salling peice in the ordinany courss of Business, less
the estimated costs of completion and salling expenses

Managemenl of the Group periodically reviews inventores for skow moving, obsolescence or declines in markel
value. Thiz review requires them 10 estimate the net realizable value besed vpon assumptions: about future
demand and marke! conditions. If the estimate of net realizable valus s befow the cost of inventory, the Group will
recand 3 wribe-down of imentanies far the difterencs between cost and nat realizable value, which will resull in a
corresponding mcreage in cost of sales I the net reglisable value s ks than the carrying amount, write-down on
irventories may be required. The carying amount of inventories s USE1 900 milion as 3t December 31, 2014
(2013 LSELB08 million) (s Mote 23)

Trade and bills receivables

The Group makes aliowances for bad and doubtiyl debits based on an assesement of the recoverability of trade and
other receivables |n datafmining whisthes there & objective evidence of allwances for bad and deubliul debis,
the Group takes nto consideration the collectability, aged analyses of trade and other receivables and estirration of
future cash flows. The amount of the allowances for bed and doubtful debis is measured as the diffierence between
the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows. Where the actual fulure cash
flows are less than expected, an allowances for bad and doubtiul debls may asise. As at December 31, 2014, the
carrying amound of trade and other recesables is US$845 million which is-after allowances for bad and doubtful
debts (2003 USTATO rdllion) (see Mote 24)

Retirement benefit ohligations

Obligations for retirement benefit and related net pericdic pension costs are determined in accordance with
actuarial valuations. These waluations rly on key sssumpbons including discount rates, expected mlum on plan
assets, expected salary incieases, morlality rates and health care trand rates. The discount rates assumptions are
determined by refedence to yiekls on high-quality conporate bonds of appropriate duation and currency at the end
of the reporting pericd. In case such yields are not available, discouni rales are basad on govemmant bonds yields
The expectad returns on plan aswel sssumplions are datermined on 3 unform methodology, considering long-
term historical returns and assets allocations. Due fo changing marke? and economic conditions, the underiying
ke assumplions may differ from actual developments and may lead 1o significant changes in retiement berefi
obligations. During the year ended December 31, 2004, aclusrial losses after tax effect amounting to USE118
milkicer are recognisad directly in equity inthe pariod in which they ocour (20013: gains of LEF1S million) (see Mote
3,

Share-based payments transactions

Thie Group messsures the fair value of shames grantéd by the Company under pre-IPO share aption scheme (as
defined in Mote 37(c)) in July 2014, Estimating the fair value for share-based payment transactions requires
daterrmining the mcet appraprists valuation msthodology. This estimate requines determining the most appropriate
inputs o the valuation methodology, The Group recognised shane-based payments of USE3E million fior the pre-IPD
share opticn for the year ended December 31, 2014,
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5,  Capital Risk Management and Financial Instruments
The Group manages i capdal o ensure that antities in the Group will be able 1o contines as a going concem whik
magimizing the relum to owners thriough the opfimisation of debt and equity balance. The Group's overll strategy
remaing unchanged during the yaars.

The capital structure of the Gn:rup consists of net debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed in Note 32, meat
of cash and cash equivalents and equity altributable & owners of the Company, comprising Bsued share capital,
resives and retained profits.

Categories of financial insbuments

20014 2013
UsS'milkion LI5S rillicen

THE GROUP
Financial assets
Aueaifable-for-zale invesiments 209 151
Derteatives inancal assats 73 ]
Qther non-current 3ssets Lt 120
381 277
Loans and recedables
Trade, bills and ather recevables a0l 1,007
Pledged bank deposits 3 EE
Bank balances and cash g18 ]
1.810 1,948
Financial fiabilities
Al amorised cogls:
Trade and othes payvables 1498 1,199
Borrowings (fwed and flcafing rates) 4,650 735
Bank overdrafls 20 76
6,166 8,631
Dresrvatives financial Eatalites 52 21
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5.  Capital Risk Management and Financial Instruments | Costinusd)

Financial risk management objective and policies

The Group's major finencial instruments incluge pledged tank deposits, bank balences and cash, available-forsale
imvestments, trade, bills and other receiables, olher non-current assats, tade, bills and other payvables, borrowings
and bank overdrafts. Detads of the financal instrements ane disciosed in respectie nofes. The rsks associated with
thersa financial instrumenis include market risk (currency risk and intarest rate risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and
other price risk. The policies on how Lo mitigate these risks are set oul beiow. Managerment of the Group manages
and moniloes hess exposUnes bo Brsune SPOIOMEAE Measu res ans implemanted on a imely and eflective manner.

Marked risk
The Group's actiilies expose il primarily to the financial rsks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and
interest rates.

Thare has been no change to the Group’s exposure to markst risks or the manner in which it manages and
measures the risk,

Foregn curraficy fsh managermt

Certain group snlies with RME a5 the functional cummancy have cartain feeen curmency sales, purchases, bank
balances and cash and borrowings denominated in LSS and the Euro ("ELIR™), which expose the Group to foreign
Gurrancy risk.

The carrying amownt of the Group's foreign currency denominated monatany assets and monetary liabilities at the
end of the reporting period are as follow:

2004 2013
WSS mil lon LS millson
Assels
L5g
Bank balances and cash g -+
Trade, bilis and othar receiablas 2 2
ELR
Bank bakances and cash 1 -+
Trade, bils and other receivables 2 ot
Lishilities
Usg
Trade, biis and other payables 7 &
Baorrowings J80 413
EUR
Trade, bis and other payables 18 il
Borrowings 2 4
- Lz Ban USEL million
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5,  Capital Risk Management and Financial Instruments (Continued)
Financial risk management objective and policies (Conlinued)
Market risk (Continued)
Forsgn curancy rek managament (Continted)
Sensitinly analysis
The Group is mainly exposed 10 the effects of LS$ against RMB and the directors of the Company consider thal the
risk exxposed to effects of ELUIR Is not material.

The following takie details the Group's sensitivity to a 5% (2013; 5%) increase and decrease In RMBE agaimst
LSS which represenis managerment's assessmant of the reasonably possible change in forelgn exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only cutstanding foreign curmency denominated monelary items and adjusls their
transiation to RMB at year end for 3 5% (2013: 5%} change in foreign currency rates. A positive number bekow
Indicabes an increase In post-tax profit where RMB strengthens 5% (2013: 5%) against the relevant currency. Fora
5% (2013: 5%) weakening of RME 2gainst the relevant currency, there would be an aqual and opposite impact on
the profit, and the talances below would be negatve

2m4 2013
USE'miltion USE million

Prodit or koss 14 14

In management's opinicn, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the
year and exposure does ool rediect the exposure durmg Uhi respectivg year.

Inberest e ek mandgamont

The Group's fair value interest rate risk relates prmarily to #s available-for-sake investments and fived-rate
barnowings (see Motes 26 and 32 respectively for detailsh. The Group currently does not use any derative conlracts
to hadge its exposure to interest rale risk. However, the management of the Group will consider hedging sianificant
interast rate exposure should the nead arise.

The Group's cash flow Interest rale risk retates primsardy (o fioating rates bank balances, bosrawings and bank
overdrafts (ses Motes 78 and 22 respectively for details). The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detaibed in the liquadity sk management secton o this note,

Sansitidy snafss

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rakes for non-decivathve
instruments at the end of the reporting perkad. For floating rates bormowings, bank overdrafis and bank balances,
the- amakysis i prepared assurming the amount of asset and labdlity outstanding at the end of the repariing period
was outstanding for the whole vear. A 27 basis poants increase or decrease i used for Ching operations and a 25
basis painks increase or decreass i used for operations cutside China which rapresents management's assesement
of the reasonably possibbe change in inlerest rates
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5.  Capital Risk Management and Financial Instruments | Costinusd)
Financial risk management objective and policies (Cominued)
Marked risk (Continuad)
Sensindy analse (Contngad)
If interest rates decteased by 27 basts points in China or 25 basis points outside Chana and all other vanabies were
held canstant, the potential efect on profit belore taxation is as follow:

2084 2013
USS mil lion L% millaon
Increass in profitfdecréasa in loss belone Beation 2 8

There would be an equal and oppasite impact on the profif befone taaton where they had 27 bass point in China
ar 25 basis points cutside China higher,

Credil risk

The Group's credi rigk is prirmarily attributable b #s trade, bills and ather receivables, bank balances and pladged
bank deposils, A1 the end of the reporting period, the Gmup's meximum ecposure to credit risk which will cause
a financial krss 10 the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties and arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognisad financial assets stated in the consolidated statement of financial

Inarder to minimese the credit nsk, maragement of the Group has delegated 3 leam responsible for dabermenaion
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring. procedures ty ensure that follow-up action is taken (0 recover
oveidue debts, In addition, the Group reviews the moverabile arount of sach mdvidual dabl al the end of exch o
the reporting perod to ensure that adequate impesnment losses are made for irrecoverable amoonts. In this regard,
the management of the Group consider that the Group's cradit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has no significant concentration of cradil risk on trade, bilks and other receiables, with exposure spread
ovier 3 karge numibed of counterparties and cusiomess,

The Company's credit risk is primary attributable o &5 amounts due from subsidiaries. The management of the
Compary considers that the credil fisk on amounts doe from subsidranes s Brted because they regularly monitor
the financial posstions of these subsidiaries and they have 3 good undersdtanding of their financial background and
ability e rapay the debt.

The Comgany has concentratian of credit risk in refation 10 its amounts due from subsidiaries, of which a signficant
partion 1 dus from a lew counterparties.

The credit risk on bank deposits and loan recevabies. s limited bacauss the counterparties ane financial imstiutions
with good reputation in China and the Unibed States of America (" UL5."),
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5,  Capital Risk Management and Financial Instruments (Continued)
Financial risk management objective and policies (Conlinued)
Liguidity risk management
Litimate responsibifity for Bquidity risk maragement rests with the management, which has built an approprite
liquadity risk management framework for the management of the companies compesing the Group's short, medium
and long-term funding and liquidity management requiements. The Group manages Ggquidity risk by maintaining
adequale resérves and borrowing fRacilities, by conbinuously monitonng forecast and actual cash flows and malching
the matunty peofiles of financial asseds and inbilities,

As st December 31, 2014, the Group has available unufiBsed banking facilities of approsemately US$2,008 million
{2013 LISE1, 164 million),

The foliowing table detalls the Group's remaining contraciual maturlty for its non-deratve financial lizbllities. The
tabla has bean drawn up based on the undiscounted cash fiows of financial iakilites basad on the earliest date on
which the Group can be required o pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash tiows. To the extent
that interest @ies are figating, the undiscounted amount i derived from interest rate at the end of the reporting
penthod,

In agdition, the following table details the Group's hquidity analysis for its dervative financial Instruments. The
lables have bean dawn up based on the undiscounted confractual net cash oufflows on dervative instrurments
that setle an a met basis. The amount of undiscounted cash fiows disciosed has been daterrrened by reference to
the projected interest rates as illustrated by the yield cumves existing 2t the end of the reporting period. The liqurdity
analysis for the Group's derhvathve financial Instruments are prepared based on the conbractual maturities as the
rranagernent consider that the contractual maturiies: are essenbal for an understanding of the timing of the cash
firws of desivaties.
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5.  Capital Risk Management and Financial Instruments | Costinusd)
Financial risk management objective and policies (Cominued)
Liguidity risk management (Continued)

Figited
p b i tesmaynd Tl Totd
ehctive  andb ez L H baebn  endicanial g
e e o sl |- paars 25 mart 5 e cah fle e

% IG¥mifn  Seikn  ESelen BSwilnm USellm Bfalin  S5miin

A Decrnsben 11, 2114
Trasand bl payakies - o B = - - B =0
Cithes pesables - 2 - . - - B 64
Ctegafions; ik Tnancs

ke 030 - I | i il -] 5
Bank ovescdealls S50 o = - - - kil o
Frmisf-ates bermowingzs 550 2 3 &= 1% 1458 1mE 12m
Pt esles bt owiegs 10 m i m 113 - 10 17

-4 pas) T A =1 LI 8,181

Deriestive firprnial inbites

- o eserred LT -t - - - 5 W0
A Decermber 31, 2003
Tradesaned bill orgabies - &l - - - %] -
Cths psables = kL = s = - s e
Cligions unckr [rarce

e 0% -+ 1 i 3 A % %
Bani e Bl % . 2 = x % %5
F s bovsowing: 590 e 114 12 160 154 e 5
Floning efes bomwngs 287 N il 485 445 - 5085 A5

1654 a3 453 S48 196 435 BT

Drhvafig frurc il bl

- o sl - il -+ -+ - - A 2

* LLoeste e LISE] millaon
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5,  Capital Risk Management and Financial Instruments (Continued)
Financial risk management objective and policies (Conlinued)
Oler price risk
The Group 5 ecpossd b0 other price risk through its desvatve instrurments. The sansitivity analyses below have
been defermined based on the exposure [0 price risks 2 the reporting date, If the prices of thesa future contracts
had been 5% higherflower as at December 31, 2014, the other reserve would decreasadiincreased by US$1
million,

Mo sensitivity analysis is presanted for the year ended Decemnber 31, 2013 as the directors of the Company
comrizider fhat the sxposure i insgnifcant

Fair value measurement
The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial lisbilities recorded
# amortised cost in tha consolidated financial slatermants appraximate their fair values.

Fair value measwements recognized in the consolidated statements of financial position
The fallowirg table proveces an analsss of financial instiuments thal ae messuned subssquent b inilal eeogrition
1 fair valus, grouped into Levels 1 i3 based o the degres o which the fair value is obsarvable

" Lewal T fair walue measurements are those darwed from quoted prices (uradjested ) in actve markets for
identical assels of Falbdities.

* Level 2 fair value maasuremenis are those dedved from inputs olher than quoted peices included within
Level 1 that are cbsenable for the assel or llabiBy, sither directly (ie. a5 prices) o indirectly (l.e. derived
from prices)

. Lewil 3 fair value mesturaments aie those desved from valuation techniques thal include inputs fof the assat
o liability that 3se nol based on obsenabla market data {(umotserable inputs),
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5.  Capital Risk Management and Financial Instruments | Costinusd)
Fair value measurement {Continued)
Fair walue measuremants recognised in the consolidated stalem ents of financial position (Continued)

2004
Lewal 1 Laval 2 Lewel 3 Total
Us&mililon UsS'millian U5 millkon WS million
Drerivatives financil assels E8 4 - T3
Avallabbe-for-sale Investments - 208 - 208
Oher non-cuenant assets 18 53 = 53
BS 288 - 351
Derivatives fmancil liabilities 30 22 - 52
2013
Level ] Lewvel 2 Lewvel 3 Total
LSS millinn LSS millian LEE millian L% million
Derivathee inanceal assets - & - &
Avaliabhe-lor-sade invesimenis - 151 - 151
Ohver:non-curment assels B4 = - 120
B4 223 - 7
Drerreative inancel liabilities 15 & - 21

The fair values of derivative financial assatsfiabiites and available-for-sake invesiments are determined by quoted
prices in actve markeds (el 1) or using income approach based on discounted cash flow analysis on the expectad
Imlerest rates (kevel 20, a5 appropriate.

CHher non-current assats includes bonds secuntes which are valued at guoted market prices and are classified
wilhin Level 1 and Insurance contracts which are valued al thelr cash surrender value using the daily asset unit
valua which is based on the quoted market peice of the underlying securities and classified within Level 2.

Fair value measurements and va luation processas
S of the Group's assels and [Eilites ane measured at fair vahie fof firarmsial reporting purposes

In estimating the tair value of an assat or a liabdity, the Group uses market-observable data to the extent 1 =
avallable, Wheee Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages thind party qualified valuers o pedorm the

valuation. The managerment of the Company works closely with the qualfied exemal valuers 1o establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs o the madel
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6.  Tumover and Sepment Information
Turmower represants the et amounts received and recenvable for goods sold and saovices provided by the Group to
oulside customers, net of salés tax during the year, and is 2s folioss:

am4 2013

UsS'million LS§ million

Sales of packaged maats 11,876 B.212
Sales of fresh pork 9,368 4543
Hog production 587 1=
Others 412 307
22,243 11,253

Segment information

The Group determines il operating segments based on the reports reviewed by the executive direciors who are also
the chief cperation decsmnn makers that ae used 1o rake sirategic decsions. The Group's fepartabie segrmants,
which are also the operstng segmenls, are classified as (i) paclkaged maats, (it) fresh povk, () hog production and
{iv} cthers which based on their location of the operations. The details of tha Group's reportable segments are as

Tollows:

{i Packaged maats = represents production, whotesale and retail sales of low temperature and high
pemperature miat products.

{iy  Fresh park - represants slaughlenng, wholesate and retall sales of fresh and frozen meat.

{iil  Hag producton - represents hog fammmg,

ivl  Others = represents slughtering and sales of poultry, sales of ancillary products and

sarvices such as provision of logistics sanvices, sales of flavouring ingradients,
inernally-produced packaging matenials, impoited meal prodects as well az
refall business and blopharmaceuticals, retail of meat related products and
expenzes. incurmed by the Group
Each repontable sexment derwes its turnover from the sales of prodects and provision of sevices: based on the
location of operationis. They are managed separately becauss each ssgment requires different production and
rarkating sirategies.
Zegrments results rapresent the profit earmed by each segment before biological falr value adjustrments without
zlocation of cther Income not atiributed to the respective saament, other gains and kosses, finance costs and shars

of profits of assocmates and joind venlures. This is the messure reported to the chief operation Sacision makers for
the puiposes of resources aliocation and assessment of segment perdormancs.

Inter-segment sales were changed at cost plus margin basis,
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6.  Turnover and Segment Information (Continusc)
Segment information { Continued)
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by reportable segment:
Far the year ended December 31, 2014
Packaged Hog

meais Fresh pork production Others Tokal
V& million U5 million U5 &'million WSS million US&million

Lhina
Segrment reverme 4,039 3813 L 410 B4
Lese: Inter-segment ales - Ta1k (65} (233} {1035}
Net externat sales 4,099 3T 7 1T 7,095
Repomable sepment prof (oss) i 135 4 {7} m
us.
Segment revirue 1073 8202 3385 - 18,760
Less: Inter-segment Sles - {2 BEZ} {2,863} - (5.525)
Net edermal sles 1172 5540 522 - 13,235
Repotable sxament proft (loss) 450 a0 331 f12a} T48
Dthers
Segment reverwe 705 1,042 581 o 2815
Less: Inber-segment sales 1) {368} H03) 1% {1,002}
MNet erdernal saies EE4 B5& 58 235 1613
Reportable sepment profi (lossh kR {14} T 3 a3
Total
Segment reverne 1917 13157 4018 717 20,603
Loz Inter-segment sales 41 {3,763 34310 {305} 7.566}
et exdermal sales 11,876 9368 587 412 22232
Reportable segment profil floss) 1,184 2 412 (203} 1,614
Urailocated income b
Urallocated cxpenses {32}
Eilogical agset s fer value

adustments 45
Financs costs {371}
Shere of profits of assocates 18
Shera of profits of jant ventures 95

Proft before teation 1420
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6.  Tumover and Sepment Information (Costinued:
Sepment information (Contirued)

Forthe year ended Dacsmber 31, 2013

Packaged Haog
miaks Fresh pork production (hers Tota
Us$milkon LEEEmilbon LISEmilEon 5§ malion Usfmilken
China
Semient revenie 4,074 36 a2 Liv, 2306
Less: Inber-sapment sabes - B34} =2 1219 219
Het eternal sles 4,074 3010 16 3 7.407
Reportable segment profit loss) &7 113 7 {35) F
us.
Segmient revenue 1,968 1,58 50 - 4207
Less: Inter sagment safes - 1662} (717 - {1,379
Tl exlermal sles 1568 1,27 172 - 3428
Repertabie segment grofit loss) 7 9% tdk) {27 104
Others
Segment revenue 180 sl 156 = 720
Lese: Inter-sepment smbes (k1 {138 (1530 - {3021
Met extgrnal e 12 256 & - 415
Fiaportable segrment profit (i) 2 (6} 5 2 20
Tolal
Segment revenue 6283 5577 1127 4] 13,253
Less: Inter-segment sabes (k1) {1434} (036 (219 {2,8000
et eternal sales 6212 4 543 19t i 11,253
Reportable segrent profit (ioss) i) it 1] {65) 56
Unslocsted mnoom e a4
Uraslocabed epenses (732
Biological assets 37 wiue
adjustments 41
Firance costs {1200
Share of profis of associates &
Share of losses of joint vertures {3
Profit before taation 162
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6.  Tumnover and Segment Information (Continued)
Segment information {Continued)
Dhuring the current year, management has changed the presentation of the information on inter-segment sales i UL
and Others when provided fo the Board of Directors, in order to present 3 more mezningful representation of iis
business operations, consstent with the Group's iong-term business strategy, and with how performancs s assessed
by the Board of deectors

Mo custormess are ndividually accounted for more than 10% of the total urnover during bodh years

Mo segment assats and liabdiies are dischoesed as they ane not regularly provided o the chief operaling decision
rrakers,

Mo further analyss is presented for certain fems Included of excludad in the messure of segment resull as such
Inforation is not regulary provided o the chief operating decision makers,

Geographical information
Irifarration about the Group's revenue présented above & based on the geogmaphical locations of aperatian,

Infarmation about the Group's non-current assels is presented below based on the gecgraphical lecations of

oparation.

2014 2013

USS mil lion LS millson

Mon-clfent assats

- Ghina 2,850 24485

- g, 5,254 520G

- Others 1.038 1,020
8,140 B.E55

T OTHER INCOME

2014 M3

UES mil lian LEE million
Franchise fee - 0
Government subsady directly credited to incame 95 51
|nberest Imeoame ]} 13
Invearre on tabes of raw maberiaks 19 16
Reental income 4 -+
(ithers il a
o2 B4

b Less i USEL million
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8, Other Gains and Losses

2014 2013
USE million LSS million
Gain on maturity of available-for-sale imvestments 24 14
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (5 (2
Met exchange (kes) gain (8 7
Others 3 -
14 19
8.  Other Expenses
2004 2013
Us%'million LISE mallion
Share-based payments Ta (EF2)
Lezal and professional fees - (132)
Listing expenses {31} (&)
Donations = 431
Others {1 1]
{110 {80

The above legal and professaonal fees wene incurned in relaton to the aoquisition of Smithfsld,
For the year ended December 31, 2013, included in share-based payments was an expense of LIEEEET million

which represented racognition and reward for the contribution 0 the acquisition of Smithfield by the directors of the
Company, Messrs, Wan Long and Yang Zhijun

= Ltz than USE] milhon
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Finance Costs

2004 2013

USE million LS E million
Amortisation of fransaction costs (Note) 72 {7}
Inberasts on senior ursecunad nobas (135) (44}

Interest on bank and olher bormowings - wiolly repayable

within five years (185) Fib)

Less: Amounts caplialsed in the cost of qualifying assets 1 1
(a3 (1200

Hote  The abowe smorteabion of ransschion cots mcluded She amortisation of transac tion costs related b gyndicaed bank loans

Profit Before Taxation

2014 2013
WSS mil lion LS F million
Prodit before taxation has been armeed at after charging:
Auditar's rermuneralon
— Audit SevicEs 4 3
= non-audit senvices 2 =t
Deprecraton of property, plant and eqguipment 153 173
Amortisation of mtangible assets included in adminsirative expenses B 1
Impairment loss recognisad in respect of property,
plant and equipmant 2 i
Felease of propaid lease payments 8 5
Write-down of inven iodies intluded incost of sakes 3 3
Albowances on trade recalvables 4 3
O perating leazes rentals in respact of rented pramises 78 &0
Resaarch and developrment expanses Fi- 36
Stafi costs 2930 1,192

The cost of sales represanied the cost of Inventories recognised as expanses during both years.

L Legs fran USE]L million
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12, Directors’ and Employees’ Emoluments
Messrs, Wan Long, Yang Zhijun, Guo Lijwn, . Larry Pope and Zhang Taixi are the sxecutive directors of the
Compary as at December 31, 20014, On December 31, 2013, Messrs: Cao Junsheng and Chou Tse Young David
resigned as directors of the Cormpany and Messrs. Gus Lijun, C. Larry Pope and Zhang Tabi wers appainied 2=
directors of the Company.

After the listing of the Corrpany on August 5, 2014, Messrs. Lee Kong Wai Conway, Huang Ming and Lau Jin Ting
Don are appointed a5 the ndependent non-aecutae dirsctors of the Comparty, and Messrs: Jiao Shuge resigned as
executive director and was appainied as non-executive director of the Company.

Directors" and chiel executive's emoluments comprise remuneration paid o payables o the following directors,
which include the chisf executive of the Company, by the Group in connecion with the management of the affairs

of the Group:
Basic Retinemend
salaiies Shae- bzt
i Peiomanc:  felestes based swhems w4
Foer  nllowsnces bt bessia paymenty  comlnbitisnm Total
Karme of director USSmillion 1SS miffion  USSmillion  USS miles  USS million  USS millien  USS milliom
{Hata {i})

ExwcutiveMon-snacutive dineclon
K. Wan Long - F - - ] - n
Wi, Gusa Lijun - - = - 5 s 5
W Jmo Shoge - - - - = ] -
M. Yang Zhin - - - - 2 - 3
M. €, Larmy Pope - 4 ] 1 3 B b
M. Dhang Taii - - - - B =+ [

= 7 L] 1 ol ] 49
Independent Hon-sneculive directars
Mr, Lee Cormay Kong Wai -* - - - - -+ -
Wi Huang Ming - - - - - - -
e, Land Jims i Do -* = = = = -+ -

- - - - - = -t
Tokal for the year ended

Decarrber 31, 2014 = 7 ] 1 5 B 48
; Letsthan USE] mdion
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12.  Directors” and Employees’ Emoluments ((ostinged!

Easic Fetinement

tarks Shares benefit
and Perrrance  Fednfion based sherme 2013
Fees  alowances borus bonus:  pEyments contributons Tiokad
Narne of dinscior UStmilion USimiion UsSmiion USimllion USfmiBon USImllon  LESE millon

Chbte (i
ExeoutivaNon-ezeculive direchars

Mr. Wan Long = = - - 418 - 418
Mr. Guo Liun - - - - - - -
Mr. oo Shige - = = = E. 4 3
Mr. Yang Dhiun - - = i 1% o 15
Mr.C. Laery Pope: - * X i - 2 x
Me. Tang Takei £ = - = = = -
Mr. Cac Junshen - - - = i o -
Mr. Chiu Tt Young Danad - = = = <. ¥ -

Tokal fo the yeer endsd
December 31, 2013 - -+ - - 600 -t o

Hoday

w Periomance relabed incentres paymeents 12 recommandisd by the: remurembon commities of the Compamy snd iz approved by e board of
dracions, vath refanende 16 B Griup's opetateg sl ndvach] perfonmm e and com i ble marke sbetihis

}] o vt mor e © bl @soec it waikeed any emclumssnits in respect of the yasrs anded Decemiber 31, 2014 snd December 31, 2003

(i) M. Wan Long 3 ado e Chied Exec utre for Bee years ended Docember 31, 3014 and Decessber 31, 2013

L] Less than USHL millien
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12, Directors’ and Employees’ Emoluments (Continued
The five hightest paid individuats for the year ended December 31, 2014 included two direciors of the Coampany
{2013: two), delails of whose emolumenis are set out above. The emcluments of the remaining three (2013: three)
highest paid individuals during the year wara as follows:

204 2013
Us% miltion LSS millien

Employees.
= basic salaries and allovances
- pedormance bonus
= retention bonus
- share-based paymants
- retirerment benelits scheme contfibutions

by e

R 3
@0

23 9

The emaluments of the remaining highest paid individuals werne within the following tands:

Number of employess
ama4 2013

HIKE20,500,000 bo HK$E2 1,000,000 -
HKHE5, 000,001 to HICE25, 500,000 -
HICEZ0,000,007 to HICEZ0, 500,000 =
HICE31,000,001 to HKS31.600,000 -
HK$E1, 000,000 to HKEE1 500,000 1

HEEES, 000,000 o HICEES, 500,000 i =
HIE76,500,007 to HICEF 7,000,000 1

R B

During the year, no emoluments ware paid By the Group 1o any of the directors or the five highest paid individuats
{including directors and employees) 2z an Inducement tojoin or upon ining the Group or a3 compensation for loss
of office.

* Legs than Y] milon
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13, Taxation

2004 2013

USE million LE2 million
China Enterprize Income Tax [1a3) (180)
.5, and othar overseas income tax [ 154] {2
Withholding tax {26) (40}
Drefzrred taoation {85) {7}

448 (229}

Uinder the China krw on Enterprise Insome Tax (the "EIT Law®} and Implermentation regulation of the EIT Law, the
tex rate of the China subsidiaries is 25%, eccapt for tha following:

(i According 1o the Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law and the EIT exemphions regulation set out in the
Cireular of the Minstoy of Financs and the State Administration on Releasing the Priran Prooessing Ranges
of Agricyftural Products Entitled to Preferentia! Policies on Enterprise income Tax (Trial Implementation) (Cal
Shul [2008] Mo. 149), and the requirements of Article 26 of the Implementation Regutation o the EIT Law,
the income from varous China subsidiaries of the Company in prmary processing for agriculture products
are-exermplad from EIT.

fi)  Pursusant bo related regulations in respect of the Implementation Fegulation of the EIT Law, the income fram
various China subsadiaries of the Company engaging in projcts of Animal-Husbandry and poultry feading,
are antitied to exermptzon from EIT during both years.

(i} Pursuant to the melated regulations in respect of the Motice of Centain Tax Palicies for Imphementation of
Exploration and Development of Western Region (Cal Shui [2012] Mo, S8) jointly msued by the Minstry of
Finance, the General Admintstration of Cusloms and the Stale Adminestration of Taathon, varkus China
subsidianies of the Cormparny, are enfitied toa preferential incorme tax rabe of 15% duding both years,

(W) According fo the Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law and Circular of State Administration of Taxation
on |ssues Conceming |mplementation of Preferential Income Tax Enjoyed by High-and-new-tech Enterprises
{Guo Shid Han [2009] Mo, 203}, high-and-new-tech enlerpeises are kvied enterprise income tax 3t 15%.
Various China subsidiaries of the Company ana entitiad to enjoy 2 preferential income ko rate at 159% during
hoth years:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fiir e ot reded Depcommser 31, 2044

13.  Taxation {Contingad)

Acoonding bo & jaint circutar of Minsty of Finance and the State Adrministration of Taxation, Cai Shuwi [2008] Mo, 1,
only the profits earned by China subsidiaries prior to January 1, 2008, when distributed to forelgn investors; can be
grandfathered with the exampbion from withholding tac Whereas, pursuant (o Articles 3 and 27 of the EIT Law and
Aicle 9] of Itz implementation Rules, dividend distibuted out of the peofit generated thereafier, shall be subject fo
EIT at 10% or raduced tax rate # tax treaty or arangement applies. Uinder the relevant tax arrangement, withholding
ta rate on dividend distribubion to the qualifying Hong Kong resident companies i 5%, Defarred tax lability on the
undistnbubed profits earned by the China subsidiaries have been accneed at the tax rate of 109 for the years ended
Decenber 31, 2008 and Decamber 31, 2009 and at the fax rate of 5% starting from January 1, 20010 omwards,

The LIS income tax charge comprsas federal income tax calculated at 35% and state income tex cakulated at the
rates ranging from 0% to'9.8% on the estimated assessable prolits of the subsidiaries of the Company which wearne
Incorporated in ULS.,

Overseas tadation is calcufated at the rates provailing in the respective jurnisdictions.

M3 provision fof Hong Kong Prolits Tax has been made a5 the Giaup did mol have ssseszable prolits subject to
Hang Kang Profits Tax during both years
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statéments {ﬁnn_tim_md]
Foor thts yasr eachacd Do sy 3_1_,.3514

13, Taxation (Contirgsd)
The taxation chage for both years is reconciled 1o the profit bidare taxation a5 follows:

2014 2013
Us&millien % LIS S il hom %

Profit befome taxaton 1420 162
T at this appfcable rates (Mobe) {429} (30.2) {41} {2500
T effect of share of profits of associates 5 03 2 1.2
Tant effect of share of profits (losses) of joint

vantures 12 03 {1} {05}
Tax eftect of income 1hat are not taxable in

determining current year taxable profit ar 28 1 06
Tax eftect of expenses that are not deductibée

in determining curment year taosble pralit {41} (2.9} {1281} (1118}
Tax effect of lax kosses not recognised (3} 0.2} 3} 1.9}
Litilesation of txe bszes nol previously recognised 3 0.2 - -
Effect of tax axermptions and prafereritial b

rates granted o Ching subsidiaries 35 25 = 235
Effect of tax exemptions and preferential tax

rates granted to LLS, subsidianies 7 05 3 19
Increase in gpening deferred tax liability

résulling from increase inapplicable tax rate {21 {013 {d) (2.6}
Withholding tax on undstributed samings of

China subsideanias {22y 11.6) (21} {13.00
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiares

operating in other jurisdictions - - B 30
Withholding tax on undistribubad

eamings of China subsidianes

previously not recognised (2} 0.1 (27} (167}
Withholding tax on inberest income {42} 3.00 - -
Underprowision in prior years {6} 04y - -
Tt charge and effective tae rate for the year [EEEY (31.8) (229} (141.4)

Mole  For the year enced Decemter 31, 2004, geen e signficance of Smithfield fo the Group and a3 the Group's revenue i generted in
sl bl o, the inachors of i ComPiry Condader ) mons mssnnglul 1 aggmgabs th sirambe meon: Babond prepasd g
Rhey chom ethe e inench indnadusd jonadcBon,

For te yrar ended December 31, 2013, the mie appiiad o appicabiby b mils o Cing whane the operation of the Group & subadtantolly
vt

Diatails of recognisad and unprovided deferred tacation ane ssi oul in MNate 33,
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Fiir e ot reded Depcommser 31, 2044

14, Dividends

N dividend was proposad o paid during the years ended December 31, 20013 and Dwoember 31, 2014,

15. Earnings {Loss) Per Share

The calculation of the base: and dluted earnings (ossh per share atinbutable to owners of the Company s basad on

the following data:

Earnings {loss}
Profit (loss) for the year attributable 10 owners of the Company
Far the purpose of basic and diluted eamings (loss) per share

Number of shares

Wisig hbed averas number of ofdinary shares for thes puposs of
basic eamings (kossh pershare (Mote 1)

Eftect of diluthee potential ardinary shares:

Ineentive shares (Note 2)

Over=alioiment options

Weighted average numbar of crdinary shares for the purposs of
diluled earnings (loss) per share

2014 2013
UsEmillion LS rmllice
TEG {263)
‘million 'miflicn
11.804.31 10,051.75
531.58 -
.01 =
1253580 10,501.75

ickes

1 The nurrbsss of groknaey shisnes for baric eamengs per thies excludies sham hald by Chang Yun Holdings: Lesded ("Chang Yun™) ard High

Zendh Limited {"High Zéreth™ ) under ihe Cimpany's share incanivg schismes [2ee MNole T and 3701,

4 The comgutabon of diuledg loos par thive for tre year enched Decessber 31, 2013 doss ot sesume the wshing of the shates avard o3 he

eflat o mnbodidns

The computation of diluted eamings per share for the year ended December 31, 2014 does not assume the
epereics of the Company's sham oplions (sse Mote 37(c)) because the someciss prics of those aphions was higher

than the average market price for shares.
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Notes to the Consolidaled Financial Statémen_ts (Continued)
For the v gewked Decamber 31, 2014

16. Property, Plant and Equipment

Plant,
machineny
Freshald Metor and  Canstruction
land Buildings vehicles  equipmenl  in progress Total

USEmillion  USBmilign  USEmillion  USEmalion  WSEmillen  USH'mdllon

COET
Ar Jarey 1, 2013 - a1z 72 7 g2 1,718
Currency reslignment 2 £ 3 34 3 &
Additiares - 16 ] 12 160 317
Ariging on Soquistion of subsidanes

{Moke 38 457 830 &% o7 140 2 530
Trarsker from consruction in

progress - 104 - R {1781 -
Ebsmiratad on disposals {2} (1 {4} {24y - {400
At Dacernber 31, 2003 457 1,790 145 1,983 153 4 505
Currency reafignment L] (45 (31 424 15 {147
Additiors - 40 & 186 ER7 918
hriging on aoquiation of subsidianegs 1 4 - 3 - &
Transkr fom consrudion in

eSS - 250 3 31 (524) -
Elimirated on dispesals {3 (15 {3 {208 - (413
At December 31, 2014 A85 2051 145 2,451 247 53
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT
At Jarmiry 1, 2013 - 112 28 167 - 37
Currercy reatgnment - L 1 7 - 13
Prowided for the year - 43 17 7 - 173
[ et s dos e = 2 ¥ 1 = 1
Ekmirated on disposls - (3 {3 115 - 21
AR December 31, 2013 - 163 43 267 - 473
Currency realggnment - (1 1 2 - 121
Prowided for the yeaar - a2 18 243 - 353
Inpstivmient boss recognised - F4 - - - 2
Eiminated on disposals - (13 (] = - (25
At Decernber 31, 2004 - 243 ] 45 - &0l
CARRYING WALUES
At Docember 31, 2014 &85 1,808 2 1952 247 4 582
At Decernber 31, 2013 457 1,627 103 1,716 129 4,132

Lests Bhan LISEL millicon
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fiir e ot reded Depcommser 31, 2044

16. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)
Canain of the Group's busbdings of USFL 007 million % at Decermber 31, 2014 (2013: USEMI2 million) are eeched
on [znd hedd undar medium-term land use rights in Ching whiss the rest are erected on freehodd land situated in LS.

A3 at December 31, 2014, the application of obtatning the ownership certificates of buildings with an aggregate
canying value of approximately US$273 million (2013: LESE240 million) are still in process.

Inziuded in the carmying value of property, plant and equipment as at December 21, 2014, there was an amount of
L3225 million (2013: USH26 mellion) in respect of assets held under finance leases.

Propery, plant and equipmenst with carrying amaount of approcmately USE2 million has been tully impaired and
recognisad in profit or kss for the year ended December 31, 2014 (2013; LES] milkon).

17.  Prepaid Lease Payments

2014 2013
V5% 'million LIS millin
CosT
A January 1 236 73
Currency realignment 8 9
Additions 34 14
At December 31 264 236
AMORTISATION
At January 1 23 17
Currency realignment - 1
Released for the year 8 &
At Decamber 31 a1 3
CARRYING WALUE
At December 31 233 213
Anglysed fof reporling purposes &5
Current 5 -]
Mon-current 228 203
233 213

The amount. mainky represints the prepayiment of rentaks for Bnd use mghls sluated in China for unskpiied Bass
periods between 14 and 50 years,

. Lests than LS5 millon
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statéments {ﬁnn_tim_md]
Foor thts yasr eachacd Do sy 3_1_,.3514

Biolopical Assets

Hature of the Group's agricultural activities

The biological assets of the Group are live hogs at vanous stages of development, including suckling hogs, nursery
hegs and finishing hogs, which are classifisd 35 current assats. Biokgical assats also include breeding stock, which
are uwsed o produce future Ive hogs and are classified as non-current assets of the Group. The quantity of Ive hogs
and breading stock owned by the Group at the end of each reporting period are as follows:

2004 013
Head IHiead
{'000) (o0

Live hogs
- suckling 1 484 1,336
= Puprasry 2,132 2,010
= finishing 7,068 7.057
10,702 10,408
Breading stock 1,061 1,047
11,763 11,450

in ganeral, once a sow bs inseminaled it will gestate for a period of 114 days, New born hogs are classdeed a5
“suekling”. The suckling hoge will stay with their mother for thres to four weehs at which tirne they will be weanad
Ongethe suckling hogs are weaned, at approdmatedy 15 pounds, they are transfemed to the “nursery”,

The nursesy faclitles are designed to meet the needs of newly weaned pigs. They are fed 3 series of specially
formufated diets to meat their changing nutritionzl needs. The pigs will stay in the nursery for approarmately 7
weaks when they will grow toappecximately S0 pownds and then be ransferred to the “finishing” tarm,

Finishing hogs typically stay in this phasa for 14 to 20weeks, During that time thay will grow to 260 pounds and be
consdensd a5 & Bve hog with rrarket value, Once the hog reaches the deal weight, they are loaded ontd spacially
designed truchs for transport to the processing facility.

The Group & exposed 10 @ number of risks related o its bickogical assels. The Group & exposad o the Tollowing
aperaling risks

(i Reguiatory and environmental risks
The Growp s subiect 1o laws and reguiations in the locaton i which it opertes breeding of hogs. The
Group has established environmental poicies and procedures aimed at compliance with local enwironmental
and gther laws. Management parforms regular reviews 1o identify ermisonmental rishs and 1o engure that the
systerms m place are adequals o manage these risks.

(i} Climate, diseasa and ather natural risks
The Group's biological assets are eposed o the mek of damage from climabic changes, diseases and other
natural forces. The Group has extensve processes in place aimed at monitoning and: mitigating those ks,
Ies|undirg regiilar mspections, deseass contiols, SUMeyE and Nsurance:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e e mndad Decembier 31 2014

18. Biological Assets (Contmued)
Camrying value of the Group’s hiolopical assets

Live bogs Breeding stock Tatal
2014 2013 2004 2013 014 2013
UsFmillion  USE'million  USEmilion  USEmilion  US&wmillion  USFmilkon
Carrving value ot Ly | 1,116 16 204 7 1320 23
Currency reglignment {15} 3 i - (7 5
Add: Brewding costs 7,807 1,220 08 35 8,018 1,325
Faising on acqLésition of
subgidanies (Mate 38) - 1,184 - 196 - 1,380
Gain anigng Fom changes in Bir
value kess oosts to sell.of
bicligical assels i k2 & 3 a2 47
Transfer toimventories 2t e
poink of baryest {1,751 {1,362 {182} 33 {1,934} {1,334}
Decrease due to depracizsn - . (3 (2 {3} (2
Decrease due to culling {212 {56y (28} 1) {240} (1]
wrsguﬂmal [recember 31 1,004 1,116 250 204 1,234 1,320

Changes in fair value less costs (o sall of biological assets incluse changes in the tair value of the hegs at the end
of both years. The Group's blological assels were independently valued by the independent qualified valuer, Jones

Lang LaSalle Corposate Appraisal and Advisory Limited situated at &F, Three Pacilic Place, | Guesn's Road East,
Hong Kong,

Anatysed lor reporling punposs as;

2004 2013
UsEmilbion LISE million

Current 1014 1L.11e
Man-current 220 20
1,234 1,320

. Leets than LSS millen
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Notes to the Consolidaled Financial Statements (Continued)
For the v gewked Decamber 31, 2014

18. Biological Assets (Continusd)

Fair value measurement
Leval 1 Leval 2 Level 3 Total
USEmillion USS' millinn WSS mil lian UsEmillion
Al December 31, 2014
Bictogical assets
- lve hogs - = 1,004 1,014
- beeeding stock - - 20 220
C - 1,234 1,234
Al Decembaer 31, 2013
Bictogical aggats
— live hogs - - 1,116 1,116
- breeding stock - = 20 204
_ L 1,320 1,320

The fair values of breeding stock are determined based on the average of the historcal selling price of hog of similar
breed and genets: merit kess costs to sell (level 3). The estimated fair value will significantly increase when there s
a slight increass in the average historcal selling price, and vice virsy

This tair values of liva hog are mainly determined based on the markel price of hogs in the actively traded
slaughtenng market, sublracting the breeding costs required to raise the lve hogs to be slaughterad and the
rmargins that woulkd be required by a raiser and less costs to sell (Rewel 3}, The estimate fair value will significantly
incregse when there k3 slight increass n the markel price of hog in the slaeghtenng market or decreass n the
breading cost requined b raise the lve hogs, and vice varss,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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18. Biological Assets (Contued)
Fair value measurement (Conlinusd)
Set forth below are the key assumptions and inpuis adopted In the valuation process of biclogical assets:

204 2013
China
Breading stock Per head market prce™ (RMB) 2,041 2,357
Suckling hogs Per head cost™ (RME) &7 a2
Finshing hogs Per head market prce®™ (RME) 1,328 1,564
Per heiad weekly averape beeading costs requirad to
rafse to finishing hogs™ (RMEB): 42 ED
U5,
Breeding slock - Sow Per head market price™ (LIEE) 208 225
Breeding stock = Boar Per head markel pricet (LSE) 109 139
Suckling hags Per hesd cost® (LE) 40 34
Finishing bogs Per haad market prce™ (USE) 173 182
Per haad waakly arerape besading costs raquired to
ratse io finishing hogs*® (LISE): 538 65
Hoites
1 Wearket prices of bewading sk Brsecdivg theck i cf o b i bl s e st a8 8% B corrasponing Feck valushion date
The prioes adopbed reler i the: swempe hidoncal ssiing prices tmnmcied o o) syughier houss
it the Group rever selly s Sresdng ok befoe the endof ibs arseiul Mfe, ro hisoncal sctusl sk
Tigares o mwadabie
2 Costs of suchlrg hogs it thene 1 insigraficant baokoged transomation b bikes place Befwesn the birth of thése animsiz

it ey become Tireskeng hogs, the codt apoooec b wars sdopled. A the hogt wm only 4 wesks’ oid
al o, thes pesc anlk gl ancunmsd S mabes e mpksc ement ool

3 Potarioat pnct of findghing nogs. Ther seckopibind Salang prices of Braghing hogs (which i ol anough o be ook ke the manet) e
determined using their mewket price ab the actely imaded locad spot andior future markst as
neberance The prces i in Sha wluation ane e e Wi B Boiusl pross moonded

- Conls recpinrad o com plebe Thes coids by Complete wisd 55 an alumphon 0 wakustion are beted on the hidoncal sweraps
feeding cost, medication and vaccinabon, grower paymeent, producbon heusing, produchon
drairtecid, the frsghbdoestaigghier and Selkng codts Bl would b ifdumad bf salsd The estrmated
Iprckits thart wioost b required by & raiger arg aho appdind i the wpiuabion
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Notes to the Consolidaled Financial Statémen_ts (Continued)
For the v gewked Decamber 31, 2014

19. Goodwill
2014 23

USS mil lian LSE million
COsT
At January 1 1,835 205
Currency realignment i &
Aiition {MNote 3E) 5 1622
Purchase accounting adjustments ( Naote 35{al) {83 -
At Deverriber 31 1815 1,835
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT LOSSES
At January 1 and December 31 - -
CARRYING VALUE
At December 31 1815 1,236

Impairment testing on goodwill

Based on the Group's business units, goodwill kas béen allocated for impairment testing purposa to the following
S

. Frash pork

* Packaged meats

The carrying amount of goodwill aliocated to CGLUs and unaliocated is-as follows:

2014 2013
W55 mil lion LSS million

Aliocated to
Fresh pork = China 53 55
Packaged meats = China 153 158
Fresh pork = LS. k| H
Packaged meats — U5 1,904 -
Fresh pork and packaged maals — Olhers 74 =
1.BE5 213
Unatiocated - UL, and others (Note) - 1,622
1,815 1,835

Hole-  The mtisd akacation of gocawil ansen from the Acquishon was nok compised befoes Dacember 31, 2013 in whech b Bagineds

coumibiration i5 e hed
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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19.  Goodwill (Cantinusd)
Impairment testing on goodwill (Continued)
Animpairment review of these CoUs s underaken annually of when events or circumstances indicate that the
camying amoynt of CGLs may not be recoverabde, The recoverable amounts of these CGLUs have been determined
by valug in wse method usng cash flow proection parormed by the management for both wears ended December
31, 2014 and December 31, 2013

Far the purpose of Impalement esting, the Group prepades cash flow projection and he reooverable amounts
of these CGUS are caloukated by using pre-tax cash flow projections based on @ 3-yearSyear linancial budget

approved by management and extrapotation of cash flows beyond The 3-yeanByear budget period,

Kay assumptions usad in the cash llow projection of frash pork in Chinaflls. covering a 3yeanS-year budgat
period and extrapolated cash flow bayond the budpet period are &5 follows:

China us.

2014 2003 2014

LS % %

Revenue growth rate (MNosa i) 13.20-32.01 12404093 o1-07
Long-term growth rate (Note i) 2 2 2
Digecunt rate (Mote i} 8 10 g

ey assumptions used in the cash flow projection of packaged meats in China/LlL5, covering a 3-year/S-year budget
pariod and extrapolated cash flow bayond the budget period are as follows:

China us.

2014 2013 204

% % %

Revenue growth rata (MNote i) BB4-21.39 12 66-1306 08-44
Long-term growth rate (Mot i) 2 2 2
Discount rate (Note i} 2 10 g

Key assumptions used in the cash flow projection of fresh poak and packaged meats in other locations culside
Ching-and .5, covering 2 S4year budget period and extrapoiated cazh flow beyond the budget periad are 23

follows;
014
%
Revenue growth rate (MNote i) 2. 1-44
Long-term growth rate (Mote i) 3
Eoer-
i Marupeenart detsrmingd feveriie ErowEh mbe war @ 2B e bedpet pencd with releence i Bhe Daat parferancs & it
g Eabucis b oy et deseslopemeand
W Tron borig-barm prowen eate wsed closns: ncl eoesec) they long-Sarm growth rate for e messt production buteness inwhich it operyies.
[ | Thee- e oot e w5 et s cund e applied fo the cashs fiow propsctions which reflects e fic nsks reladng tothe CoLUs

Mo impairment loss Ts recognised at the end of both years based on the impairment assessment performed,
Management believes that any reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
aggregate tarying amount of the CGLs o excesd the aggregate recoverable amount of the CGUs,

128 WH GROUP LIMITED 2014 Annual Fepart

206/266



EDINETOOOO
O0OO00O000000000000n0dnoOonod(e3osss)

Oooooooa

Notes to the Consolidaled Financial Statements (Continued)
oo ity gk D mber 3_1_, 14

20. Intangible Assets

Coctiact Fights

Ditribulion Customars farm and
Teadesrawks nétwirk Palerdy  usltstiom  relslisna plrmity Tatal
Ustmilion  USP'milion  Us¥milion  USPmillion  US¥milion  USPmilion  USEmilion

GOt
A faniary |, 2013 3% 5 1 - - - 4
Cuimerry resbgnment 13 - - - - 13
Frising on acguistion of

subridRaries Mok 32 1306 - = 56 & 3 S
Aoditions 4 - - o " o 4
A Decemier 21, 2013 1678 5 1 55 4 3 L3z
Cumercy reakgnment 2n - - {1y - - 23
& Decemies 31, M4 1851 B 1 5 £ 3 1,754
AGRTIEATION AHD IMPAIRMENT
& banusany |, 2013 - = 1 = 2 & 1
Cumency mabgnment - - o+ - - - -
Prowided for the e - - - 1 - - 1
K Decomies 3}, 2013 - - ! ] - - >
Cumency makgment - - -+ - - - -+
Prowicked for e year - - o+ 4 2 -+ &
At Decemier 31, 2014 - - 1 5 F =+ &
CARRYING VALUES
A Deceminer 31, 2014 15651 5 - 45 E - 3 145
K Decermies 31, 203 157 5 - L &) 3 LM

Patents, customers relations, contract farm relatons and rghts and peomits are amortsed over thedr estimated wseiul
Irves of 10 b0 20 years.

Trademarks and distribution network acquired in the business combination are identilied and recognised as
intangible sesets with indefinite uselul Ives and carrsd at Watorical cost withoul amarisation for the folowing
reasons:

- they are capable of being renewed Indefinitely at insgnificant cost;

- there is no foreseaabie limit to the pedod over which the gEeel & expected o genarabe et cash flows, based
on an analysis of 2l of the relevant factors.

b Lets ran USE] miion
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fiir e ot reded Depcommser 31, 2044

20.  Intangibie Kesets (Continued
Impairment testing on intangible assels
Based on the Group's business wnits, trademarks and distribution network have been allocaied for impairment
testing purposs o the following CGlLs:

" Fresh pork
. Packaged meals

The carrying amount of Iragemarks and distribution network was allocated 1o oLl as follows:

2ma 2013
Ussmillion LISF millice:
Allocated to

Frash pork — China 53 54
Pachkaged meats — China 15 323

Fresh pork - LIS, 235
Packaged meats - LS. 365 -
Fresh pork and packaged meats - Others B8 -
1,658 377
Uniglipcated - LS, and athears {Mots) - 1,306
1656 1,683

Boka The el aflocabon of intangitie 3 Dosb arver fram the aoquesibion o Bmitfiedd i nol complated belree Ditember 1, 2013 inwhich e
Eartrwets oom e Bon of Sacied

Animpairment review of these CGUs 5 underaken annually o when evenis of circumslances indicate that the
campng amount of CGLS ey nol be recoverable. The recoverable amount of these CGLE have besn debermined
by value in use method using cash flow profection by management for the years ended December 31, 2014 and
Decernber 31, 2013,

For the purposa of impairmant testing, the Group prepares cash flow projection based on a 3-pear/S-year financial
budzets approved by manzgement and extrapolation of cash fiows Deyond the 3-yeasSarear budget pericd

Key assumiptions used in the cash flow projection of trademarks and disiribution netweek of fresh pork covering a8
S4yean-year budget pericd and extrapoiated cash fiow Bayond the budget period are as fofoks:

China (15

2014 2013 2004

R % %%

Resenue growth rate (MNote i) 13.20-32.01 13494093 007
Long-term growth rate (Mote i) 2 s 2
Discount rate (Mote i) 12 13 11
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Notes to the Consolidaled Financial Statements (Continued)
For the v gewked Decamber 31, 2014

20. Intangible Assets [Continuad)
Impairment testing on intangible assets (Continued)
Key assurmptions wsed in the cash flow projection of trademarks and distribution network of packaged meats

cowiering a 3-yeanS-year budget period and extrapolated cash flow Beyond the budget period are as follows:

China U5,

2014 2013 2014

% % %

Fevenue grovweth rate (Mobe 1 B.60-21.34 1265-1206 0.80-12.80
Long-tem groewth rate (Nots i) s 2 2
DHsccunt rate {Mole M) I2 12 1"

Key assumplions used in the cash fhow projecton of trademarks and distribution network of fresh pork and
packaged meats in other localions oulside China and U.S. covering 3 Soyear budget period and extrapolated cash
fhow beyond the budget pariod are a5 follows:

2014

B

Frevenue groveth rate {(Mote 1) 5858
Long-term growth rate (Note i) 3
Discount rate (Mote &) 1

Htes

i Wargemeanl deberminesd reveros groaih rate over 8 LopeaniBopsar Budget pancd with rafarante o e pasl pefiorasncs and da
experchetonsg for the market deskpment

i Thes g b groiath st rerd ot nofl sncdesd e longatsm growth rsde for the mest prodochion bugness o which £ operales

i The discount rae used i pom-b cisoount mbe applied & the cah ficw propecions whach rellects specific ks relabng Bo Bhe Irdeearks
e clfnibafion neteod:

The Group does not recognise an impairment oss during both years based on the impairment assessment
perionmed. Management belisves that any reasonably possible change in-any of thess assumplions would not cause

the aggregate camying amount of the trademarks and distribution network 1o exceed the aggregate recoverable
amounk of the assais.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements {Continued)

Frear th et mrecdend Dpcemizsey 31, S0L4

21.  Interests in Associales

The Group's share of interests in associates
Listed
Linlsted

Share of post-aequisition piofis and other

comprehensive income, nef of dividends recehved

2014 2013
Us&'million UsE million
- 347

387 &0

36T 407

25 =

382 415

Details of the Group's principal associates as at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 are as follows:

Place of Artibuiable proportion of
extabishmend’ issuediregitered capital held
Hame of associsle incarperation by e Company Indirectly  Principal activities
2014 213
Azsociiesol WH Group
HEBERIEORELA Ching s 4% Manuleciure and ssles of
{Crapont Shineway Luohe: Peotein Co, Lidi prodei products
EETRE LR China 43 43% Packagng materals suppies
{Mandong ST New Material Qo Lid)
BEURBANSHMLE China &% &% Procuctionof soy AbumEn
{Chaprant Shineray Luche Food Co., Lad. b
Campadris Food Geaup, 5.4 ("Campoénio™] Spain s 3% Mamubsctue and sbes of
(Moe 1 gt products
Sharver & WH Food Europs, 51 Spein s - Investing hokding of Carrpoivia
("Sigma & WH Eunope")
o
1 Campefrio e Bsied on the Bola de Madrd Exchangs Trep comgnay had become the asaccinte of e Group afler the scquesion of

Emigthfiedd and was subsequently delishad in Sephember 2014
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Notes to the Consolidaled Financial Statémen_ts (Continued)
For the v gewked Decamber 31, 2014

21. Interests in Associates (Continued)
The above table Ests the pincipal associates of the Group, which, in the opmion of the directors, principally affecied
the results for the year or formed 3 substantial porticn of the consolidated net assets. To give details of 3l the
assncates would, m the opinion of the directars, result in particulars of ewcessive lengith.

All ot the above associates are acoounted for using equity methad in the consolidated financial staterments,
Summarised financial information of a material associate

Summariged financial information in respact of the Growp's material associate is st out below, The summarised
financial information below represenis amounts prepared in sccordance with IFRSs.

Sigma & WH Europe/Campalrio (Note)
Sigma &
WH Europa Campofio
2014 2013
U5S millon LEE millon
Current assels a13 o957
Mon-curment assets 2,046 2,140
Current lizbilities {1,047} (1,164}
Mon-current lighilites {1,022) {1,1200
Sigma &
WH Eurcpe Campofiie
2014 2013
US55 mil lron L% millaon
Renenue 2,581 683
Profit tor the year 30 1
Othver compeehensive gain (kes) for the year 2 {1}
Tetal comprenensive gain for the year 12 -t

Dividends recedsed from the associate during the year - -

L Less Ban LEE] mifion
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21,  Interests in Associabes (Coatinued)
Sigma & WH EuropesCampolrio { Continued)
Reconciliation of the above summarsed financial information fo the camying amount of the interast in the associate
recognised in the consalidated financial information:

Sigma &
Wi Europe Camgpetrio
2014 2013
UsE'million LSS millicn
MNet asseis B8O 223
Proportion of the Group’s ownarship interest 37% 7%
320 305
Goodwill = 42
Carnying armount of the Group's intenest 330 347

bode  Sigmo Abmendos, 54 D GV ("Sgmac), oo shansholder wning 6% of the shates of Camgain.

im Jure X014, the Geoup it enbened ko 8 Shaeshokien sgreement wih Sgma b loem 3 neacantly, Sipea & WH Eumger, ncormorsied
in Spam, b hoid Hhe sharess of Campofrio cwned by Sigma and the Group At the Moemsbion of Sigma & WH Eumpe, both Sgma and e
G contribubed the amaunt of shanes squvalent 10 the WFomsd that Sgyma and the Group hokds Campolie. &t of December 31, 2004,
Sigma & WH Europe ovwns 38% of the shares of Campofng The dnoug’s sharehoid@ing to Campolng semaing the sime afier the formabon
of Sigma & WH Group,

Aggregate inforrmation of associates that are not individualy matenal s s out befow:

2ma 2013

UsE'million US$ million

The Group's share of profil for the year from these associsles T B
The Group's share of other comprehensive income i -
The Group's share of fotal comprehansive income 8 &
Aporegabe carrying amount of the Group's interest in these FsE0ciales 82 B2

* Lz than U551 millon
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Notes to the Consolidaled Financial Statements (Continued)
For the v gewked Decamber 31, 2014

22.  Interests in Joint Ventures

2014 b K]

WSS million LS million

Cost of imvestment in uniisted oint ventures m 124
Share of post-acquisition loeses and oiher comprehansive income ] {32

147 121

Details of the Group's principal joint ventures as al December 31, 2014 and Deacember 21, 2012, all of which
are S0% held by the Company indirectly are as follows. The Group exercrses int control over these entites and
tharafome classfied tham as joint ventures of the Group.

Kame of joind venire Place of incorparafion Principal activities

Grargas Carrell g Mindon §. de RL da OV, M Hog tarming aperations

Wormn Helding, 5 da R da Ty, Mty Mamgachuingol mest poducts and
hog arming opertions

Camiira Cold Steeage Limited Parinership LS Coid shorage il

All the Group's joint ventunes are not corsiderad indhidually material, the aagregate amounts of its share of thase
jsint vertunes is sat oul in the consclidated tinancial statements.

23.  Inventories

2014 013

U5 millian LSE million

Raw materals 685 535
Waork in progress L 0
Finishad goods 1,128 1,124
1900 1802
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24.  Trade and Bills Receivahles

2014 2013

Us&E'million LSS million

Trade recehables B8 a5
Less: Allowances for bad and doubtul dabts {mn (3
B41 251

Bills recetvables 4 9
B45 BT

The general credit term allowed by the Group to its customers i within 20 days in China cperations whila the credit
term vary depending on the sales channel and customer for the LS. and cthers operations. The lollowing is an
Zgeing analysis of the trade and bills receivables net of aSowances for bad and doubdul debts presented based on
the date of delivery of goods which approxirated the respective dates on which reveriue was reoognsed:

2014 2013
USE'millon LEF rrallion

Age

0-30 days 773 iy
31 bSO days B4 i
o1 1o 180 days 8 13

B45 270

Before accepting any new customers, the Group uses past éxperence o assess the polenbial customers’ credit
quality and defines cradit limits for the customens. Limitsattibuted (0 cusiomens are reviewed regularly,

At December 31, 2014, included in the Group's trade receivable balance are deblors with aggregate carrying
amaunt of USE72 millien (2013: LISS92 million) which mainly 2ged batwesn 31 (000 days are past dus al the end
of reporting pamod for whach the Group has not provded Tor impainmen koss conssdening the payment history and
substantial repayment was nated subsequently to the end of the reporting period, The Group does not hald any
coliateral over thesa halances. The mverage age of (hese receivables &5 at Desamber 31, 2014 & 68 days (2013: 71
days).

In determining the recoverabifity of the trade recetables, the Group monitors change in the credit quality of the
trade receivabies since the credit was granted and up to the reporting date. The directors considered that the
concantraton of cradit risk is limed due to the customer Dese baing lange and unrelatad.
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Foor thts yasr eachacd Do sy 3_1_,.3514

24, Trade and Billz Receivables (Continuad)
Mo interest is charged on trade recevables. Allowances on frade receivables are made bassd on estimated
irgcoverable amouwnts from the sakes of goods by reference 1o past default exparience and objective evidencas of
irmpairment determined by the difference betwaen the canying amount and the present value of the estimate fulue
cash fiow discounied at the onginal effectne Infterest rate,

Movernenl in the allowances for bad and doubthsd dabis.

2014 013

USS'million LEE million
Al Januey 1 {3 -+
Recognised during the year {MNoke 11) {4 {3)
Al Decernbes 31 m {3}

The allowances for doubtful debis reprasented individually impaired trade receivables which have been placed
under liqudation od in sevend financisl difficulties.

25. Prepayments. Deposits and Other Receivahles

2004 2013
W55 mil lion L% million

Loans recevables 55 124
Depeits paid b supphieds 29 30
Deposits placed with financial institutions L2 28
Valus-added tax recevables B0 Fi:]
Frepayments ki 36
Litility deposis - 4
Armounts dus frarm associles 1 3
Others 48 32
303 365

Analysad for reporing purposes a5
Gurrent 263 242
Meon-current 40 123
3m 365

¥ Lews fran USE]L milion
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e e mndad Decembier 31 2014

26. Available-for-Sale Investments

2014 2013
UsS'million s million
Firancial preducts 208 151

At Decambar 31, 2014, the balances represented the invesiments in financial products operated by banks with
expectad annual refum ranging fram 6% 10 5.8% (2013 4% 0 6.25%).

27.  Derivatives Financial Instrum ents

Derivatives under hedge accounting
2014 2013
Assats Liakililses Agzats Liahilities
EEE million UsEmillion LSS milion LISE million
Fair valisg hedges
= Grain contracls =, 2 i 3
Cazhflow hedges
= Foredgn currency forward
coniracks -t -t - =
~ Grain contracts ] 23 2 13
— Livestock contracis B0 - i 1
ES 25 3 14

Fair value hedges:

The Group entered into derivative instrumenis (primanly foreand contracts) to minimise #5 exposure 1o fair value
changes of its commitmeants o by grains. The directars of the Company consider that those dervat e anstruments
ane highly effectve hedging instruments. Major terms of the derivative instrumenis ane st out bedow

Notional volume
Derivative msiruments Minim um Maximum Mefric Maturity
At December 31, 2014
Commuodities contract
= o 450,000 9,195,000 Bushels up to December 2016

At Decamber 31, 2003
Commaodities contract

= Com 6,230,000 Bushels up to March 2014

¥

- Liewms than UEE] milion
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27. Derivatives Financial Instruments (Continued)
Fair value hedges: (Continued)
Dhuring the year ended December 31, 2014, the hedge was highly effective in hadging the fair value exposue to
ther grain price movernents and 35 3 result the camying amount of the sommitments to buy graing was adjusted by
less than LSEL million £2013: kess than USET million) which was included in profit or ioss at the same time: thal the
derivatiee instruments were included in protit or ibss in both years,

Gash flow hedges:

At December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, the Group had the foliowing forelgn exchange forward conlracts
designated as highly elecive hedging instruments in order to manage the Group's farelgn currency exposurne in
relation to boreign currency forecast sales and purchases

As 3t December 31, 2014, there were deferred nef gain of U5%24 million (2013: net losses of LSES matlion) in
equity, retof ta of LISE19 million {2013: less than USE2 million) included in cthar resenia

The Group entered into dervative instruments, such as futures, swaps and opbions contracts designated as highly
effechve hedging metrureats it otder 1o rranage the Group's exposuie 1o the wanabilty i expascted fulufe cash
flows atiributable to cammadity price rsk associated with the forscasted sabe of ve hoge and fresh pock, and the
forecasted purchase of com and soybean meal The terms of the devirative instruments have been negotiated o
rriatch the ber e of the respactive designated hedged items. The major ferms of thess confracts ane as follows:

Motional volume
Dervative instruments Minimum Mazimum Metric Matusity

At December 31, A4

Commodities contracts
Com 42 575,000 99530000  Bushels up 1o December 2016
Soybean maal 34,500 827,300 Tons up o December 2015
Lean hogs 103.280,000 1847680000  Pounds wp o Augusk 2015
Foreign curmency forward 10266521 34363900 Various up to September 2015
contracts CUTencIs

Al Docamber 31, 2013

Commodites confracts
Com 42,575,000 52,575,000 Bushels up o August 2014
Sybean maal 346,500 A05, 350 Tons up o December 2014
Lean hogs 81,600,000 733,160,000 Promsrids up o August 2014
Foreign currency forward 23515282 34543408 Various up o Seplember 2014
contracts CLETENCHES

Fair value gain of LS$29 milkion (2013: fair value losses USES million) have been recognised in other
comprehensive income during the year ended December 31, 2014,
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27.  Derivatives Financial Instrumems { Continusd)
Derivatives not under hedge accounting

20714 2013
Assals Liakibilbos: Aszeis Liahilities
USE million 5 Em llion LSS malion USE millicn
Foretgn currency forwasd contracts 1 = =t -
Grain contracls 1 8 - -
Livestock contracts B 9 = 7
Energy contracts - 10 3 s
B 27 3 7
Major terme of such derivatives are as follws:
Kotional welume
Derivative msirumants Mlinim um Maximum Matric Maturity
Al December 31, 2014
Commuodites conlracts
Lean hogs B0, 000 414,600,000 Pounds up to February 2016
Cetn 40,000 24,620,000 Bushelz up to December 2016
Soybean meal - 18,500 Tans up to January 2016
Sowbeans 75,000 3,545 000 Bushels up t Movernbaer 2006
Wheat - 5,000 Bushels up to July 2015
Matural gas 8,050,000 17,040,000 MMBETU up to Decernbar 2016
s - 6,888,000 zalicas up to December 2016
Foreign currency forwand 5272810 25,251,083 Various up to July 2015
conbacts CUMBRCEs
Al Decernbar 31, 20013
Commodities contracis
Lean hogs 1,560,000 A03, 820,000 Founds up to December 2014
Coun 25,000 1,825,000 Bushals up to hanch 2015
Soybean meal - 25,000 Tans up b July 2014
Soybeans - 1,820,000 Bushals up te fanuary 2015
Matural gas 9,880,000 12,380,000 MMETL ip o April 2005
Diesel 1,260,000 2,016,000 Gallns up-to April 2004
Forelgn currency forward 2072402 55,143,799 Various up to Febouary 2014
contracts Currencies

Al darivativa financial assels and liabilitkes are recorded as cument assels and current abites

& Lesms than UEE] milion
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28. Pledged Bank Deposits and Bank Balances and Cash
At Decarnbar 31, 2014, bank balances carry mterest a1 marked rates rangng from 0.08% 10 4.34% (2013: 0.05%
to 4. 13%) per annum. The pledged bank deposits carry fixed interest rates froem O01% o 3.80% (2013 3% o
.75 per annum.

At Dacember 31, 2014, pledged bank deposits represent deposits of USE2] million (2013: USEE2 milion) pedged
torbanks for scuring banking and trading facilities such as letter of credits and bank leans granted o the Group,
and USE4 millon (2013: U554 milllea) pladged for securing loan from a thind pamy. These pledged bank deposts
willl be released wpon the settlement of relevant bomowings or the release of the relevant facilities,

28. Trade and Bills Payables
The average credit peried on purchase of goods = about 30 days in China operations and the credit brms varny
depending on the vendor for the LS. and other operations. The Group has financial risk management policies in
place toensure that all payables are paid within the cradit timeframe.

2014 2013
U5S millon LEE millon
Trade payables 850 251
Bills payables = =
850 251
The fetlowing &5 an analysis of trade payables based on the Involce date:
2004 ;s
UsS'millian LES% million
Age
0-30 days 545 756
31- 90 days 170 B
21-180 days 28
18] days to 365 days & -
850 251
= Less San LISEL miion
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30. Accrued Expenses and Other Payables

2014 2013
USE million LSS million
Acrued staff costs e 342
Payables in respect of acquisition of property, plant and equipment 247 73
Deposit receipts and deposits recenved Trom customers 156 196
Sales rebates payables 140 105
Insurance payables 114 105
Irterest payable J0 B5
Balance of contingent consideration in respect of
acquisition of subsidiaries 50 43
Growers payables @l 35
Deflerred compansation ar 40
Apcrued professional fees 35 41
Broker payables 34 -t
Accrued advertising expanses 34 36
Accrued rent and utilities =1 25
Pansion lakility (Nobs 35) 2 25
Amsunis due o assooiates (MNote 4300 8 2
Dederred revenue ( Mote 34} 2 5
Obdigations under finance keases (Mote 31) ! !
Dividards payable to ron-controlling imerests - g6
Other payables 141 90
1,597 1,296
Anglysed for reporling purposas as;
Current 1457 1,146
Mon-current 140 150
1.587 1,29

- Lo than USE] millon
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31. Obligations Under Finance Leases
The Group has leased certain of its buildings, machinery, vehicles and otfer squapreat under finance leases. As a1
Decemiber 31, 2014, the lease term is ranged from 2 1o 26 years (2013: 2 to 27 years). Interest rates underbying all
obligations under finance leasas are variabba al respective contract dates with an averags rate of 039 per annum
for the year ended Decermber 31, 2014 (2013 0.3% per annum).

Prasent value of
Minimuss laasa payments minimum leass payments
2014 2013 2014 2013

USS millian LIS million UsS'million LSS millkan

Amcunts payable under finance keases:

Within cove yede 1 1 | 1
Betwaen one i0 two years 1 1 1 1
Between bwo to five years 3 3 3 3
After five years 20 21 20 21
25 26 23 26

Less: Future fingnce charges - =*
Fresent value of iease oblgations 25 26
Less: Amounts due Tor setllement within one

year and shown under current liabilities

fincluded in accryad epanses and

other payable in Note 20) (1} mn
Armcunts due after one year 24 25

The Group's nbigations under financs Hases an secuted by the esars champge over the eased asosts.

Less Ban UEE] silion
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32, Borrowings
2014 2013
UsEFmillion LISH rrillion:
Senior unsscuned nokes:
B.625% senior unsecired notes due August 2022 1,004 1021
7750 senior unsecured notes due July 2017 520 539
5. 250% senior unsecured notes due August 2018 482 490
5.875% senior unsecured noles due August 2021 382 33
2418 2441
Biank loans {Mote i
Secured B3 4,300
Unsecured 2,144 812
Lo fram third parties {habe bl
Secured 1 1
Lirsecured 4 2
4 E50 735
Bank overdrafts (Mote jii) 20 76
The borrowings other than bank overdrafls are repayable 25 Tollows (Mote
Within one year £S89 =2
Betwesn one o two years 230 308
Betwesn two to fie years 2410 4950
After five years 1411 1,416
% 650 7386
Less: Amounts due within ane year shown under current lzbdites (e {E54)
Ampunis due after one year 188 BEF2
Total borrowings:
Al foed 3tes 2899 2,887
Al ticating rales 1751 44683
4 850 7386
Analysis of bomowings by currency;
Denominated in USE 4536 728
Depominated in RMB &0 ]
Densminated in ELIR 4 4
Denorminated in GEP (“British Pound®) 4 =
Dencminated in PLMN{*Folish Zioty") 48 &
4.B50 7358
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32. Bomowings (Confinuad)

| F el rmfr Empnc ksnneg, Gy rbgrecsk of Tooed rovlees rnging from | 6% o 550 (2003 1 48% 0 6%) and foatrg rates of LEWOR + 25% b
LIB0R & 4% per annum ol December 31, 2004 (3013; 1 38% b WBOR «2 5%)

i Locaerrs: from e grieec army inberests % foomdd rates renging Srom O 6% 400 5% per annum at December 31, 2014 (2013: 0.6% OS5

in Bark ovrdrafts ab December 21, 2004 carry mberest at & &% per annum (2013 & 6% per annum)

I, The am cunts dus are bazed on fcheduled mpmyment dates =t out n the ksn agreements

The Group had etered into @ US34.000 melion syndicated kman (the "2013 Syndicated Loan™) for (e Asquistion
during the year ended December 31, 2013 and it camied interest at LIBOR + 3/5% tod.5% per annum. The Group
has early settled during the year.

During the year ended December 31, 2014, the Group had entered intd LISE], 500 millicn Syndicated Loan and &
carres interest at LIBOR + 2.48% 103.08% per annumin correlation to the Bverage rato of the Group,

The Group's borrowings contain affirmative and negative coverants thal, among other things, limit or restrct the
Group's abiléy to create liens and encumbrances, incur debt, enter into liquidation, enter into change of conlrol
transactions or change the scope of the business, make acquisitions and investments, dispose of or transfer assels,
pay diidends or make cther payrments in respact of its imventaties, in sach case, subject 1o certain qualiications
and exceptions. The Group has no matenal defaull in payment of the bank borrowings, nor did i@ breach any
relevant finance covenants far the year ended December 31, 2014 and Decemnber 31, 2013,

Details of a5sets pledged o Secure bormowings ane st out in Mote 41,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements {Continued)
Frear th et mrecdend Dpcemizsey 31, S0L4

33. Defemed Taxation
Far thie purposs of presentation in the corsolidated statement of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities hawe been offset The following is the analysis of the deferred 12 balances for financial reparting purpose

204 2013

Uss'million USE million

Dederred tax assels 88 a2
Deforrad tax liabilities (B3 (224)
{750} (782)

The fellowing are the major deferred tax assetsiiabdites recognised by the Group, and the movemenis thereon
during the year:

Tax effect of dedyctible termporary differences:

|gesrmesl

oz and

sceienid
acconaling (der
depmcistionen  Umlsed  Wrik-dowa edeclible
Himioces  propert. plaat prafit in of Umaid  temporary

briddebt amequipment  ivesbries inehries Taleses Siwlbe  dfeesce ol
Ubmiion USmiin  USmin USfmiln 5Pmillcn USFmilin W58wlon  LUSEmilien

R iy 1, 2013 - 3 3 = 14 3 2 e
Cemercy seligment - - - -+ : -+ 1 1
Asing on rquition of

mibeideres (Note 28] - - 1B B 4 o i
o] ke hamgecd ) 0

ool or boes -* 1 & - &z @3k 4 3
Docefiler] detesrged )10 ety - - - - - Lk 2 o]
Ay Db 31, 2013 - 4 15 + b I M A8
Comescy secligrment = - - - i = (k] )
Aesingon dquedin of

witeideries (Note 391 - - I - - - - 1
Coiin] de et

1o pod o e =* 1 {160 * 4 L] & i
(ool - horged ) o ey - * - - - Fe il £
B Decrabor 30, 2014 - 3 | - ] o - 8
4 Less tham UEE] milion
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Notes to the Consolidaled Financial Statements (Continued)
For the v gewked Decamber 31, 2014

33. Deferred Taxation (Continued)
Tax effect of taxable temporany diferences:

Fasr valoe Fair alue
Undistiibuted chinges changes
Accelerated eanings  arisisgirem  arisingfrom  Othes tasashle
i of China b bialagical lspaary
deprociation subsidiaes combesalion s differances Tatal
iStrdion  USEmilen USPmlion  USPmlElioe  USPmillin  USEwmilion

& January 1, 2013 - 12 (117 - - {120
Curency makgnment - - (51 - - (5
Ariang on acouestonof

subeifiaries (hote 381 521 - {4031} - - i
(Charged ) credited o profitor s 1% 1 & {15 v (42
& Decemies 21, 2013 ] 20 5219 (15 {1 {1.058)
Cumency reakanment -+ -+ ] - 2 14
Aeising on scduitonof

subsidines (ow 38) - - 48 = - &5
(Chargad) credbed o profit or ks 4 i (13 {1& 0] (84
Credited (charged) oeaquity - - - - (& (£
A Detomiar 31, 2014 33 ] (487} an (1} (1,128

At Decemier 31, 2014, the Group had unused tax losses of USEA07 millon (2013 LISE314 million) availeble for
ofizet against {uture profits of which a deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of LIS$333 million (2013
USE242 milion} of such losses. Mo deferred tax asset has been recognised i respect of such koeses of LISET4
rriftion (2013 WSET2 millon) due to unpredictabdlity of future profit steeam. Excepl an unrecognised fax losses
of LE321 million mncurred during the year ended December 31, 2014 (2013: LSE11 million) that may be carried
forsard indefinltely, other losses will expire from the year of 2014 to 2029,

Lt oy LIS million
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o ther st stk Decombber 31, 2014

33. Defemed Taxation (Continged)

The unreccenised b bosses will expae on o before 2029 a5 betow:

2004 2013
UsE'million s million

By end of
2014
2015
2M6
2m7
2me
afier 2018

4= 0o o2 o0
Bmugum

Lx]

53 &1

A the and of the reporting panod, the aggregate amount of termporary differences assaciated with undistnbuted
eamings of subsidiaries for which dederred tax liabilities have not been recognisad was USH1,330 million (2013:
USEFE4 million], Mo liabil#y has been recognised in respect of these differences because the Group ks in a
pasitizn o control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and the Group has determinad that this
portian of profits deved from these PRC operaling subsidiares will be retained by these subsidianes and will
not be distributed in the foresesable tuture. Therefore, it s probable that such differences will not reverse in the
foresaeable fulure,

Deferred Revenue

2014 2013
U5E'm ilan LSS rrallicn

Government grant
— curment (inchidad in accrusd epenoes and ot payables Note 307 2 5
= mon-current ] )

a 14

The deferred revenus represents government grant received in relation o construction of property, plant and
equipmant of the Group. As the related assels are under construction, the grant recaived from govermnment will
b released o profil of 1082 a5 Othes income over the useful s of the relatad amounts after the consiruction i
completed
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fior e v grckad D ism b 3_1:,.351-1

35. Pension Liability and Other Retirement Benefits Schemes
Defined benefit plans
The group endities which cperates in LS. operate funded defined benefil schame for all their qualified employees
Pensicn banafils provided by 1he Group are currantly caganised primarily through defined banefit pension plans
which cover virtually 2l LLS, employees and certain foreign employees of the Group. Salaried employees are
prowided benatits based on years of service and average salary levels. Hourly employees ane provided benefils of
stated amounts for each year of service.

The defined benelit plan s administered by a separate fund that is legally sepamated from the entity. The board of
the pension fund & cormposed of an equal number of representatives from both employers and (lormes) employees
The board of the pension fund I required by law and by iis Articles of Association to 22t in the interest of the Tund
and of all relevanit stakeholders in the schame, Le. active employecs, inactie employees, retirees, employers. The
board of the pension fund is responsible for the vwestment policy with regard 1o the assats of the fund

Lindes the plan, the employees ane entitled to retirement benetits varying between 403 and 45% of tinal salary on
attainment of a retinement age of 5. Mo ther post-retirement benefits are provided o these employees.

The plan in LS. exposss the Group 10 soluaral sks such a5 investrment sk, mlterest rale ek, longevity risk and
salany rigk,

| Pvestment ik The present vaiuse of the defined benefil plan liability = calculated using 2 discount
rate determined by reference to high qualify corparate band yields; if the refurn
on plan aszel Is below this rate, It will create 3 plan dedicit. Currently the plan has
a refatively balanced Investment in equity securites, debt instruments and real
estates. Due to the long-term rature of the plan lizbilites, the board of the persion
fund considers it appropriate that a rezsonable podion of the plan assels should be
Irvestad in equity steunties and in feal estates o byerage the mlum gererated by
the fund.

Imbarast risk A decrease ini the interest rale of fwed incorme products will increase the plan Eabsity,
however, thes will be partially offssl by an incresse in the refuen an the pian's debt
imeestments.

Longavity risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liabdity s calculated by reference to
the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants bath during and adter their
employmment. An ncreass in the life expectancy of the plan participans will increase
the plan's lablily.

Salary sk The present valwe of the defined benefit plan liabdity & calculated by reference 1o
the future safaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan
participants will increase the plan's liability.

Price risk Anincreass in the matket price of equily investmants will increase tha plan assels..

The most recent actuanal valuations of plan assets and the present value of the defined. benefit obligation wee

carried ou at December 31, 2014 by Mercer (US), Inc.. The present value of the defired benetit cbligation, and
the retated cufrent sefvice cost and past sarvioe oSt were measured using the Projectsd Unid Cradit Method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements {Continued)
Frear th et mrecdend Dpcemizsey 31, S0L4

35.  Pension Liahility and Other Retirement Benefits Schemes (Cantinged)
Defined benefit plans (Conlnued)
The principal assumptions. used for the purposes of the acluarial valuations were as follows:

Valuation ot December 31,
204 2013
Drseount rae 4.30% 525%
Expected rate of salary increase 4% 4%

The actuarial valuation showed that the market value of plan assets was USE] 214 milion (2013; USE], 128

rrallicy).

Amounts recognised in profit or oes in respect of these defined benedit plans are as follows.

2014 2013
Uss'miltion LIS$ mrillice

Service cost:
Current senvice cost 49 10
Past service cost - -
Mel interest expanse 24 7
Total 73 17

Remeasurement of the met defined benefit fabiity included in other comprehensive (expense) income are as

Tolbows.

2014 2013

Uss'million LSS rrallion

Return on plan assets (exciyding amounts includesd in mef inferest expenges) B 38
Actuarial losses ariang from change in financial assumplions (254) =)
{193 o

Less: Taxation {hote 4&) 15 1
Toral {118} 12
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Notes to the Consolidaled Financial Statements (Continued)
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35. Pension Liability and Other Retirement Benefits Schemes (Contnusd)
Defined benefit plans (Continued)
The amaunt inciuded In the consolidated siatemant of financial position arising from the Group's obiigation in
respact of % defined benafil plans is as follows:

2014 2013

U5S'million L2 millon

Present value of funded defined benafit obligations 1,816 1,653
Fair value of plan assets {1,214) {1,126}
Furded status and net lizbility arising from defined benedit obligation B2 527

Analysed as:

Currrent {Mote 300 n 26
Mom-current 579 501
o2 527

Movements in the present value of the defined benefd cbligations in the current year were a3 follows:

2014 2013

W55 mil lion LS millean

Defined benefit obligation a1 January 1 1,653 -
Addition arising from acquisibion of subsidiaries - 1,652
Current service cost 44 10

Iriterest cost B4 21
Benefits paid (24 (3=

Remeasuremend losses:

Actuarial ksses arising from change in financiad assumptions 254 2
Defined bensfit obligation at December 31 1,818 1,853
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements {Continued)
Frear th et mrecdend Dpcemizsey 31, S0L4

35.  Pension Liahility and Other Retirement Benefits Schemes (Cantinged)
Defined benefit plans (Conlnued)
Movements in the present value of the plan assets in the current year were as follows:

a4 2013

Uss'million USE million

Fair vatue of plan assets a1 January 1 1,126 -
Addition arising from aoquistion of subsidiaries " 1,081
Inferest ncoms &0 14
Contribiutions from the armployer 191 32
Benafits paid {224} (33

Remsasurement gains:
Return on plan gssets (ecluding amounts included in

net inferest expenses) E1 32

Fair value of plan assets 2t December 31 1.214 1,126
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35. Pension Liability and Other Retirement Benefits Schemes (Contnusd)
Defined benefit plans (Continued)
Thee fair value of the plan assels a3 at December 31, 2014 for each calegory, are as follows.

Fair valug of plan assels
at December 31,
2014 2013
WSS mil lion LS %' millian
Cash and cash equivalents @7 53
Erpuiity secufities:
Preferred stock 3 -
LS. common stock:

Health case 3 28

Financial services “ 33

Rietall and consurmer products 3% 40

Enegy g 15

Irformation technokgy i a3

Manulachsing and industrials 26 21

Telecormmumacations 5 10

Intermational common siock 128 173

Mutual funds:
Intemational Fi] =
Drometic ssvail cap % 34
Fived income:

Mutual funds 4 18

Asset-backed securites 17 16

Emerging rrarkets securities i 23

Corporate debd sacurities mwm 343

Gemarnrment debl seourlties 204 112

Alternative investmants:

Divarsified investment funds 60 55
Limited pastnerships 36 -
Irnsurancs contacts | 1
Total fair valua 1.207 1,119
Uneattied transachons: net 7 s
Total plan asseis 1214 1126

The fair values of the above equity and dedt instuments ane determired basad on quoted markel prices in active
markets whereas the fair values of diversified investrment funds, limited partnesships and insutance contracts are
net basad on quoted markst prices in achive markeds. As at Decamber 31, 2014, US3455 million, USET1E millian
and LEEIT milion planned assets (2013 USEIEZ millon, USTEDE million-and LSS0 milhon) are classifed as
Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 respectively.

The actual retwrn on plan sssets was 10% over 5 years
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35.  Pension Liahility and Other Retirement Benefits Schemes (Cantinged)
Defined benefit plans (Conlnued)
Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate, expected salary
increase and rmcetality. The sansitivity analyses below have bean determined basad on reasanably possibie changes
of the respective assumptions cocurnng at the end of the reporting penad, while holding all other assumptons
constant.

. If the discount rate i 50 bass points higher (lowar), the defined benefit obigaton woukd decreaze by
LISE1 13 million {increase by LISE113 million),

The sengilivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benafit
ohligation as it is unkkely that the change in assumplions woukd occur in solation of one another as some of the
assumptions may be correlated

Funtherrnare, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has
been calculated using the procted unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which & the same as that
appllied in calculating the defined beanelil obligation [labssy recognised in the consolidated statarment of finansial
position

Pension plan assets may be invested in cash and cash equivalents, equities, debit securities, insurance confracts
and real estate. The invastment policy for the pension plans & 1o talance risk and return through'a diversified
portiolic of high-quality equity and fied income securities. Equity targets for the pension plans are as indicated in
the foliowing fable, Maturity for {ed Income securities is managed such that sufficent quidity exsts bo meet near-
torm benafit payment obigations. The plans retain cylsade investment advisors to mansge plan investments within
paramebers establehed by the plan trustees

The fallowing table presents the fair value of the qualiied pension plan assels by major asset catégory as of
Decermnber 31, 2014, The aliocation of the pension plan assets is based on the target range presented in the
Tollowing rabde.

Astel calegoring:

A Decambes 31, 2014 At Decermber 31, 2013
UsE'million  Target range USE'milion  Targei range

Cash and cash equivalents, net of unsettied

brameac s 102 0-4% 63 4%,
Equity securities 453 30-50% 456 30-5ir%
Dbt securities 395 33-55% 512 33-55%
Alterrathee assels &b 2% 95 520

Total 1214 1,126

The Group expects 1o make & contibution of USE2T mllion &0 the defined benefit plan dunng the aest financial
year (2013: USE23 millicn).
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35. Pension Liability and Other Retirement Benefits Schemes (Contnusd)
Defined benefit plans (Continued)
The following are descripbions of the valuation methodologies and key inputs vsed to measure pension plan assels
recatded Al fair value:

. Cash and cash squhalents - Cash equivalents include highly liquid investments with original maturites o
thres months or less. Due o their short-ferm nature, the canmying amount of these instruments approsimates
the estimated tar value, Actively traded money market Tunds are measured a1 their nel asset values, which
approimates fair value, and classified as Level 1. The fair value of certain money market funds for which
quoted prices are available but traded bess {requéntly have been classfied as Level 2.

. Equdy securdies - When available, the fair value of equity secuntiss are based on quoted prces m aclive
rmarkets and classified as Level 1. Level 1 financial instruments include haghly fiquid instruments with
quoted pricas, such as equities and mutual funds tradad in aclive markats.

It quoted prices are not available, fair values are obitained from pricing sewvices, broker quotes o other
odel-Baged valuation techniques with observable inputs and classshd 35 Level 2. The aatune of these
equity securties include securities for which quoted prioes are available but traded wes Trequently, securilies
whosa fair value hes been denved using & model where inputs to the modeal are directly cbservable in the
rnarket, or can be denved principally from of corroborated by abservable market data and sscurities fhat aie
valued using other financial imstrurments, the parameters of which can be directly obsared, Level 2 equity
sacurities nclude preferred stock and mutsal funds not actvely traded,

* Fixed income = The fair values of fixed income instruments are oblained from pricing senvices, broker
quotes of oliver madel-based valuation technigues with observable inputs and classiiad as Level 2. The
nature of these fied Income instruments include instruments Tor which quoted prices are availabie bt
traded Bess frequently, insruments whase fair valus has been derived using 3 model where inputs o
the moded ane directly observable in the market, or can be derived principally from or cornoborated by
observable market data and secunmms that are valued wsing otiver financal instruments, the parameters
of which can be direclly observed, Level 2 fiead Income Instrements include mutual funds, asset-backed
securities, corporate debt securites, emenging marke! sacurites and government dabl sacurities.

. Alfermative Investments — The fair values of alternative invesiments are obtained from pricing services,
beoker quotes or other model-based valuation lechnigues with obsanvable inputs and classified a5 Level
2. The nature of these alternative mvestmants include instruments for which quoled prices are available
but traded less frequently, instruments whose fair value has been derived using a model where inputs
lo the moded aré directly obsarvable in the rmarkel, or can be darsed pancipally from o corroboraied by
obserable markel data and securifies that are valued wsing other financial instruments, the paramelers
of which can be directly obsanved, Level 2 allermative investments include dversified imestment funds,
domestic aptions contracts and fulures contracts.
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35.  Pension Liahility and Other Retirement Benefits Schemes (Cantinged)

Delined benefit plans (Conlnued)

. Limfed parinerships - The valuation of limited partnership investments requires the use of significant
unabsanable inputs due to the absence of quoted markst prices, inherent ok of liquidity and long-
term nature of such assels and are classified a5 Leval 3. These investments-are mitially valued at cost
with quarterly valuations periommed utifising avadable markat data 1o determine the fair value of these
investments. Such market dala consists primarily of the abservations of trading multiples of public
ocompanies corsidered comparabie 1o the investmants wilh adjustrents for investment-specific msues, the
lack of liquidity and other dems.

* Irsurance confracts - The valuation of these guarantesd annuity insurance contracis & primarily based on
quotad prices in active markels with adjusiments for unobsenvable inpuls causad by the unique pature of
applying Investment eamings a5 part of the pasticipabion guarantee, Due 1o these unobserable inpuls and
the larg-term nature of these imvestmants, the contracts are classified as Level 3.

Defined Contribution Plans
The Group hat retinement plans coveling 4 subttantial portions of (18 employess. The presdipal plans ane delined
contribution plans.

Thie Group's qualifyirig employees in Hong Kong participate in MPF in Hong Keng. The assets of the MPF are haid
separately from those of e Group in fund under the control of frustes. Linder the MPF scheme in Hong Hong,
the employer and its employess are each required to make contributions to the scheme 2t 5% of the employess’
refevant income, subgect to a cap of monthly rebevant income of HEE25,000 (up to May 31, 2014) and HIKES0,000
{stanting from June 1, 2014). Contributions to the schame vest immadiately.

The empioyees of the Group's China subsidiaries ame members of the state-managed retirement benslits scheme
operated by the Chirg government. The subsidiaries ame requirad b contribute a certain parcenitage of their paynal
o the relirament benefits scheme to fund the banefils, The only cbligations of the Group wilh respect to the
retirement benefits scheme i 0 make the required contmbuticns wnder the schems

The Group has defined contrbution plans (A01(K) plans) covering substantially ail US employess. The Group's
contributions to the plan are primarily based on each coniributon and cannot exceed the maximum alipvabie for
b puffsses.

The armount charged to profit or loss of appraximately USEE5 million during the year ended Decemnber 31, 2014
(2013 LES39 million} epresents contribution paid or payable to the plans by the Group at rates specified in the
rules of the plans
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36. Share Capital

Mumber of
shanes Amount
“rrillicn L3 millaon

Ordinary shares of LISE00001 sach:

Authorised:
Al January 1, 2013, Decermbar 31, 2013 and Decernber 31, 2014 B0, 000 5

Issured and fully paid:

At January 1, 2013 10,526 32 1

Issue of new shares 118855 -t

At December 31, 2013 11,69551 1

Issue of shares on global offering (Note a) 2EET A0 -+

Iszue of shares on exercise of over-atioiment option (Mote b) 38511 -t

At December 31, 2014 1484842 1
Hetes

i3} The Gompany's shaces wees kit on T Sk Bxchange on August 5, 2004, Tre Comparny sicned and issued 3 total of 2,567 200,000
i drdenary shares of USE00001 ench bo the pubhc 58 8 price of HESE X per share puriuant e globel offenng. mised procesds of
approxiealaly HEEIES 358 milon Isqunment i approcmatsly LZE]SE3 militn), afler deducting e undsnriing bees and olher retbed
spTaes payabie by thr Company in conecton win the gotel ofienng.

.11 Thes oviralicment ophion was sxerdised on August 5 20048 for the oo of 385,110,000 shaees of the Compary ot MEEE 20 por shie,
Faived procesds of appmemadely HEE2 336 miion fegunalent b sppremabely USE30] mikon), after decucting the undgerantng e
e e v paree ponyn Bl by the Gompiery in condmchon with the gickeaf ofesng

The net proceeds was used to repay the three-year franche rmaturing on August 30, 2016 of the 2013 Syndicated
Loan, which had 30 interest rate of LIBOR plus 3.5% and has an outstanding principal amount of LISE2 500
millien. The Group-applied the net proceeds fo this purpose after the complietion of the global offering

All the shares which were Ssued duning the year rank parl passu with the then existing shares in all respecis.

37. Share Incentive Schemes

(8}  Tha Company's share award plan (the "2010 Share Award Plan") was adopied pursuant to a resclubion in
writing of all shareholders of the Company dated Movemnber 26, 2010 (the "Resolutions"), As 2 resull of
the completon of the recrganisation steps as described and approved in the Resolutions on Dacember 26,
2013, 631,580,000 shares of the Company (the "Incentive Shams"), representing 8% of the then msued
shares of the Company were transterred from Shine D Holding Limited, one of the shareholders of the
Company, 0 Chang Yun for the senice manage ment of Company and its subsidiaries and invested entiles
pursuant to the 2010 Share Award Flan, The Resolutions also approved the engagement of Tricor Sarvices
Limited by the Company 1o provide trustee senvices for the 2010 Share Award Plan and Teeroy Lirited has
been designated by Tricor Services Limited 1o act 23 trustee for the 2010 Share Award Flan {the "Trustea®).
The voling rights in respact of the Incentive Shares held by Chang Yun will be exarcised in accordance with
th digeaction o ba ghen by Heroks Toms, one of the shareholders of the Company.

* Lits han LISSL million
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37. Share Incentive Schemes (Continued)
(8)  (Continuod)

if, at the date of termination of the 2010 Share Award Plan, Chang Yun holds any |ncentive Shares which
has not been set aside pursuant 1o the terms-of the 2010 Share Award Plan in favour of any selected
emphoyee of the Company o retaing any unutiised funds, the Trustee shall handle at the discrefion of the
board of directors of the Company according to tha then applicable ws and regulations,  Upon termination
of the 2010 Shame Award Plan, all the Incentive Shares and other distributicns provisionally awarded to
a selectad employee to the exient not already vested pursuant bo the terms of the 2010 Share Award
Plan, shall becorne vested on such salected emplopes and any Incentive: Shares which are not vested in
accordance with the terms of the 2010 Share Award Plan or are forfeited In accordance with the terms
theraunder, shall be handled at the discration of the board of directors of the Company according b0 the
then applicable faws and regulations. The trust set up for the 2000 Share fward Plan was hereby regarded a5
aspacial purpose enfity of the Company and consolidatad to the Group acoordingly.

The 2010 Share Award Plan was amended pursuant to a resolution in writing of all directors dated Febeuary 3,
2012 and the assessment peraad for vesting the Incentive Shares were 52l ta be 2012 to 2014, None of the
shares has been granted to the management or stadf of the Company under the 2010 Share Award Plan up
iy the cate of issue of these financial statements, and the asseszmant is expacted to be completed m 2015

DCetails of e Sham Award Plan ane as follows:

Humber of shares 631,580,000
(subject ta the kock-up penod of § years and voling right shall be retained by
Heroic Zone, the immediate holding company of the Company, theneaftar}

Grant date December 26, 2012
Vesting conditicn Pedormance target for each wear from 2002 to 2014

The manggement of the Company estmates that all granting conditions will be achieved and all Incenthe
Shares will be granted ultimately, The estimated fair value of the Incentive Shares as al grant date amounted
1o USE128 million. It i detesrmingd by marked appraach.

{h)  The Company had adopied another share award péan (the “2013 Share Award Plan”) pursuant to a wiitten
nesplution of all the Company’s sharsholders in October 2013, representing 3.0% of the then issued shares
of the Corrpany 8t the time of Bsuance pursuant to the 2013 Share Award Plan held by High Zenith for the
recognition and reward to the contribution of certain employees and the growth and developrment of the
Group, The resoldion ako approved Trustee by the Company 1o provide frustee services fof the 2013 Share
Award Plan. The woting rights in respect of the shares held by High Zerith will be exgscised in accordance
with the direction to be given by Hercse Zane.
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37. Share Incenlive Schemes | Confinusd)
(b}  (Contnued)

If, ai the daie of termination of the 2083 Share Award Plan, High Zenith holds any shares which has not
been set aside pursuant to the tarms of the 2013 Share Award Plan in favour of any salected ampioyees
of the Company or retaing any unutilised funds, the Trustes shall handle at the decretion of the board o
diractars of the Company according to the then applicable laws and regulations. Upon termination of the
2013 Share Award Plan, all the shares and ather distributions provisionally awarded 10 3 sefected employes
10 the extant not aiready vested purseant to the tarms of the 2013 Shase Award Plan, shall become vested
on such selected employee and any shares which are not vested In accordance with the terms of the
2013 Shase Awand Plan or are fordesbed in acoordance with the besms theteunder, shall be handbed af the
discration of the board of directors of the Company according to the then applicable laws and regulations
The trust set up for the 20013 Share Award Plan was bereby regarded as a special purpose enfity. of the
Group accordingly,

On Cotober 23, 2013, 350,877 353 shares of LIS300001 each wane aliotted 10 High Zenith pursuant o the
2013 Share Award Plan as et out above,

Mone of thie shares has been grantsd to the managemant of stadl of the Company under the 2013 Shade
Award Plan up to the date of issue of these financial statements,

Ako on Celober 23, 2013, the Company fssued 573,009,845 and 245,614,133 new ordinary shares of
LIS$0.0001 each to Sure Pass Hoddings Limited ("Sure Pass®) and Rich Matrix Global Limited ("Rich
Matric™) respeciively, being companies wholly beneficially owned and controlied by the directors, Messrs
Wan Long and Yang Zhijun respectively fo recognise amd rewsrd their contributions to the acquisition of
Srmithtiedd. The woling fights in respect of the shares held by Sure Pass and Rich Matric will be exercised in
accordance with the direction to be given by Heroie Zone. The estimated tair value of thess share awards a5
at grant date amounted 16 USEERT milion. |1 & mainky determined by market appiaach.

(c}  Pre-IPD share option
The pra-IP0 share oplion scheme was adopled pursuant 1o 3 written resslulion passed by the shareholders
of the Company an January 21, 2014 a3 smandad on April 4, 2014, the purposs of which is 10 incentiviss
and reward eligible participants of the scherme, including directors, fuli-time employees of the Company
of its subsidiaries by reason of thelr contribution ar potential contribution o the Company andior any of s
subsidiaries.

In Juby 2004, the number of shares in respect of which options had been granied undar the predPD share
option schemeé was 584, 795585, with earcise price of HREE. 20 per share, répresanting no more than 5%
of tha then issued share capital of the Company upon complation of the listing on the Stock Exchange. Mo
consideration was paid by the grantees for the grant of the pre-IP0 share oplions,

Th fair value of the pre-1PO share oplions granted using the Binorminai Option Prcing Modsl was HIKE1 223
milfion {equivalent to approametely USH243 million which was measured by an independent qualified
valuer, Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited.
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A7.  Share Incentive Schemes (Continued)
() (Continued)
The key inputs into the model were as follows:

2014
Shane price HKSE 66
Exercize price HKSE 20
Option Iife 10 years
Expected volatilty 42%
Risk-fren rate 2.08%

Expected volahility was determinad by using the hstorical wolatility of the selected comparable compnsas in
the same indusiry.

For the year ended December 31, 2014, the Group recognised 3 share-based payments expense of LISETE
million (2013 UEE632 million] in relation 1o the 2010 Share Award Plan, the share allotment o Messrs
Wan Leng and Yarg Dwjun and the pralPO share opbion scharme.

38. Acquisition of Subsidiaries/Business

fa)  On Seplember 25, 2013, pursuant to the agreement and plan of sacguisition dated May 28, 2013 with
Smithfiald, the Group had paid a total considaration of approximately US$4.9 billicn fo acquine all the shares
of Srrithtield for a cash consideration of LISE34 per share (the “Acquisition Consaderation”) mainly far the
share of common stock held prior 1o the effective time of the Acquisition and all outstanding stock-based
compensation awards, both vasted and unvestsd, were comvaied inta the mght 1o reoeve the Acquisition
Consideration, less the exercise price of such awards. Upon complation of the Acquisdion, Smithfield had
meegad with Sun Merger Sub, Inc, (“Sun Merger™) 8 company incorporated in Virgini, WS and 8 3
whilly-owned subsidiary of the Gioup,

Sun Merger had issued USSS00 million aggregate principal amount of 5.25% senicr notes due August
1, 2015 and LS3400 millon aggregate peincipal amount of 5.875% senlor nofes dwee August 1, 2021
(eollectively referred as the "Acquisition Senkor Mobes™) in conneclion with the Acquisition on July 31, 2012
The net procesds of the Acquisition Senior Notes wens used 10 fund a portion of the fotal consideration paid,
repay partion of other outstanding liabiliies of Smithfield and pay certain of cther ransachion fees associated
with the Acquisition

The assets acquired and babdities assurmed by the Growp in the Acquisiteon reflects the falr valug estimates
based on management’s analysis, including work parormed by third-party valuation specialists. The
Acquisition has besn accountad for using acquesition method, Acquiiton related cost of LUSET29 miliion
(inclusive of legal and professional fee of USE132 million and share-based payments of LISEIOT million 2=
set out in Moke 9 has been recognised as an expense during the year ended Decernber 31, 2013, within
the *Other expenzes’ lina item in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and cther compeehensive
ncorme,
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38. Acquisition of Subsidiaries/Business (Continued)
(8) (Contmued)
The foliowing is 3 summary of the fair values of the assets acquired and llabilities assumed:

Fair value
LEsE million
Propedty, plant and agquipment 2530
Eilogcal assets ~ mon-current 196
Intangibls assets la
Internests in associates n
Interests in jpint ventures 124
Biological assels - current 1,184
I v ntones 1322
Trade recevables 76D
Prepayrrents and ciher rece vables 211
Other non-curment assats 144
Bank batances and cash 251
Trade payables (535
Accrued expenses and other payables (527}
Borrowings and obligations under finance leases (2,748)
Qther bag-tarm payables (161}
Disfamad tax liabiities (E58)
Pansion liability (571}
3,281
Goodwill 2risng on acquisition:
L E million
Consideraton transherred 4903
Less: Met assets acquired (3,281}
1,822
et cash outfiow arising on acquisiton:
L% millon
Consideration transferred (4,905)
Add: Bank balances and cash 251
{4,652
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38. Acquisition of Subsidiaries/Business (Continusd)
(8)  (Continued)
Smithfield contribuled approimately U5E3,2%4 mSion to the Group's revenue and LISEES million of profit
10 the Group's kess Tor the year from the date of scquesibion to Decerniber 31, 2013,

It the acquisition has been completed on January 1, 20 3, the C-'.n:u.lp would increase its tumower by
US$L0,002 millicn and profit by USESE million for the year. The information is for Bustrative purposes only
and i ol necessarily an indication of revenue and results of operations of the Group that: actually wouid
have been achieved had the aoquisition been completed on January 1, 2013, nor s it infended to be a
progection of future resulis

Goodwill arose in the acquisttion of Smithfield because the consideraton paid for the combination
effectively included amounts in relation o 1he benelit of expected synergies, revenue growth, future market
davelopment and the assembled workloroe of Smithfield. Thess benilits are not recognised saparately from
goocwill because they do not meet the recagnition crteria tor identifiable intangitee assets,

Pore of the goodwill aflssng on thess acquisilions & apected 1o be daductinhe fof b purposss.

Curing the year ended December 31, 2014, a net imgact of USES milion purchase accounting adjustments
were made by the Group when finalising the purchase price allocation of the Acguisition. The directors
of the Company consider thess adjustments are Insigndicant o the consalidated statemant of financia!
position, and as such, did not retrespectively apply the adjustiments to the batances as at Decamber 31,
2013,

() On Apil 15 2014, Kaveas City Sausage Company, LLC, an U5, subsidiary of the Group, enterad into 2
business purchase agreement with several independent third parties, for the purchase of 3 shughtering
Business { ramnly compises of some staughtar facilties) for a considaration of appaaiamalaly LISF11 million,
which LSEE millian of goodwill i recognised during the year.

39, Operating Lease Commitments
The Group as lessee
The Group was commitied to make the following future menimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases which fall due as follows:

2014 203
UsE'million USE mellion

‘Within one year adq a3
Iyt second to fifth year inclusve 96 a7
Adver fhe years 35 33

175 163

Opetating leasas payrmemts represent rentals pavabbe by the Groap for carain of Bswarehauss and premises. Laase
are regoliated for a lease term betwean 4 to 50 years. The Group doss not have an option b purchase the kased
ssets upan the adply of the lease pariod,
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40. Capital Commitments

2004 2013
UEF mil lian LS E million
Capital expendiure suthorsad bul not contracted for in respect of
acquisition of proparty, plant and equipmeant 147 127
Capital dxpendituie contracted for but not provided in thie cansalidated
financial statements in respect of acquisition of property, ptant and
equipmant 387 266

41. Pledge of Assets
The carrying amownt of the assels of the Group pladged to banks for securing banking and frading facilitates and
lcan froem a third party granted 1o the Group 15 analysed as follows:

2014 2013
UESmil lban LSS million
Pledged bank balances 5 &6

The remainder of pledged bank balinees = mainly pladged for worker's compensation insurance claires in LS. for
both years,

Thie shames of cartain subsidiaries hald by the Group was sk phedged fod the 2013 Syndicated Loan, but was
then releasad upon the full settlement of the 2013 Syndicated Loan by the Group in 2014, As at December 31,
2014 and December 31, 2013, the Group's matenal LS, subsidaries are jointly and severally lable for, as primany
obligors, the cbligations under the inventory revolver, and thoss obligations are secured by a first priodly Fen on
certain progerly, ncluding cash and cash equivalents, deposit accounts, imentory, intelisctual proparty, and cerain
Uity inbenests

Smithlisld Recenables Funding, LLC, 3 whally-owned subsidiany of the Group, has 3 sscuritisation facility that
matures in May 2016, As part of the arangement, ail trade receivables of the major pork segment subsadianes in
Smithfield are sold to @ wholly-owned “pankryptcy remota” special purpose vehicle ("SPV), The 5PV pledges the
recenvables as saourity for kaans and latters of creddt. The SPV i included in the consalidated financial statements
of the Group and thesedore, the trade recevablas cwned by SPV are inchuded In the consolidated statesmsant of
financial position of the Group, Hoawever, the trade receivables owned by the SPVY are separate and distingt from
the: ether asséts and ae not available to other crediters of Smithfield i Srmithfeld were bo becorms: insolvent, As
at December 31, 2014, the SPV held US3EE] million (2013: USES3D million) of trade receivables and had no
outstanding bomow ings on the secuntisation Bcltly espactively (2013 USE105 million),
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42_ Contingent Liabilities
Smithfield ame subjact o varniows laws and regulations admnesterad by the US federal, state and other government
enlities, Including the Unied States Ervironmental Profection Agency and comesponding state agencies, as well
a5 the Uniled States Departrment of Agricullure, the Grain Inspection, Packers and Stockyard Administration, the
United States Food and Drug Acmenistration, the United Stakes Cocupationz| Satety and Health Administrabion, the
Commodities and Futures Trading Commission and similar agencies in foraign counfries Fe other participants in
the Industiy.

Smithfield had notices and inquiries from regulatory authorities and others asserting from fime to time that
Emithfield is not in compliance with ihe respective laws and regulations. In some instances, Migation énsues and
indhdduals may initiate litigation against Smithfisld.

Horth Carolina Nuisance Litigation

In August, Septarmber and October 2014, 25 complainis wers filed in the Exstern Distriot of North Carcling by 515
indwidual plaintifis against Smithfiedd and iz wholly-owmed sebtsidary, Murphy-Brown, aleging causes of action
for nuisance and related claims. The complaints stermmed from pre-litigation mediation of farm nuisance dispute
Aok and AuBance cases pleviously fled in the Superkor Court of Wake County. On Febriary 23, 2015, all 25
complaints wens armended and one complaint was sewired into fwo separate actiohs. The 26 currently pending
complaints were filed on behed of 541 plaintifts and relate to approwimately 13 company-owned and 74 contract
farms, All 26 complaints include causes of action for lemporary nuisance and negligence and seak recowary of an
unspecifed amaunt of compenssioly, special and penithve damages, a5 well 33 unspecified injumctive and equitable
redied,

Murphy-Brown i in the process of responding to the compiaints in all 26 cases. Tha directs of the Company
berlieees that the claims anme unfounded and intends 1o defend the suts vigomushy,

The Group's palicy lof establishing accruals and disclksunes for contingent [@bilities is 58 cul in Note 2. The
faroup established a provision estimating the expenses to defend against thess and similar potential claims on the
consolidated statement of financisl position at the date of Acguisition, Consequently, expanses and olther labilities
azsociated with these claims for subsequent periods will not affect the prolits or losses unkess the resenve proves o
be msufficient or excesenve. Heowever, lagal expansas incuned in Srmithlield and Smithfleld's subsidianes’ defersa of
these claims and any payments made to plaintiffs through untavpurable verdicts or otherwise will negatively impact
the cash flows and the liquidity position. Green that the ratter is in its very preliminary stages and ghen the inherent
uncertainty of the cutooms for these and similar potential ¢laims, the management of the Group cannol estimates
the reasonably possible loss or range of ks for these koss contingencies in addifion to the expenses that will meur
to dedend against these claims. The management of the Group will continue to review whether an additional accrual i
necessary and whether Smithtield have the ability o estimale the reasonably possibie o5 or range of koss for these
rrattars.
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43. Related Party Transactions
(8}  The Group had the fallowing sgnficant tramsactions with assecrlesoint venturnes durning both years:

2064 2018
LSS millian LEE millon
Sales of goods o associates 8 1
Purchate of goods from associales 47 ar
Furchase of goods from joint ventures 21 -
(b}  Balances with associatesfoint ventures al the end of both years:

2004 2013
WSS mil lian LSE million

Inciuded in:
Trade and béls receivables (Note) 2 3
Prepay ment, depasits and cther recanables {MNotel | 3
Aenrued expenses and ofber payebles (o) H B8

b The: amvounits e from o asaoclesfomnt wantures ane urmecuned, inbevest-free andl repoyabie on demand

(c) Compensation of key management personned
Compansation of key management personnel and dirsctors (represented by the direclors” emoluments and
the top five employees' emalumenis) during the year is 5t out in Mote 12
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44,  Statement of Financial Position of the Company

At Decamber 31,
2004 203
USS million UZE million

Mon-curren] Fssats

I nberests in an unlisted subsidany (Mabe) 5,000 4,355
Current agsats

Amounts dus from subsidarss 234 102

Prepayments, deposits and obher recevables = -

Bank balances and cash 20 a2

254 144

Current liabilfies

Other payables 5 9

Bornwings 187 29

202 232

Mat curment assels (kabdils) 52 (a4}
Total assels kess curment Eabities 5,052 4,261
B rowing — non-cumant 1,282 3,703
Mot gegelg 3,780 =2
Capinal and resarves
Share capital 1 1
Share premium 2,802 a1l
Translation ressna &1 Bl
Qther reserve 58 -
Retained peofits el (25)
Total squity 3.760 858

Hode  The bélance segoe sty imeestments in unlied ghoees of o ity of cod
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45. Details of Nen Wholly-Owned Subsidiaries That Have Material Non-Controlling Interests

The table below shows details of non wholly-owned subsidianes of the Group that have matacial nan-contralling
irterests at the end of reporting period:

Comlry ol Propection of

mcarpuation wwnership imteests anl

aud principal vating rights beld by Prafi {lwssh allocated by Aecamulated
Kame of subeidiiary plaze af besimes nan-coeimiing interesks  men-canirelling mbenesk pamceairalling inlenas

FiilE) 413 mi4 an 14 013
U3S'million  USE'miion 158wl USSmillon

ARRER ARNE LR L
Heran Shusnghui Inestment &
Denelopment Go, Lid
{"Sarghu lewelbpment”] Chim B % i o1 ] 2

Inclivichustly immiierial subsidiaries
with non-conrofing inferests 2 Bl 14 1]

e 1% i &2

Summarisad financial informaticn in respect of Shuanghui Developmant that has matenal non-controlling interetts is
et oul below, The summansed financial information below représents amounts befon intragioup éliminatons.

A December 31,
2014 13
WSS millon LEE million
Mon-currant assets 2,168 1,782
Current asss 1,379 1480
Current lizbilities (BaT) 773
Mon-currant fiabilites 8] (100
Equity attributable to owners of Shuanghul Development 2488 2370
Mon-contraling interests of Shuanghul Developmeant's
subsidiamnas 140 109
Mon-contraling interests of Shuanghul Developman 866 B33
B08 42
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45,  Details of Non Wholly-Owned Subsidiaries That Have Material Non-Controlling Imerests (Continued)

Year ended December 31,
2014 2

013
UsEmillion UsE millicn

Revenie 7415 730
Total expenses {6,730} =8 ]
Prrofit for the year and tolal comprahensive incomea for the year BBS EE]
Profit aftributable to cwners of the Company 481 453
Frodit atiritutable to the non-contrading inferests of Shuanghui

Devalopment's subssdiases 28 34
Frodit atiributabie to the non-contraling inferests of

Shuanghui Developmeant 178 163

BAS EE]

Dividends pald 1o non-controlling interests of Shvanghul

Development's subsidianies 2 -1
Mgt cash inflow from operating activities 51 )
Mat cash outfiow from investing actiities (00 (323
Mat cash outflow from financing actvities {285} (352
Mat cash outfiow {144 (4}

45. Other Comprehensive {Expense) Income

2014 2013
USE'million US$ million
Other comprehansive (expense) income includos:
e that will nat be reclassifing subssquently 1o profit o loss:
Exchange differences ansing on transkalion o
pedsantation currendy - 52
Remassunement on defined banalit pension plans {193} 2
Less: Income tax refating io defined benedit pension plans 75 (11)
LARE:Y 0
[terms that may be reclassified subssquently 1o profit of koss:
Exchange diffesences asising on translation of fereign aperations {231} 91
Fair value change m cash fow hedge 48 (7
Less: Income tax ralating o cash flow hadge {7 2
{202} 25
Oty cornprahe rng (e perse] incoeme, et of ineorme L {3200 186
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47. Events after the end of the Reporting Period
The fellowing sgndicant events ook place subseguent to the end of the reporting perod.

In January 2015, the Group commenced 3 cash tander offer for its sanior notes, subject o 3 maximum aggragats

purchase pnoe of up bo USEETS million {the "2015 Tender Offer”). The 2015 Tender Offer expired n Febeuary
2015

AL 3 tesult of the 2015 Tender Offer, the Group bave paid 3275 millon o repurchase $252 million of princpal, As
a result of these epurchases, the Group recognised losses on debt extinguishment of approximatety LISF12 million
Iri the first quartes af 2015, Including the write-off of related unamarlised premaurs and debt suance costs,

48. Principal subsidiaries
Dretzils of the Company's principal subsidiarles at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 are as follows;

P ol e sad folly i Mirbabibl Eporben
Eneporatd/ shom copitigiind  of fesaed foagicered cagital
Ham o swksaary shbshmestopnton  caplal Ve by the Companry ilimetly Pricipal actites
A4 i
Fiary Verix it Hong Fong Oncbnary shaees - [OOOG%  BOOOME  Iwesed heking and
HRSLESL5,000,000 imding
Shenghui Deveiopment ihoe 11 Chima Shares - XS TIEL  Imesment hofing
RMBZA05T 448 et bodng,
beesach sl ghlering,
rraanisashure i ik
of packagieg maeriks
and mest products
Smthelid Foodks, Inc, eke 2) [} Hode 3 O0oets  BDOUNRL  mwestment bolding,
etk bwsding,
bveshoch thagghlering,
etz and sk
of ot pancdcs

Mo 1 This compamy it Esed on the & S hoost Marked of the Shenzhen Siock Exchangs

Heta 3 Thet comparry wart kied on the Mew Tork Skeck Exchangs and warn debtted from e dock e hanges market on Seplemter 26, 2013,
imimediately afier the aoguaition by the Gz ond remained o5 @ registrnt under U5 Secuntes and Exctange Gommigsion

Hota 3 Thee gar values of the commmaon shanes of this wubidany @ pem

The above table Bt the principal subsdiaries ol the Company which, in the opanion of the dirkctors, pancipally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the consolidated el assets. To goee details of all
the subsidiar ies would, in the opinion of the divectors, result in padicutars of excessive length,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WH GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of WH Group Limited (the "Company")
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the "Group") set out on pages 68 to 169, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2014, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give atrue and fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility isto express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of thisreport. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give atrue and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity'sinternal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonabl eness of accounting estimates made by the directors, aswell as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

264/266



EDINETO OO
OooooooooooooooooooonOn(esnsss)
ooooOoog
Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give atrue and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group as at December 31, 2014, and of its profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

March 25, 2015
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